PU !,’I/C [%%g:slélggn aQt PaClSo Holmes/Karen Hood

RYEDALE 310/386
D | S T R | C T Extension
C O U N C | L Date of Publication 8 December 2014
E Mail jo.holmes@ryedale.gov.uk;
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk
PLANNING COMMITTEE
Tuesday 16 December 2014 at 6.00 pm
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Agenda
1 Apologies for absence
2 Minutes (Pages 3 - 8)

3  Urgent Business

To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest

Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest. This requirement is
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation.

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 9 - 10)

6 14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25 - 27 Commercial Street, Norton (Pages 11

- 80)
7 14/01081/OUT - Land At, Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside (Pages 81 - 91)
8 14/00909/HOUSE - Newlands, 4 St Peters Crescent, Norton (Pages 92 - 99)

Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666 Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference




10

11

12

13

14

15

14/00980/MFUL - Ryelands Care Home, Hurrell Lane, Thornton-Le-Dale (Pages

100 - 156)

14/01187/FUL - 4 Dale Road, Sheriff Hutton, Malton

Publication of the CIL Revised Draft Charging Schedule

Policy Report - The Helmsley Plan: Land at Helmsley

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

Update on Appeal Decisions

(Pages 157 - 160)

(Pages 161 - 172)

(Pages 173 - 179)

(Pages 180 - 181)



Agenda ltem 2

Planning Committee

Held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 18 November 2014

Present

Councillors Mrs Burr MBE, Cussons (Substitute), Mrs Frank (Vice-Chairman),
Mrs Goodrick, Hope, Maud, Richardson, Mrs Sanderson, Windress (Chairman) and
Woodward

Substitutes: Councillor D Cussons (for Councillor J Hicks)

In Attendance

Jo Holmes, Karen Hood, Gary Housden, Matthew Mortonson, Rachel Smith and
Anthony Winship

Minutes

115 Apologies for absence
Apologies were received from Councillor Hicks.

116 Minutes of meeting held on 21 October 2014

Decision

That the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 21 October
2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

[For 8 Against 0 Abstain 1]

117 Urgent Business
There was no urgent business.

118 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Application
Cussons 6
Hope 6,8,9,17
Sanderson 6,8,9,17
Frank 6,9
Burr 6,7,9,14,15
Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 3



Woodward 6,10

Richardson 8,9
Maud 6,9,10
Windress 8,9

119 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the
applications for planning permission with recommendations there on.

120 Enforcement Report - 10/00156/BC - Steam And Moorland Garden Centre,
Malton Road, Pickering

Decision

That the Officer recommendations be approved and that the Council Solicitor be
authorised in consultation with the Head of Planning and Housing Services to
issue an enforcement notice pursuant to section 172 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring:

(i) The cessation of the sale of goods on the site which are not permitted under
Condition 06 of planning permission ref. 00/00400/OUT together with the
removal of those unathorised goods from the site; and

(i) The cessation of the sale of goods on the site which are not permitted under
Condition 06 of planning permission ref. 02/00880/FUL together with the
removal of those unathorised goods from the site.

[For 6 Against 3 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs
Sanderson, Mrs Frank, Mrs Burr, Woodward and Maud declared a personal non
pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. Councillor Cussons declared a personal
and prejudicial Interest and left the room.

121 Enforcement Report - 14/00015/CU - Musley Bank Stables, Musley Bank,
Malton

Decision

That the Officer recommendation be approved and that no formal enforcement
action be taken.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 4



122

123

124

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Burr declared
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Enforcement Report - 14/00007/UD - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton

Decision

(i) That the Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of
Planning and Housing Services to issue an enforcement notice pursuant to
section 172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) requiring
the cessation of the restaurant use (A3 use class) and the removal of the pre-
fabricated kitchen building from the land; and

(ii) That the compliance period be two years.

[For 6 Against 4 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs
Sanderson, Richardson and Windress declared a personal non pecuniary but
not prejudicial interest.

14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Temporary period of 2 years.

[8 For Against 0 Abstain 2]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs
Sanderson, Mrs Frank, Mrs Burr, Richardson, Maud and Windress declared a
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25-27 Commercial Street, Norton

Decision
DEFERRED FOR SITE INSPECTION 2.12.14

[For 6 Against 0 Abstain 3]

Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 5




125

126

127

128

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Woodward and
Maud declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest. Councillor
Mrs Burr declared a disclosable pecuniary interest and left the room.

14/00132/MFUL - Kingspan, St Hildas Street, Sherburn, Malton

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

14/00950/MFUL - Poplar House Farm, Leppington Lane, Leppington,
Malton

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 9 Against 1 Abstain 0]

14/00976/MREM - Land At OS Field 9525, Crossgate Lane, Pickering

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and receipt
of satisfactory landscape plan.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

13/00885/FUL - Buildings At Mount Farm, Main Street, Westow

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Burr declared
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 6




129

130

131

132

133

14/00896/FUL - Rainbow Cottage, Westgate Lane, Old Malton

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Mrs Burr declared
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

14/01077/FUL - 44 Potter Hill, Pickering

Decision
PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillor Woodward
declared a personal and prejudicial interest and left the room.

14/01081/OUT - Land At Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside

Decision
DEFERRED FOR SITE INSPECTION 2.12.14

[For 8 Against 1 Abstain 1]

In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct Councillors Hope, Mrs
Sanderson and Richardson declared a personal non pecuniary but not
prejudicial interest.

Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

There was no urgent business.

List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously

circulated) which gave details of the applications determined by the Head of
Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of Delegated Decisions.

Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 7




134 Update on Appeal Decisions
Members’ were advised of the following appeal decision.

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/A/14/2222762 - Ellis Patents Ltd, High Street,
Rillington, Malton

Meeting Closed at 9.40pm.

Planning Committee 6 Tuesday 18 November 2014

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 16/12/14

6

Application No: 14/00947/MFUL

Application Site: ATS Euromaster 25 - 27 Commercial Street Norton Malton North
Yorkshire YO17 9HX

Proposal: Erection of 37no. one bedroom apartments. 20no. two bedroom apartments,
3no. three bedroom dwellings and 2no. four bedroom apartments with
undercroft parking, private and communal amenity areas, landscaping,
management office, alteration to existing vehicular access and erection of
street front commercial unit with one bed studio above

7

Application No: 14/01081/0UT

Application Site: Land At Piercy End Kirkbymoorside

Proposal: Erection of dwelling with detached garage (site area 0.1ha)

8

Application No: 14/00909/HOUSE

Application Site: Newlands 4 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AN

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above

9

Application No: 14/00980/MFUL

Application Site: Ryelands Care Home Hurrell Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North
Yorkshire YO18 7QR

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 6no. four bedroom
dwellings, 4no. three bedroom dwellings, 2no. two bedroom dwellings and
2no. one bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking and amenity
areas and repositioning of vehicular access

10

Application No: 14/01187/FUL

Application Site: 4 Dale Road Sheriff Hutton Malton YO60 6RZ

Proposal: Removal of roller shutter door to north elevation and replacement by 2no.

timber windows and surrounding brickwork

Page 9



APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 16/12/14

#Error

Application No: 14/01096/FUL

Application Site: Land South Of Thornton House Low Street Thornton Le Clay

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of agricultural building to form a two bedroom

dwelling with parking and amenity areas and incorporating an existing
timber workshop within the curtilage

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 6

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL
PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE
PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING

Item Number: 6

Application No: 14/00947/MFUL

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Full Application Major

Applicant: Mr Paul Sedman

Proposal: Erection of 37no. one bedroom apartments. 20no. two bedroom apartments,

3no. three bedroom dwellings and 2no. four bedroom apartments with
undercroft parking, private and communal amenity areas, landscaping,
management office, alteration to existing vehicular access and erection of
street front commercial unit with one bed studio above

Location: ATS Euromaster 25 - 27 Commercial Street Norton Malton North Yorkshire
YO17 9HX

Registration Date: 5 September 2014 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 5 December 2014

Case Officer: Gary Housden Ext: 307

CONSULTATIONS:

Building Conservation Officer Further design changes recommended

North Yorkshire Education Authority Comments awaited re level of contribution
Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Further views awaited

Archaeology Section Further views awaited

Highways North Yorkshire Further views awaited

Parish Council Further views awaited

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Further views awaited

Land Use Planning Conditional support

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Recommend condition

Land Use Planning Drainage details not acceptable

Environmental Health Officer Recommend Conditions

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend conditions

Countryside Officer Confirms proposed landscaping acceptable recommend
condition

Housing Services No views received to date

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Comments made in respect of designing out
crime

Parish Council Object

Highways North Yorkshire Awaits further plans before making a recommendation

Neighbour responses: Sophie Tasker,Mr Keith Nicholson,Simon Jones,Sarah

Munro,Sheila And Brian Atkinson,Miss Cherry Potter,Mr
Darron Callender,Mr Andrew Douthwaite,Mrs Janet
Douthwaite,Mrs Jackie McGibbon,Lee Halsteal,J] Wasley,Z
M Rea,Julie Parker,Miss Rosie Wardale,Mrs Angela
Wardale,Mr Roger Wardale,Mrs Vivienne Nicholson,Mrs
Gaynor Johnson,Miss P Simpson,Mrs C J Miers,The
Occupier,Hassan - Shoraka,N Abbey, T Jones,Karen

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 11



Horton,Miss Katy Sterriker,Mr Paul Kendrew,

Overall Expiry Date: 28 December 2014

SITE:

The application site is located within the identified development limits as shown on the Ryedale Local
Plan Map - adopted 2002. The frontage of the site is shown within the Town Centre Commercial Limits
and the entirety of the site is located within the designated Conservation Area.

Until recently, the eastern half of the rear of the site was occupied by the ATS tyre depot and its
associated raised hardstanding area. The ATS buildings have now been demolished and the site gives
open views to the rear boundary with the railway line. The River Derwent runs further to the north.
There is also a small disused electricity sub-station building in the north-east corner of the site which
will be removed as part of the development.

The site frontage with Commercial Street currently has a 13.6m wide open space, between shop units
and flats fronting Commercial Street. These are buildings of varying eaves and apex heights - apex
heights of the frontage building vary between 8.5, and 12.5m in height. The western site boundary
abuts No. 5 Commercial Street and other properties known locally as Buckrose Court. Elevations
showing the proportions and sections of the scheme in relation to the adjacent properties are appended
to this report.

Parts of the site are located in Flood Zones 2 and 3 and this is addressed later in this report.
PROPOSAL:

The proposed development is for a market-led scheme comprised mainly of apartments (37No. 1-bed
units and 20No. two-bed units) and also an attached terrace of 3No. 3-bed dwellings and 2No. four-bed
apartments/dwellings. There is also associated undercroft parking for 59No. vehicles and 41No.
bicycle storage spaces with 17No. surface parking spaces with associated communal areas and
landscaping. In addition, a single commercial (shop) unit is proposed at the frontage of the site with a
studio flat above.

The total number of residential units is sixty-three additional units and this gives rise to a requirement of
22.05 units of affordable accommodation based on a policy requirement of 35%. 18No. units are
proposed on site, comprised of 11No. 1-bed apartments and 7No. 1-bed apartments. A commuted sum
for the remainder is proposed.

The buildings are proposed to be constructed from a combination of predominantly clamp brick walls
and clay/plain tiles. It is considered, however, that the final choice of materials should be the subject of
a condition requiring the submission of samples to be agreed and sample panels to be constructed if
permission is granted.

The heights and proportions of the buildings varies markedly and is described below:-

e  3-bed terraced houses - Each unit 5 metres x 8.4 metres floor area with 5 metres eaves
and 8.5 metre apex

e 4-bed apartment/dwellings - Each unit 5.4 metres x 8 metres floor area

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 12



e | and 2-bedroomed apartments - Located in blocks up to 3.5-storeys with 8 metres eaves
and apex heights between 12.4 metres and 13 metres above
upper ground level as shown on the submitted plans

e Commercial Unit and Flat - Floor area of 4.7 metres x 5.87 metres with 5 metre eaves and
fronting Commercial Street 7.4 metre apex heights

The application is accompanied by a series of detailed technical reports which may be inspected on the
Council’s website.

Appended to this report, however, for Members information is the Planning Support Statement; Design
& Access Statement and Flood Risk Assessment; and a further letter from the agents dated 3 December
2014, setting out the changes to the scheme arising from consultation responses and officer
negotiations.

POLICY:

National Policy

National Planning Policy Framework 2012
National Planning Policy Guidance 2104

Ryedale Plan Local Plan Strategy 2013

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP7 - Town Centres and Retailing

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy

HISTORY:

Previous history relating to tyre depot which is not relevant to this scheme.
14/00697/FUL: Demolition of former ATS buildings - Approved
APPRAISAL:

The main considerations in relation to this application are:-

Principle of the development;

Layout, scale and design of the scheme;
Impact on the Conservation Area;

Impact on the amenity of adjoining properties;
Flood risk/drainage issues;

Highway safety/parking;

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 13



Noise;

Affordable Housing;

Other developer contributions; and
Archaeology.

Principle of development

The site is located within the development limits of Norton. Malton and Norton is the principle focus
for new residential development as identified in the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. The LPS seeks to
focus growth on the market towns. The proposal is consistent with the overall approach to development
set out in Policies SP1 and SP2 which seek to promote development in sustainable locations. This site
has direct access onto Commercial Street and is within walking distance of the railway station and bus
depot. It is also within walking distance of Malton town centre.

At present, the Council cannot demonstrate a 5-year supply of housing sites. This means that paragraph
49 of the NPPF is engaged and there is a presumption in favour of the grant of planning permission for
sustainable development. Para 14 also advises that proposals that accord with the development plan
should be approved without delay and where the development plan is out of date, granting permission.,
Para 17 also advises Local Planning Authorities to proactively support new development to deliver the
homes and business units that the county needs.

Notwithstanding the 5-year supply position, the site lies within the identified settlement limits and there
is no objection in principle to the re-development of this brownfield site.

Layout, scale and design of the proposed scheme

The proposed scheme has a vehicular access onto Commercial Street, previously used as the entrance to
the former ATS tyre fitting depot. The entrance to the site is currently a relatively an unattractive open
gap in an otherwise built-up street frontage.

The design promotes the construction of a small street front commercial unit with studio flat above in
order to ‘close up’ the streetscene at this point. A 5.5 metre wide vehicular access with single footway
is proposed to the eastern side of the shop unit which enters into the depth of the site to provide a turning
area for all vehicles, include both emergency and service vehicles, as well as normal residents and
visitors vehicles. A secondary pedestrian access is also shown on the amended plans which exits onto
Commercial Street via an existing alley wall to the south-western corner of the site.

The bulk of the scheme is comprised of 37No. one-bed apartments, 20No. two-bed apartments, with
3No. 3-bedroom dwellings and 2No. four-bed apartment/dwellings. The units are provided with a
significant area of undercroft parking at basement level with a smaller number of spaces at surface
level. Each of the dwellings is provided with a small self-contained curtilge. The apartments are set in
a courtyard layout with areas of communal space to the front and rear.

The buildings are comprised of a variety of heights and scales as set out earlier in this report. It is of
note, however, that the taller elements of the scheme are set to the sides and rear of the site where they
are reasonably well screened by other existing taller buildings on Commercial Street frontage and
Buckrose Court. There are limited views from the north because of the presence of the railway line and
river and limited public access at that point.

Whilst this is a high density scheme comprised of buildings up to 3%2-storey in height, it is set in a town
centre location and close to other buildings, some of which area of similar height. The layout, design
and scale of the scheme is considered to be generally appropriate to this town centre, urban location.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 14



Impact on the Conservation Area

Notwithstanding the current appearance of the site, it is all located within the designated Conservation
Area. The Local Planning Authority therefore has a duty under S72 of The Planning Listed Buildings
and Conservation Area Act 1990 to ensure that any development preserves or enhances the character of
the designated area.

In this case, the scheme has been amended from a pre-application proposal to promote the introduction
of a small commercial unit and flat on the Commercial Street frontage in order to close-up an
unattractive gap on the Commercial Street frontage. This is considered to represent a significant
enhancement to the character of the Conservation Area. The detail of the scheme in the depth of the site
has also been amended to set a general reduction in the height of the tallest buildings and to provide
more interest in the design of the scheme throughout. Further amended plans have been received which
are currently being appraised by the Building Conservation Officer. Any further comments and
responses will be reported on the late pages or at Committee.

Impact on adjoining property

Members will be aware that the site is located adjacent to the buildings on Commercial Street. It is
close to Buckrose Court and other properties on the street frontage. At their closest point, the buildings
near the western boundary (the 3No. bedroomed two-storey dwellings) are between 11 metres and 12
metres away from the adjoining properties with a side-to-rear relationship. The scheme has been
amended in this area of the site in order to address a dispute over the extent of the site boundary red-line
and also to ensure that a reasonable level of amenity is provided for both existing and future residents.
The adjacent site to the east is a large area of undeveloped land which sits at a generally lower level.
The adjacent land is all located in Flood Zone 3 and the nearest other properties to the east are in
Wallgates Lane, varying between 60 to 80 metres from the boundary of the site. There are no other
properties to the north or the south of the site that are considered to be adversely affected by the scheme.

Flood Risk and Drainage

A small section of the site in the north-western corner is located in Flood Zone 3. A Flood Risk
Assessment has, however, been submitted as part of the application because it is categorised as a Major
application. The FRA contains a sequential assessment and exception test and this has been considered
by officers and the Environment Agency. The Environment Agency raise no objection, but conditions
are recommended if planning permission is granted for the scheme, these include finished floor levels
and other resilience measures; scheme for sustainable drainage to be agreed (including limiting run-off
rates) and mitigation of any contaminates found.

Yorkshire Water had advised that the proposed drainage arrangements are now acceptable subject to
conditions.

Highway Safety/Parking Issues

Members will note that a significant number of third party concerns have been raised in respect of
highway safety and parking. Indeed, NYCC Highways had also raised concerns about the levels of
parking proposed on site and other detailed matters relating to access.

Amended plans have been submitted which increase the levels of on-site parking to 76No. in total on the
site, 17No. at surface level and 59No. in the undercroft parking area. In addition, 41No. lockable bike
spaces are shown in the undercroft parking together with a cycle store for each of the dwellinghouses on
the site. It is understood that these plans satisfy the requirements of NYCC Highways. Written
confirmation is, however, awaited and this will be reported to Members on the late pages or to
Committee.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 15



Noise

A noise survey has been submitted with the application. However, a further appraisal regarding noise
has been requested by the Council’s Environmental Health Officer following the demolition of the
former tyre depot buildings on the site. Members will be appraised of the further views of the Council’s
Environmental Health Officer on the late pages or at Committee.

Affordable Housing

Members will appreciate that the application is now being promoted as a market housing scheme.
Policy SP3 requires that 35% on-site provision is made as part of such schemes, which will require
22No. units to be affordable. In this case, the applicants are proposing to offer 11No. one-bedroomed
apartments and 7No. two-bedroomed apartments on site. These are located in the same block for ease
of management purposes for a Registered Provider. The remaining four units are proposed to be offered
as a commuted sum. In principle, this is considered to be acceptable by the Council’s Housing
Manager. However, the detailed comments relating to tenure and size of the units and the level of the
commuted sum have yet to be agreed.

Other development contributions
There is a further requirement for an off-site contribution towards Public Open Space of £79,500 in
accordance with Policy SP11 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

A contribution towards education provision will also be required. The final response from NYCC
Education is awaited specifying this figure. These, together with the on and off-site affordable housing
provision, these will need to be secured by a Section 106 Agreement.

Archaeology
The site is an area of known archaeological importance and a pre-determination excavation has already

been carried out. The developer has submitted a proposed mitigation strategy following the results of
the trail trenching which recommends an open area excavation in advance of contributions. The final
comments of the NYCC Heritage Unit is awaited.

A number of third party comments have been received which are set out below.

The initial comments from Norton Town Council to the original scheme recommended objection to the
scheme for the following reasons:-

Concern over building heights and impact on the Conservation Area and adjacent property;

Not in keeping with commercial nature of Commercial Street;

Insufficient parking - should be at least 1 to 1 ratio;

Possible congestion at access point and possible safety issues;

Flooding - much of the site is within Flood Zones 2 and 3 further safety issues and cars trapped in
undercroft.

Members will be aware that the scheme has been amended and it is understood that the amended plans
will be re-considered by Norton Town Council on 8 December 2014. Members will be appraised of any
further comments received at the meeting or via the late pages.

Third Parties
15No. Objection letters raising some or all of the following points:-

Concern over scale of the scheme - out of character with the Conservation Area;
Additional noise and disturbance;

Concerns re infrastructure;

Increased traffic and congestion;

Possible anti-social behaviour/increase in crime;

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 16



Impact on surgery;

Adverse impact on on-street parking on Commercial Street;

Encroachment on property owned by others;

Additional overlooking;

Loss of daylight; and

Potential adverse impact on other potential future development on land to the east.

._
~
Z
)

. letters of Support:

Will get rid of heavy lorries that previously went to the ATS yard;

Town needs new investment, jobs and homes;

More trade for local businesses will arise from increased number of residents;
Access to existing commercial premises at the rear will become possible;

Site is an eyesore - this will be a key improvement;

Ideal for younger people to get onto property ladder;

Excellent use of a brownfield site; and

Scale of buildings in keeping with those around.

Further re-consultation has taken place in respect of the amended information and plans received on 3
December 2014. Members will be updated on any further responses received.

RECOMMENDATION: Recommendation Pending for final responses from
outstanding consultees

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 17



Pumping Station

S : REVI"SED P-L_AN
v //

//

\

8
=
</

b’

aﬂ"’:’w ‘

L i A D

THIS CTAFY HAD BEEN MADE W% O WITTH The 00 HORITY O RYENSLEL
FIFS TR T §ERANDNL MEIRISUAMNT TOV5ET THOS A7 OF ThHE O wﬁmkjﬂ T MIaNS
AMD FATENTS AUT| 108, GINCEYS THAT AT 'pnm'u,jl._{;_a-.r{#w@u
ERCBPTION- 60 OPY RIGHE. THE ColY MUST NOT B ﬁ‘!ﬂf_]‘u wiliphitiT

THE PRIOR r_{_,tmﬁlnu OF THE £ OFYRIGHT _:Mwiéi‘, | ot

MR PAUL SEDMAN

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
ATS TYRE SITE, COMMERCIAL STREET, NORTON

YEW-277-015A LOCATION PLAN
MAY 13 SCALE 1:1250 @ A4

PLANNING ARCHITECTURE. INTERIDRS. . LANDSCAPE

The Chicory Barn Studia,
The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Staraford Bridge,
York, The Hast Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 LHU

Telephone 01759 3.'{ 3656 Fax 01759 371810
Emailchicorybarn@the pdp.co.uk www.thepdp.co.uk

Page 18



20 S10-L.2-M3A
| ONINNVId  w=s

O w v @ 002k o,
o SLHOBVN  wmo

NV1d 3.1IS a3SOdOHd
Buime.C

NOLHON 'L33HLS TVIOHINWOO LIS FHAL SLV
1NINdOTIAIA TVILNIAISIH A3SOdoHd

ooy

NVINQ3S nvd HN

wein

L i P

P R T e
OI81L€ 65L10X2] 969€L¢ 6610 2uoydap .

SO JO BUIPRY ¥ I | WHOX
] J00j ‘SpreAPRE PIO M|
‘opmg useg A1091) |

‘NHI TFOA
‘aBpug paoju

AdVOSANV T SHONEAINI FUNLOALIHONV "ONINNVId

QySIaUIID] UBISo(] &y SUIUUD]] Y]

111 N S0V 5059 MO 00V SIIVAS ENDIIVA WNGILIOOY (9134741 Y ATH

NV'Id

Fr—

o e 0 8| VR, AU AL Y R A0 5 b o e

-z
681 LoV TIVALALEVA 2HL

epen

1661 LV SNOLLINDSIOSII ALESION
‘SESVHONIESTION O ONINEVAL

[rpeu—r——————

aoNasva




— NV 1d d45IATd

TLEIDE cBLERR] BSSEL{ A5LIG MOy

(E B, Py, Bnpry s g “any,
iy P e g P L
orpeg g Sy L

SRR TN T L YL

e N el S

Page 20




CNINNY T
¥ - R e
- o
NYld HOO T4 ONNOED dIS0d0Md
oo

WO |3 TSNS LS TEL L SaY

ANINAS0TINID TVILNIDISIY OIS 00
omy

A —"
iiiii




WO |3 TSNS LS TEL L SaY
ANINAS0TINID TVILNIDISIY OIS 00

omy

ok

ek A —"
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL a5 L0 Ty

112 BB, "oy, k) Baipry g uy) gy,

g P vy Pz O L
o g Sy myy

SRR TN T L YL

TR IR A PUNEP ST

v
.. pp—

NV 1d QaSIATY




EL SLOLLZMIA

| DNNNY o
¥y - R e
- o

WO |3 TSNS LS TEL L SaY
ANINAS0TIAID TVILNIDISIY OIS 00

e | —

NVING3S NV BN

-

ek b
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL G500 Ty

Y2 EBCH, "I, iy Bnipry e g gy,

iy Py P P e

rpang g sy

SRR TN T L YL

T O] & iy sy

v
... ppp—

NV'1d ddSIAHY

AN
A -

Page




NVING3S NV BN

ek A —"
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL a5 L0 Ty

112 BB, "oy, k) Baipry g uy) gy,
puyy P gy S PO =L

NV 1d QASIATY




€0 SIO-LZ-MIA
| MY e

8 - R

- o
T40 | g
SNOLLYAS TS 3LIS 038040t

MO LR TN TS JEL L Sy

ANINAS0TINID TVILNIDISIY OIS 00

NVIHOIS NV BN

-

by o 4
TLEIDE cBLERR] BSSEL{ A5LIG MOy

1H2 BB, "y, i) Bpry s sy geay,

Spuy g o sy g P
S -y

[ETSURIEN SRSy i

NV'1d A4SIAHY

NOLLYAZTE H1HOM

NOILVAZT3 LS3m

NOILLYAZT3 1SV3

Page 25



S0 SLO-LIZ-MIA .
DY -

B R
= R -
T4o F jeayg

SNOLLYAS TS 3LIS 038006

-

MO LR TN TS JEL L Sy

PSR S NV'1d A4SIAHY

-

Page 26



CNINNY T

g8 - CX J e

- . -
£10 | jmayg
ENOILYAT 1S 03800t

N 13 FHR TV NGO TS A SiY
i‘iif
omy

NVIHOIS NV BN
el

A ——— A —"
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL a5 L0 Ty

IH2 DR, ey k) Bnpry g ) "y,

Spuy P gy S P L
S -y

SRR TN T L YL

s, Bt e

Page 27




B - R
- N -
€10 E g
ENOILVAT 1S 03800t
o=

WO |3 TSNS LS TEL L SaY

ANINAS0TINID TVILNIDISIY OIS 00
omy

NVIHOIS NV BN

-

A ——— A —"
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL a5 L0 Ty

IH2 DR, ey k) Bnpry g ) "y,
Spuy P gy S P L
S -y

SRR TN T L YL

. ey

s, Bt e
[ETSURIEN SRSyt

i
o e v s e b ab v Cmr 1 BAT

NOLLWATTI 15v3
9 HOLLYAITR

NV'1d A4SIAHY

Page 28



g8 - B BWE
g i -
£ 10 ¢ ayg
SNOILYAI A 038004

NI L % TWI0 NGO TS FEA L SiY
INTWSOTIAID TVILNOIS M OFS040MA

o

NVIHOIS NV BN

-

Anrdpdangose o dp o oy
GUEITE cELEI TN SEAEL a5 L0 Ty

IH2 DR, ey k) Bnpry g ) "y,
g P vy Pz O L
oqpeag g ki mpy

SRR TN T L YL

NV'1d A451IAHY

Page 29



YEW TR{E ASSOCIATES

LAND, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS

SUPPORTING PLANNING STATEMENT
FOR
THE ERECTION OF RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
AT
THE LAND AT THE REAR OF 5-17 COMMERCIAL STREET
NORTON
FOR -8 DEC 200

MR P SEDMAN

4.9.14

L]

L]

Yiw TRl ASSOCIATES PIRICcTOR :—'_" RTPI
v
¢

Pantsin

Page 30




Contents

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6

7i

Introduction

Site Location and Description
Proposals

Planning Policy

Key Issues

Other Material Considerations
Conclusions

Page 31



2,
2.1

2.2

.

Introduction

This statement provides support for a Detailed Planning Application for residential development
on land to the rear of 5 — 17 Commercial Street, Norton, Malton, North Yorkshire and should be
read in conjunction with the Design and Access Statement prepared by The Planning and Design
Partnership.

Site Location and Description
The site is roughly rectangular in shape and is some 0.4952 ha (1.224 acres) in area and it lies
to the north of Commercial Street, Norton to the rear of No.s 5 to 17 Commercial Street.

The site comprises two parts. The first being the premises of the former ATS tyre depot to the
east which includes two workshops on the northern and eastern boundaries with associated hard
standing to the front. The second is land to the west and to the rear of No.s 5 to 15 Commercial
Street, which includes a garden area of the adjacent properties together with a now cleared area
of previously self-planted shrubs. The site is bounded to the north by the York Scarborough
railway line, to the west by residential development, to the south by a row of terraced properties
in a mix of commercial and residential uses and the east by partly commercial properties, but
mainly scrubland. The whole site is shown edged red on Fig. 1 below,

The Application Site.

Proposals
The proposal is for the erection of residential development of 62 dwellings comprising the
following accommodation schedule:-

Schedule of Accommodation

AFFORDABLE RENTAL (45 No. UNITS)

28 No. 1 BED APARTMENTS (UNITS 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 13, 14, 15, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 32, 33, 34, 39,
40, 41, 42, 43, 48, 49, 50, 53, 54, 60, 61)

15 No. 2 BED APARTMENTS (UNITS 3, 4, 16, 17, 21, 22, 35, 36, 37, 38, 51, 52, 55, 56, 59)

Page 32




4.2

4.3

44

-3-

LOCAL AUTHORITY INDEPENDENT LIVING (2 No. UNITS)
2 No. 4 BED TOWNHOUSE (UNITS 1, 2)

PRIVATE RENTAL (17 No. UNITS)

8 No. 1 BED APARTMENTS (UNITS 11, 12, 28, 31, 44, 46, 47)
5 No. 2 BED APARTMENTS (UNITS 10, 29, 45, 57, 58)

3 No. 3 BED TOWNHOUSE (UNITS 18, 19, 20)

1 No. 1 BED STUDIO

TOTAL 62 UNITS

(See the following drawings submitted with the application:-

YEW-277-015 LOCATION PLAN

YEW-277-015 01  EXISTING SITE PLAN

YEW-277-015 02  PROPOSED SITE PLAN

YEW-277-015 03  PROPOSED SITE ELEVATIONS AND VIEWS (Sheet 1 of 2)
YEW-277-015 05  PROPOSED SITE ELEVATIONS AND VIEWS (Sheet 2 of 2)
YEW-277-015 06  ELEVATIONS (Sheet 1 of 3)

YEW-277-015 07  ELEVATIONS (Sheet 2 of 3)

YEW-277-015 08  ELEVATIONS (Sheet 3 of 3)

YEW-277-015 10  BASEMENT PLAN

YEW-277-015 11  PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN

YEW-277-015 12 PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

YEW-277-015 13  PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN

YEW-277-015 14  PROPOSED THIRD FLOOR LOFT PLAN

Planning Policy
The main issue in respect of the proposal is whether the principle of development is acceptable
from a planning standpoint and to determine this we turn to the Planning Acts,

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states "if regard is to be had
to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the planning
Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material considerations
indicate ctherwise”, The development plan for the Ryedale District comprises the policies in The
Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy (adopted on 5th September 2013).

It's relevant policies are as follows:-

The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy 2013

Policy SP1- General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP 17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Palicy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Develcpment
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

In addition and of equal relevance is the Government’s National Planning Paolicy Guidance, the
relevant paragraphs and references of which are:-

ransporting
Paragraphs 47, 49, 50 Delivering a wide choice of High Quality Homes
Paragraphs 56, 60, 61 and 65 Requiring Good Design

Page 33




4.5

51

511

wilf=

Paragraphs 94 and 95 Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal Change
Paragraphs 109 - 125 Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Paragraph 159 Plan Making

Paragraphs 186, 187, 196 and 197 Decision-Taking

Paragraphs 210 - 216 (inclusive) Annex 1

The Council's Malton and Norton River Rail Corridor Study is also relevant and to which reference
will be made later.

Key Issues

Whilst the application is only in outline with siting design and access under consideration, we
believe that it is worth considering also at this stage, the following key issues when assessing
this proposal. These are therefore:-

1. Sustainable Development

2. The Principle of i

3. The Provision of Affordable Housing

4, Siting, Scale, Design and Effect Upon the Character of the Area
5. Impact on Heritage Assets

6. Flood Risk, Drainage and Climate Change

7. Impact on Highways

8. Residential Amenity

9. Noise from Adjacent Uses

10. Public Open Space

11. Impact on Nature Conservation and Protected Species
78

13. Ground Conditions

14, Trees

To take each in turn:-

Sustainable Development

A number of references are made to the presumption in favour of sustainable development in
the NPPF,

In the Ministerial Forward it states that:-

‘Development that is sustainabie should go ahead, without delay — a presumption in favour of
sustainable development that is the basis for every plan, and every decision.”

and at Paragraph 14 states:-

‘At the nmamemmwmw Policy Framework is a presumption hkmdw

of their area;

eelocal Plans should meet objectively assessed needs, with sufficient flexibility to adapt to rapid
change, unless:

—any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
mmwmmmmmmﬁam or

Page 34




51.2

513

514

5.1.5

5.1.6

o mmmmsmwm«mmmmdm grmmg
permission unless:

—any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits,
when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or

—specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted. *
7 (Our emphasis)
For example, those policies relating to sites protected under the Birds and Habitats Directives (see paragraph 119) andor designated

as Stes of Speocal Scentific Interest; land designated as Green Belt, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty,
WMamammrmmmm; designated heritage assets; and locations at risk of flooding or

m:a

At paragraph 17 under the heading 'Core Planning Principles’ the document sets out 12 planning
principles of which the following is particularly relevant namely:-

In addition, at paragraph 49 it states that:-

‘99, Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development....)

The document continues a paragraph 50:-

eeplan for @ mix of housing based on current and future demographic trends, mmm
the needs of different groups in the community (such as, but not limited to, families with children,

older people, people with disabilities,....)’
(Our emphasis)

Paragraph 50 is reinforced at paragraph 159 under the heading 'Plan Making — Housing’ where
it states:-

‘159, mmmmmm:mmwmmuasmmmm

mmmmmmﬁuuxmmm families with children, older
people, people with disabilities, service families and people wishing to build their own homes),
and

—caters for housing demand and the scale of housing supply necessary to meet this demand,...”
(Our emphasis)

We find further support for the proposal at paragraph 187 which states:-

Page 35




517

5.1.8

519

-

possible. Local planning authorities should work proactively with applicants to secure

developments that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions a{'&:mum)
is

and at paragraph 197 under the heading "Determining applications we find further support as
follows:-

'197 ;nmgmmwmmm local planning authorities should
i 2lopmen - .
In The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy at Paragraph 1.2 of the Introduction to the plan states:-

'1.2 The purpose of the Ryedale Plan is tD encourage

MMWMMMMMMaWInBWH
(Our emphasis)

and at Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy it states:-
5?1 thdwwmmwy

sustainable development.’

mrm Hmwyfa:l.mb'm

* Malton and Norton (including Old Malton®)
______ In allocating and releasing development sites at the above locations:

" the use of deliverable and developable Brownfield land will be prioritised and development will
be guided to areas with lowest flood risk, taking account of the vuinerability of types of
development and the need to achieve sustainable development and in accordance with the
requirements of the Government's latest flooding guidance
Additionally as part of the site selection process, the Local Planning Authority have regard fo the
Mmmmmdmamwmm

* deliver against the Objectives and Folicies of the Plan, policy standards and Communily
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) requirements

* support access on foot to centrally located shops, services and facilities

* be compatible with neighbouring land uses

* avoid adverse impacts on interests of acknowledged importance

* be accommodated without detriment to the character of the settiement and its setting

- satisfactorily address highway capacity and safety’

(Our emphasis)

Further palicy support is found at Policy SP19 'Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’
which states:-

‘When considering development proposals the Council will take & positive approach that reflects
the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which mean
that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that improves the
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area.

Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant, with
mmmmm; will be approved without delay, unless material considerations

MMMmmmmMWNMMWMNMNM
time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission uniess material considerations
indicate otherwise - taking into account whether:

Page 36




5.1.10

52

b |

5.2.2

5.23

L

= Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework taken as
a whole; or Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted.’

We submit that the site is in a sustainable location and therefore meets the reguirements of the
Ryedale Local Plan and NPPF.

at paragraph 47 that:-

eeuse their evidence base to ensure that their Local Plan meets the full, objectively assessed
needs for market and affordable housing in the housing market area, as far as is consistent with
the policies set out in this Framework, including identifying key sites which are critical to the
Mdmmwmﬂzmm

mmmmm:mwmmwwm bu'pbmm
authorities should increase the buffer to 20% (moved forward from later in the plan period) to
provide a realistic prospect of achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and competition
in the market for land;

eeidentify a supply of specific, developable sites or broad locations for growth, for years 6-10
and, mmm for years 11-15;

FLlr Mnmmmxdn‘wmcm
mmmmmuhmmmmmwmmsmmmm
will not be implemented within five years, for example they will not be viable, there is ne longer 2 demand for the type of units or
sites have long term phasing plans.

(Our emphasis)

The Council have only recently confirmed that they have a demonstrable 5-year supply of housing
sites. However to maintain this position the Council will require a continuing supply of housing
sites particularly as it appears that the housing market is gaining momentum again. We submit
therefore that in the light of this position and that which will explain later in this statement is that
there is an overriding case for granting planning permission.

Turning to The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy we find support at Policy SP1 under the heading
General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy where it states that:-

SP 1 General Location of Development and Seltlerent Hierarchy
Ryedale’s future development requirements will be distributed and accommodated on the basis
of the following hierarchy of settlements:
Principal Town - Primary Focus for Growth
* Malton and Nerton (including Old Malton*)
Local Service Centres (Market Towns) — Secondary Focus for Growth
* Pickering
* Kirkbymoorside
(Our emphasis)

Page 37



524

525

526

527

5.3

531

-8-

Policy SP2 also supports the proposal as under the heading Delivery and Distribution of New
Housing states that:-

'SP 2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

The delivery of at least 3000 (net) new homes will be managed over the period 2012-2027. The
sources of new housing that will contribute to the supply of new homes across the District are as
follows:

mm mwmmmmmmmmm

: : ing Dl
- Infill Development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage)

- 100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with SP3.
* Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where

W_
Pickering, Kirkbymoorside,
Helmsley, Service Villages
- As above...”
(Our emphasis)
and at paragraph 4.34 under the heading Type and Mix of New Housing the plan states:-

¢34 WMNMWMMMMBmmWW

and policy SP4 follows:-

'SP 4 Type and mix of new housing
Increased housing choice and high quality housing will be provided through :
mmm

* The re-use of empty properties
*Imwmwmm ‘

(Our emphasis)

The proposed site lies in the town of Norton which is identified as a Principle Town with Malton
where a significant proportion of new development is to be located and the scheme proposed
will provide an appropriate mix and choice of housing. We submit therefore that the proposal
accords with policies SP1, SP2 and SP4 of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy and advice in

Policy SP16 of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy states:-

‘Development proposals will be expected to create high quaiity durable places that are accessible,
* Reinforce local distinctiveness
* Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily

navigated
- Protect amenity and promote well-being

Page 38




53.2

s

To reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, layout, scale and detailed design of
mmmmmmmwumm

* Topography and landform that shape the form and structure of settlements in the landscape

* The structure of towns and villages formed by street patterns, routes, public spaces, rivers and
becks. The medieval street patterns and historic cores of Malton, Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and
Helmsley are of particular significance and medieval two row villages with back lanes are typical
in Ryedale

* The grain of the settlements, influenced by street blocks, plot sizes, the orientation of buildings,
boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and scale of buildings

* The character and appearance of open space and green spaces including existing Visually
Important Undeveloped Areas (VIUAs) or further VIUAs which may be designated in the Local
Plan Sites Document or in a Neighbourhood Plan. Development proposals on land designated as
a VIUA will only be permitted where the benefits of the development proposed significantly
outweigh the loss or damage to the character of the settlement

- Views, vistas and skylines that are provided and framed by the above and/or influenced by the
position of key historic or landmark buildings and structures

- The type, texture and colour of materials, quality and type of building techniques and elements
of architectural detail

mmdmmmwmumm

* Incorporate appropriate hard and soft landscaping features to enhance the setting of the
development and/or space

* Contribute to a safe and well connected public realm by respecting and incorporating routes,
public spaces which are safe and easy to use and move through by all members of the
W-wwmaymmuwnmwmmwgmmmm
* Reduce crime and the fear of crime through the careful design of buildings and spaces - Provide,
where appropriate, active and interesting public frontages, clearly defined public spaces and
secure private spaces

* Make efficient use of land and to be built at a density which is appropriate to its surrounding
context. In general new housing development should not be built below an indicative density of
30 awellings to the hectare unless this can be justified in terms of the surrounding context

* Proposals for major development will be expected to include a statement identifying the waste
implications of the development and measures taken to minimise and manage waste generated

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy
states:-

‘Character

New development will respect the character and context of the immediate locality and the wider
landscape/townscape character in terms of physical features and the type and variety of existing
uses proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing ambience of the immediate
locality and the surrounding area and with neighbouring land uses and would not prejudice the
continued operation of existing neighbouring land uses

The cumulative impact of new development on the character of an area will also be considered
Design

The design of new development will follow the principles established in Policy SP16. Extensions
or alterations to existing buildings will be appropriate and sympathetic to the character and
appearance of the existing building in terms of scale, form, and use of materials

Amenity and Safety

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future
occupants, mmwmwmwmmam wider community
by virtue of its design, use, location and proximily to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity
can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be
an overbearing presence

Page 39



533

53.4

5.3.5

5.36

54

541

542

7

Developers will be expected to apply the highest standards outlined in the World Health
Organisation, British Standards and wider international and national standards relating to noise
New development proposals which will result in an unacceptable risk to human life, health and
safety or unacceptable risk to property will be resisted. Developers will be expected to address
the risks/potential risks posed by contamination and/or unstable land in accordance with
All sensitive receptors will be protected from land and other contamination. Developers will be
expected lo assess the risks/ potential risks posed by contamination in accordance with
recognised national and international standards and guidance’

We submit that the proposal that the proposal meets all the requirements of the above criteria
and some weight should be attached to these policies as they are broadly consistent with the
aims of the NPPF.

The NPPF paragraph 56 states the Government attaches great importance to the design of the
built environment. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from
good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.

Paragraphs 60, 61 and 65 of the NPPF make it clear that decisions should not attempt to impose
architectural styles or particular tastes and should not stifle innovation, originality or initiative
through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or styles, should
address the connections between people and places and the integration of new development into
the natural, built and historic environment and proposals should not be refused for buildings
which promote high levels of sustainability because of concerns about incompatibility with an
existing townscape, if those concerns have been mitigated by good design.

The Design and Access Statement and associated drawings submitted with the application should
be referred to here as it explains and justifies the scheme in design terms. We believe that the
proposed scheme is considered not to have a detrimental adverse effect on "the character and
form of the area by virtue of its design, layout, scale, external appearance and landscaping. We
submit that the proposed scheme therefore complies with and the policies of The Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy and advice given in NPPF.

Impact on Heritage Assets

The application site is located within Norton Conservation Area. Whilst in considering proposals
which affect conservation areas regard is to be made to 572 (1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas Act) 1990 which states that with respect to any buildings or other land
in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Policy C1 of the Ryedale Local Plan is also relevant and requires new development to be of a high
standard of design and to respect and maintain the character and appearance of the Conservation
Area. In support of the application a Heritage Statement within the Archaeological Desk Based
Assessment by MAP has been submitted which outlines the heritage asset’s significance as the
proposed development being located within the Norton Conservation Area. The Heritage
Statement is included in the Design and Access Statement by The Planning and Design
Partnership and provides the details of how the Heritage Asset will be affected and justifies the
proposed design,

We submit that the proposed scheme is justified and the proposal is considered to be acceptable
in terms of scale, form, position, design, detailing and materials. The proposal is considered to
have a negligible impact on the nearby Listed Buildings and Scheduled Ancient Monument and
there will be negligible effect on the Norton-on-Derwent Conservation Area as the Proposed
Development is located behind the street frontage on Commercial Street. We consider therefore

Page 40




5.5
55.1

5.5.2

5.6.3

5.6.4

-11-

that the proposal is considered to accord with Policies H7 and C1 of the Ryedale Local Plan and
the advice contained within the NPPF.

The NPPF paragraph 94 states that local planning authorities should adopt proactive strategies
to mitigate and adapt to climate change, taking full account of flood risk, coastal change and
water supply and demand considerations. NPPF Paragraph 95 states to support the move to a
low carbon future, local planning authorities should plan for new development in locations and
ways which reduce greenhouse gas emissions; actively support energy efficiency improvements
to existing buildings.

Policy SP17 (Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources) of The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan
Strategy states:-

‘Land resources will be protected and improved by:

* Supporting new uses for land which is contaminated or degraded where an appropriate scheme
of remediation and restoration is agreed and in place

* Prioritising the use of previously developed land and protecting the best and most versatile
agricultural land from irreversible loss. New land allocations will be planned to avoid and minimise
the loss of the Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land. Proposals for major development coming
forward on sites that are not allocated for development which would result in the loss of the Best
and Most Versatile Agricultural Land will be resisted unless it can be demonstrated that the use
proposed cannot be located elsewhere and that the need for the development outweighs the loss
of the resource
Flood risk will be managed by:
* Requiring the use of sustainable drainage systems and technigues, where technically feasible,
to promote groundwater recharge and reguce flood risk. Development proposals will be expected
to attenuate surface water run off to the rates recommended in the Strategic Fiood Risk
Assessment. In addition, major development proposals within areas highlighted as having critical
drainage problems in the North East Yorkshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (or future
updates) as Critical Drainage Areas may, if appropriate, be required to demonstrate that the
development will not exacerbate existing problems by modelling impact on the wider drainage
system

* Ensuring new development does not prevent access to water courses for the maintenance of
flood defences

- Undertaking a risk based sequential approach to the allocation of land for new development
and in the consideration of development proposals in order to guide new development to areas
with the lowest probability of flooding, whilst taking account of the need lo regenerate vacant
and previously developed sites within the towns. In considering development proposals or the
allocation of land, full account will be taken of the flood risk vuinerability of proposed uses and
the national ‘Exception Test’ will be applied if required”

The application site is located in Flood Zones 2 and 3 as shown on the Environment Agency's
Flood Map for Malton and Norton which is at a medium and high probability of flooding and as
such as such a Flood Risk Assessment, Sequential and Exception Tests has been prepared in
accordance with NPPF to accompany the planning application. This confirms that this site is
suitable for residential use with an acceptable flood risk.

We understand that there is adequate capacity in both the foul and surface water sewers in the
area and that an adequate water supply is also available. The development will be connected to
the mains sewer with surface water directed to a soakaway and/or attenuated to agricultural
flows before discharge from the site.

Page 41




5435

5.6
5.6.1

5.6.2

563

5.64

56.6

586.7

57
574

5.7.2

5.7.3

= r 2

We submit therefore that the site can be developed with an acceptable risk of flooding and can
be satisfactorily drained and is therefore considered acceptable and in accordance with Policy
SP17 of the Ryedale Plan and the guidance in NPPF.

Impact on Highways
Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management [ssues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy
states:-

Access to and movement within the site by vehides, cydes and pedestrians wouwld not have a
detrimental impact on road safety, traffic movement or the safely of pedestrians and cydiists.
Information will be required in terms of the positioning and treatment of accesses and circulation
routes, including how these relate to surrounding footpaths and roads’

These Local Plan policies should be afforded weight as they are broadly consistent with the aims
of the NPPF.

In addition with respect to parking, paragraph 39 of the NPPF states that when setting local
parking standards for residential and non-residential development, local planning authorities
should take into account the accessibility of the development; the type, mix and use of
development; the availability of and opportunities for public transport; local car ownership levels;
and an overall need to reduce the use of high emission vehicles.

Norton is considered to be a settlement which is capable of accommodating additional residential
growth and as such it is considered to be a sustainable location with access to a range of services
and facilities. The dwellings would be served from the existing access on to Commercial Street
which is acceptable in highway terms by Stephen Boyne of North Yorkshire Highways. Adeguate
parking provision has also been provided for within the site.

The site is also close to the town centre where aptions for access and travel other than by means
of private car are available to occupiers of the dwellings as well as their visitors.

We submit that the proposal is will not adversely impact on the highway network either from an
access or parking standpoint and therefore consider that the proposal is acceptable as it accords
with policies SP20 of The Ryedale Local Plan- The Local Plan Strategy and Paragraph 39 of the
NPPF.

One of the core planning principles set out in Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that planning
should always seek a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings.

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy
states:-

L7

. Amenity and Safety

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future
occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community
by virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity
can include, for example, noise, dust. odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be
an overbearing presence’

Suitable standoff distances are achieved in respect of all the dwellings with no overlooking issues.
The proposed development is therefore considered not to cause a significant detrimental impact

Page 42




5.8
581

5.9

591

592

593

=13+

on the residential amenities of the neighbouring properties in accordance with Policy SP20
(Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan and the NPPF.

Noise from Adjacent Uses

A full acoustic report has been prepared by Dragonfly Acoustics Ltd and is submitted with the
planning application. This shows that there are no unacceptable noise issues which would affect
the proposed scheme providing minimal mitigation measures are employed such as acoustic
glazing within the most vulnerable units.

Affordable Housing
Policy SP3 (Affordable Housing) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy states:-

'‘Where local need exists, the Local Planning Authority will seek the provision of new affordable
hamﬁby:

Negotiating with developers and landowners to secure a proportion of new housing
development to be provided as affordable units

* Supporting Registered Social Landlords in bringing forward wholly affordable schemes within
Ryedale’s towns and villages

* Supporting in principle, the release of ‘Rural Exception Sites”
Affordable homes will also be provided in conjunction with landlords through the purchase and
repair of existing dwellings, alterations and improvements to the existing affordable housing stock
and through the re-use of empty homes.

Affordable Housing from Developer Contributions
mmmmmammaﬁ

further 5% of provision as part of developments of 5 dwellings or 0.2ha or more in West and
South West Ryedale* (including Ampleforth, Helmsley**, Hovingham and Sheriff Hutton)’
Where the on-site contribution does not equate precisely to whole numbers of units, equivalent
financial contributions will be sought.
Below the threshold of 5 dwellings/0.2 ha, a pro-rated financial contribution will be sought from
all new residential development, where this is viable.

(Our emphasis)

Whilst the application is in outline form the indicative scheme submitted with the application can
accommodate some 62No dwellings and as such there is a requirement for 22No dwellings (35%).
However, the scheme proposed includes only 17 open market properties, thereby providing 45
affordable units, which equates to an affordable housing provision of some 73%.

We find support for the affordable house type provision in the North Yorkshire Strategic Market
Housing Assessment which states:-

‘Future Need for Affordable Housing

1.36 If North Yorkshire were to meet the needs of all households who cannot afford to buy or
privately rent a home on the open market’® it would have to deliver 2,808 affordable dwellings
(excluding Selby) each year over the next 5 years. This is shown in the table below.

Figure 10: Net Annual Affordable Housing Need (Next 5 Years) — North Yorkshire

Net Annual Affordable Housing Need — North Yorkshire & Local Authorities

Craven Hambieton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough City of York Nth Yorkshire )
(Total,

218 320 507 260 256 457 790 2,808

Page 43




59.4

5.10
5.10.1

5.10.2

511

5111

5.11.2

-14-
Source: North Yorkstire SHMA, 2011

1.37 In particular, there is currently a shortfall in smaller 1 and 2 bedroom and larger 4 or more
bedroom affordable properties across North Yorkshire. The shortage of these property types is
making it harder for the authorities of North Yorkshire to meet the housing needs of households
who cannot afford to buy or privately rent a home on the open market.’

(Our emphasis)

We therefore submit that the proposed affordable housing proposed within the scheme will meet
the requirements of Policy SP3 of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

Public Open Space
Policy SP11 (Community Facilities and Services Provision) of the Ryedale Plan states:-

‘Proposals for the provision of new community facilities or serviges will be supported in principle
as follows:

Malton and Norton;

M‘ m‘ g. && mm'g-

Helmsley

Sites allocated for such uses or as part of a mixed use allocation,; expansion and improvement of
existing facilities in and outside of Development Limits; provision of new fadilities within
development limits or outside of Development Limits where the fadility is needed and cannot be
located within Development Limits or as part of a mixed use allocation.

Service Villages and other villages

Expansion and improvements to existing facilities in or outside of Development Limits; provision
of new facilities - within Development Limits, conversion of existing buildings outside of
Development Limits or new provision outside of Development Limits where the fadility is needed
to serve the local area and could not be provided with Development Limits

New or enhanced provision of open space, leisure and recreational facilities will address identified
deficiencies set out in rm:mmmmmmmmmmmm:;ﬂ

mmmmmmwgdmmam
* Exclietes replacement dwelings, résidential extensions and annexes and lemporary dwelings.

(Our emphasis)

Apart from an area of Informal Amenity Space front of the main block of the development and a
Communal amenity area to the rear of the properties on Commercial Street (see Landscape
drawing CSN L1 by PDP Landscape and Urban Design), no public open space will be provided as
part of the proposal as it would be impractical and unfeasible to make such a provision, As such
and in accordance with Policy SP11 as set out above, a suitable Off Site Commuted sum will be
agreed in lieu of onsite provision.

NPPF paragraphs 109 to 125 relate to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and to
impacts of development proposals on protected species planning policy and guidance which is
provided by the NPPF and accompanying ODPM Circular 06/2005 “Biodiversity and Geological
Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their Impact within the Planning System"” in addition to
the Habitat Regulations and Bat Mitigation Guidelines published by Natural England.

A full Ecology Survey including a bat survey submitted with the application, has been undertaken
by MAB Ecology which shows that: -

Page 44




5.11.3

,15-

The main area of habitat to be affected by the development is an overgrown garden area on the
west side of the site. Habitats and species in this area are common, widespread and of little
botanical interest. No designated conservation sites will be affected. No evidence of bat roosting
was found within the buildings to be demolished at the site. The construction of most of the
buildings is unsuitable for roosting bats. However, an old sub-station at the northeast corner of
the site has an endlosed loft area which has potential for roosting bats, so a summer emergence
survey between June and August will be undertaken to determine whether it is a roost site. In
addition a bat emergence survey will also be undertaken at a hollowed out tree at the northeast
comer of the garden area. The scrub and trees at the site provide good nesting habitat for birds
as such clearance of this area will be scheduled outside the breeding period, which runs from
March to August inclusive.”

The site does not contain any trees of note and is not a protected site for nature conservation or
is known to support, or be in close proximity to any site supporting protected species or any
other species of conservation interest. Subject to the results of the bat surveys referred to above,
we consider that the proposed would not harm any acknowledged nature conservation interests
and therefore would not be contrary to the advice contained within the NPPF.

Archaeology
Policy SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale plan states:-

'SP12 Heritage

Distinctive elements of Ryedale’s historic environment will be conserved and where appropriate,
enhanced. The potential of heritage assets to contribute towards the economy, tourism,
education and community identity will be exploited including:

* The nationally significant prehistoric archaeological landscapes of the Yorkshire Wolds and the
Vale of Pickering

" The individual and distinctive character and appearance of Ryedale’s Market Towns and villages
* Large country houses and associated estates and estate villages, with Castle Howard being of
* The unique distribution of Saxon churches on the fringe of the Vale of Pickering and the North
York Moors, including Kirkdale and Stonegrave Minsters

* Victorian churches throughout the Yorkshire Wolds

* Medieval features including relatively large numbers of deserted medieval villages, moated
manorial sites and granges, such as Kirkham Priory and notable castle sites, including Sheriff
Hutton and Bossall Hall, Pickering and Helmsley

* The network of historic field systems across the District and in particular, the historic field
patterns around Pickering and other settiements on the northern side of the Vale of Pickering
mmwmxm

meemremw mmmﬂﬂ mm
support flexible solutions to the re-use of those historic buildings identified as at risk where this
would remove a building from English Heritage's At Risk Register or local recordss of buildings at

MWMMWMMMMMMMMMMN
sites at the Service Villages in the Vale of Pickering to secure increased protection, management
w«mwwm

* Work with North Yorkshire County Highways, Town and Parish Councils to provide highway
improvements and street furniture that are appropriate to the historic context of individual towns

and villages

Page 45




5122

5.12.3

513
5131

5.13.2

5.14

5.14.1

6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

=16 -

* Work with partners and landowners to encourage sensitive land management in the Vale of
mmmm
* Work with and support local estates to identify appropriate ways in which to manage their
historic landscapes, features and buildings
* Support, in principle, the small scale extraction of local building stone that would enable the
WWW&MMNWMMWW( ;
Our emphasis

A full Desk Top Archaeological Survey has been prepared by MAP Archaeclogy Practice Ltd and
submitted withy the application which reports that the site may have archaeological deposits
dating from the Roman and Medieval period within the boundary of the site. However the date,
depth and extent of the deposits are not known. As such in order to further inform the
archaeological curators of the presence, nature, condition, extent and date of any deposits of
archaeological significance, it is recommended that further archaeological evaluation by means
of archaeological trial trenching be undertaken prior to construction work commencing.

The requirements of the above findings will be the subject of appropriate trial trenching in due
course to all to meet the requirements of Policy SP12 (Heritage) of the Ryedale Plan and NPPF.

Ground Conditions
Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources of the Ryedale Plan states:-

‘Land resources will be protected and improved by:
QMMM&MMHWMWWMMMM
of remediation and restoration is agreed and in place....

A Desk Top Ground Survey has been prepared by Geoenvironmental Ltd and submitted with the
application and this shows that there is unlikely to be any contamination which would prevent
the development of the site providing suitable mitigation measures were employed where
necessary. As such we submit that the proposal will meet the requirements of Policy SP 17 of the
Ryedale Plan.

Trees

There were a number of self-sown tree and bushes in the western part of the site, but as none
of the vegetation was consider to be of any value (see Tree Report by TMS Management
submitted with the application), this area has now been dleared, A suitable proposed landscaping
scheme has been submitted with the application and is shown on drawing CSN L1.

Other Material Considerations

The Malton and Norton River-Rail Corridor Study was completed in 2004 and was subsequently
resolved by the Coundil that its recommendations would be a material planning consideration in
assessing any applications that were submitted for this site. The Study recommended that this
site and adjacent land be pursued for a mix of residential use and public and states that
development of the site for residential use would also be acceptable and has public support.
Whilst the scheme only concerns the western part of the site referred to and therefore as such
has no ownership interest in the land the east, the scheme does however allow for access to the
eastern part to allow for its development as a car park.

We believe that in terms of design, the scheme meets the recommendations of the Study in that
it considers the impact it will have on views to and from the conservation area, and the
relationship it will have with the backs of neighbouring properties. It also allows for the proposed

Page 46




6.1.4

6.1.5

7.14

-17 -

buildings on this site to be arranged to best allow views of the conservation area from new
properties.

In addition it meets the requirement that new buildings on this site should develop their size,
height and form from the existing buildings surrounding the site and as such 3-4 storeys
(including undercroft storeys) would be appropriate and that the materials used to create
buildings should be in context with existing vernacular of the surrounding urban environment.

In respect of flooding the Study recommends that any residential development which takes place
in any areas of the site should comprise multi storey properties and as such the use of undercroft
parking and raised floor levels is considered necessary. The scheme has been designed in this

way.

Conclusions

We submit that the proposed development would not have a detrimental effect flood risk,
character appearance of the conservation area, drainage, form and character of the area or either
the residential amenity of the occupants of neighbouring properties or highways safety. The
proposed scheme therefore accord with the Policies of the Ryedale Plan and the advice contained
within the NPPF.

We respectfully suggest that there are no valid planning reasons for a refusal of permission and
that the application is acceptable in all respects.

YTA49.14

Page 47




The Planning & Design Partnership

Planning.. Architecture.. Interiors.. Landscape

Ryedale District Council
Planning and Development
Ryedale House

Old Malton Road

Maleon

Notth Yorkshire

YOI17 7HH date 3 December 2014
FAO MR G. HOUSDEN

Dear Sirs,

RE ATS EUROMASTER, 25-27 COMMERCIAL STREET, NORTON
APPLICATION NUMBER 14/00947/MFUL

Futther to our recent communications please find the following for your attention:

REVISED DRAWINGS:
All relevant drawings have been revised following consultee comments and re-issued (by

email 01.12.14):

YEW.277015 02C
YEW-277015 03B
YEW-277015 O5B
YEW-277015 06B
YEW-277-015 07B
YEW-277015 08B
YEW.-277015 10C
YEW.-277015 11A
YEW.277015 12A
YEW.277-015 13A
YEW.-277015 14A
YEW-277015A

Proposed Site Plan

Proposed Site Elevations (sheet 1 of 2)
Proposed Site Elevations (sheet 2 of 2)
Proposed Elevations (sheet 1 of 3)
Proposed Elevations {sheet 2 of 3)
Proposed Elevations (sheet 3 of 3)
Proposed Basement Plan

Proposed Ground Floor Plan
Proposed First Floor Plan

Proposed Second Floor Plan
Proposed Third Floor Plan

Location Plan

The Chicory Barn Studio, The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Stamford Bridge, York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HEL.
Telephone 01759 373656  Fax 01759 371810 email: chiconbarn@thepdpcouk - www thepdp.co.uk
The Planning & Design Partnership Limired - Registered in England No. 05342518, VAT No. 853061540
Managing Director - R T. ]. Dykes. Company Sectetary - T. A Dykes

Page 48



RESIDENTIAL MIX/END USER
The proposed scheme is now intended for open market with suitable affordable
provision {to be agreed} provided within the scheme, the mix of units being as tollows:

Ino Seudio Aparmment
37no 1 Bed Aparements
20no 2 Bed Apartments
3no 3 Bed houses

2no 4 Bed Houses

63no UNITS TOTAL (plus an additional commercial unic}

Based on a max of 35% affordable provision, this would generate 22.05 units within
the scheme. However given the split of the blacks it is proposed 1o give the following
18na units as these form self contained blocks (ro the North/North West of the Site):

| bed units: 14, 15, 16, 33, 34, 35, 49, 50, 51, 61 & 62
2 bed unies 17, 18, 36, 37, 52, 53 & 60

The proposed tenure of these units would be 2/31ds Social rented, 1/3 market
rent/discounted/shared ownership, which would be discussed/agreed with your
housing manager in due course.

CONSERVATIONPLANNING

Following meetings/discussions with the conservation and planning otficers:

* The ridge height to the North elevation has been reduced by approx. 1.5m

® The glass bays windows to the corner blocks have been replaced with a more
traditional brick bay in keeping with the main development.

¢ The roof to units 1 & 2 has been adjusted to reduced ridge height by approx.
2.0m.

® Chimneys have been added to the development to provide variation in roof
scape

* The ancillary stores have been omitred within the courtyard to enhance the
landscape provision within the courtyard

HIGHWAYS
*  Undercroft parking has been increased and additional spaces have been located
at site level which increase patking to 76no - 120% parking provision across the
site.

The Chicory Bamn Studio, The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Staraford Bridge, York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1E[L.
Teleplione 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810 email: chicorybarng@ithe-pdprouk - www.thepdp.couk
The Planning & Design Parmmership Limired - Registered in England No. 05342518, VAT No. 853061540
Managing Director - R. T. . Dykes. Company Secretary - T. A, Dykes

Page 49



®  The site access has 6.0m radius and is 6.0m wide at the entrance with a
consistent 5.5m wide carriageway width along its length - widening by 0.6m on
the bend.

The pier has been amended such that it no longer projects into the highway.
6.0m clear space is allowed to the rear of each parking space for reversing.

& An alternative pedestrian access has been indicated to/from the site (which is in
the control of the applicant).

A lay by has been indicated for maintenance vehicles.
Appropriate sight lines are achievable both within the site and at the egress
point.

® [tis proposed to construct the highway in an approved permeable material
(subject to suitable percolation test in accordance with BRE 365). Should the
test not proved acceprable the highway are will be drained separately to the non-
highway areas.

ARCHAEOLOGY
Please see archaeological mitigation strategy by Messers MAB Archaeology Ltd issued by
email 27.11.14.

YORKSHIRE WATER
Please see response from Messers Dudley Consulting Engineers issued via email
28.11.14. Please also note the site plan now indicates:
e  Warter burrs have ro the feet of the ‘private’ RWP’s which will provide approx.
30001 above ground warer storage.
® Dermeable surface to the main hardstanding/carriageway areas (to reduce run
off into mains drainage.
s The 'method’ of dealing with $/W has been amended on the application form
and been re-issued to reflect connection into the mains drain.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH (ACOUSTIC & CONTAMINATION)

*  Update report awaited from messers Dragonfly acoustics and will be forwarded
upon receipt. It must however be noted that detailed discussions have occurred
between the appropriate parties and agreements made re the standard to be
achieved and the information to be provided.

®  An updated contamination report is due from messers Geo Environmental
Engineering Lrd tomerrow morning to respond consultee comments.

CRIME PREVENTION
The site plan has been amended in line with comments from the Designing Out Crime
Officer:

¢ Privare areas are defined adjacent the GF apartments where appropriate

The Chicery Barn Studio, The Old Brickyards, Moot Lane, Stamford Bridge, York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 1HU.
Telephone 01759 373656  Fax 01759 371810 email: chicorybarn@thepdp.couk - www.the-pdp.coak
The Planning & Design Partnership Limited - Registered in England No. 053425 18. VAT No. 853061540
Managing Director - R. T. ]. Dykes. Company Secretary ~ T. A. Dykes

Page 50



® The communal areas to the northern boundary have been divided and betrer
relate to the blocks.

*  The works to the Northern boundary have been better identified (secure
fencing) to avoid occupants walking onto the railway line {this was previously
indicated a solid brick wall).

¢ Grilles have been located on the external openings to the undercroft parking to
prevent unauthorised access.

® The undercroft parking will obviously be appropriarely lit as will the remainder
of the site.

® Secure access has been noted to the undercroft parking - which will be remorely
monitored through CCTV.

As you can see every effort has been made to suirably respond to all comments, to
achieve a mually satisfactory solution.

We trust all is in order with the above - please conract us should you require further
details.

Yours faithfully

Neel Dobson

The Chicory Barn Studio, The Old Brickyards, Moor Lane, Stamiford Bridge, York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, Y041 LHU.
Telephone 01759 373656  Fax 01759 371810 email: chicoryharn@the-pdp.coik - www thepdp o uk
The Planning & Design Parenership Limited - Registered in England No. 05342518, VAT No. 853061540
Managing Director - R. T. ). Dykes. Company Secretary - T. AL Dvkes

Page 51



“N02n02 4,

%'Y-i-r '\

YEW TREE ASSOCIATES

LAND, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS

FLOOD RISK ASSESSMENT
SEQUENTIAL TEST AND EXCEPTION TEST
FOR
THE ERECTION OF RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
AT

THE LAND AT THE REAR OF 5-17 COMMERCIAL
STREET

NORTON
FOR

MR P SEDMAN

20.08.14

W E:

YEw TREE ASSOCIATES: DIRECTOR f ' RTPI
PamTHER ",

Page 52



Contents
1. Introduction
2. Site Location and Description
3. Proposals
4. Flood Risk
5. Sequential Test
6. Exception Test

7. Conclusions

APPENDIX 1 TOPOGRAPHICAL SURVEY

APPENDIX 2 EMERGENCY FLOOD WARNING AND EVACUATION PLAN

Page 53



1-.
1.1

2.2

4.
4.1

-2-

Introduction

This flood risk assessment is to accompany a detailed planning application for the
development of a site for residential use at land to the rear of 5 — 17 Commercial Street,
Norton, Malton.

Site Location and Description

The site is roughly rectangular in shape and is some 0.4952 ha (1.224 acres) in area and
it lies to the north of Commercial Street, Norton to the rear of No's 5 to 17 Commercial
Street.

The site comprises two parts. The first being the premises of the former ATS tyre depot
to the east which includes two workshops on the northern and eastern boundaries with
associated hard standing to the front. The second is land to the west and to the rear of
No’s 5 to 15 Commerdial Street, which includes the formal garden areas of the adjacent
properties together with a more natural area of self- planted shrubs and trees. The site is
bounded to the north by the York Scarborough railway line, to the west by residential
development, to the south by a row of terraced properties in @ mix of commercial and
residential uses and the east by partly commercial properties, but mainly scrubland. The
whole site is shown edged red on Fig. 1 below.

The Application Site,

The proposal is for the erection of residential development comprising 61 dwellings (See
Drawings submitted with the Detailed planning Application for the site).

Flood Risk

In the consideration of developing sites where there is a possibility of flood risk we turn
to the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) for guidance. This was issued on 27
March 2012 and replaced PPG 25.

Page 54



y

43

4.4

4.4.1

4.4.2

-3-

At paragraph 103 of the NPPF it states that:-

'103. When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure
flood risk is not increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in areas
at risk of fiooding where, informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment following the
Sequential Test, and if required the Exception Test, it can be demonstrated that:

eeithin the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood risk
unless there are overriding reasons to prefer a different location,; and

eedevelopment is gppropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe access and
escape routes where required, and that any residual risk can be safely managed, including
by emergency planning; and it gives priority to the use of sustainable drainage systems.”

To determine the extent of the potential flooding risk, we need to examine the
Environment Agency's Flood Map.

The results of this are now provided as follows,

'?hestemshown as wrmln three flood zones as can be seen on the Envircnment Agency
Flood Map see Fig.2 below,

Environment
Agency 3
" —_— L ,."

Enter a posicode or place name; Other topics for this area... Risk of Fim}ding from Rivers and Sea
fro17 ebu €D  [Ress oiFlooding rom Rivers and Sea =]
HMap legend W ATRAEY: 4?1,0“at scale 110 000 L Data search @ Text only Uuru'ﬁ_:-n .

Check on the mapto see
what i the Rigk of Flooding
at @ particular lpcation

= ¥ FiosaMass

. FloDEng from nWers or
sed wilhoul defences

Extert of exireme flopd

B Finod defences
Kot all may be shmwn ")

Areas penel

. Nood deten

Mot all may

M Wain rivess

The Application Site &
4 1"‘u:|.r4 'ul;wau-u-n_,.f..;. fi

The Environment Agency deﬁne these areas as follows

Clear Area
‘Clear shows the area where fiooding from rivers and the sea is very uniikely. There is
less than a 0.1 per cent (1 in 1000) chance of flooding occurring each year.

Page 55




44.3

4.4.4

4.4.5

e

(For planning and development purposes, this is the same as Flood Zone 1, in England
only.)’

Light Blue Area-

Light blue shows the additional extent of an extreme flood from rivers or the sea. These
outlving areas are fikely to be affected by a major flood, with up to a 0.1 per cent (1 in
1000) chance of occurring each year.

(For planning and development purposes, this is the same as Flood Zone 2, in England
only.)

Dark Blue Area

Dark blue shows the area that could be affected by flooding, either from rivers or the
sea, If there were no flood defences. This area could be flooded: from the sea by a flood
that has a 0.5 per cent (1 in 200) or greater chance of happening each year; or from a
river by a flood that has a 1 per cent (1 in 100) or greater chance of happening each year.

(For planning and development purposes, this is the same as Flood Zone 3, in England
only.)’

Hatched Area

Hatched areas benefit from the flood defences shown, in the event of g river flood with
a 1 per cent (1 in 100) chance of happening each year, or a flood from the sea with a 0.5
per cent (1 in 200) chance of happening each year. If the defences were not there, these
areas would be flooded.

Flood defences do not completely remove the chance of flooding, however, and can be
overtopped or fail in extreme weather conditions.”

In the case of the light blue area we take the view that this is classed as Flood Zone 2
and in respect of the dark blue/hatched area is classed as Flood Zone 3.

When referring to The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Technical Guidance a
different approach is taken for each zone.

To take each in turn:-

Flood Zone 1
The front part of the site where it accesses Commercial Street is in an area which at low
probability of flooding as it is outside the floodplain.

Fl Zone 2
Most of the site, the northern part is shown as within Flood Zone 2 and The Environment
Agency defines these areas as:-

‘as having between a 1 in 100 and 1 in 1,000 annual probability of river flooding (1% —
0.1%), or between a 1in 200 and 1 in 1,000 annual probability of sea flooding (0.5% —
0.1%) in any year.”

This is an area where the risk flooding is of medium probability. Dwellings are classed as
a more vulnerable form of development in The National Planning Policy Framewark (NPPF)
Technical Guidance Table 2 and need to pass the sequential test in order to be permitted
in Flood Zone 2. This is dealt with later in the report.

Page 56



-5-

446 Flood Zone 3

4.4.7

The remainder and a small area on the north western boundary of the site falls within
Flood Zone 3 and The Environment Agency define these areas as:-

an area that has a moderate chance of flooding. The chance of flooding each year is
1.3% (1 in 75) or less, but greater than 0.5% (1 in 200).

Dwellings are again classed as a more vulnerable form of development in The National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) Technical Guidance Table 2 and need to pass the
sequential test referee to above in order to be permitted in Flood Zone 3 and this is also
dealt with later in the report.

According to the Environment Agency’s Model data from the 2009 Malton Data
Improvements Study, the following flood levels are predicted (See Fig 3 Below). These
node points are in mAOD and are shown on the map at Fig 4 below. The 101 return period
is the 1 in 100 year plus climate change scenario.

NodePantName RetnnPemd LevelValue FlowValue -
ModelMALTO20 1818 8308
ModeIMALTO20 Iﬂ 1847 95.62
Mod=IMALTO20 25 18.82 1129
MedelMALTO20 50 1926 1354
ModeIMALT020 H 1927 1354
ModeIMALTO20 100 1954 149.2
ModeiMALTO20 101 19.92 1714
ModeIMALT0O20 200 197 1575
ModeIMALTO20 1000 2035 2194
ModeIMALTO21 5 18.16 8305
ModelMaLTO21 10 1845 %6
ModelMALTO21 25 1879 1129
ModelMALTO21 50 1924 1354
ModeiMALTO21 75 1924 1354
ModelMALTO21 100 1951 149.2
ModelMALTO21 101 1989 176
ModelMALTO21 200 1967 1575
ModeIMALT021 1000 203 2257
ModeIMALT022 5 1816 8304
ModeIMALT022 10 1844 9561
ModeIMALT022 25 1879 1129
ModeIMALT022 50 1924 1354
ModelMALT(22 75 1524 1354
ModeiMaLT022 100 1951 149.2
Mod=IMALTO22 101 19.89 1735
ModelMALT022 200 1967 157.4
ModeIMALTO22 1000 203 2335
levelz ars in mAOD

107 =1 m 1l year plus climate change scenano

Page 57



-6 -

Basic FRA Map centred on Malton - [Ref: 25813] - Completed 03/05/2013

Fig. 4

2 . 5 T Eem = g P -
U ? 3 ’ -}

Environment
W Agency

Scale 1:10,000 A

Piagce nate That the sunpha mag s mot

Legend
. Mode Fomt
Fleod Dedences

e
e

| [ Aeeas Benefiting

| Bank Top E-Planning Tool

R Fiood Fone 3
i . Ficod Zome 2
— ar Rives

AR L01 | AL g reRseved © L e e
Contact Us: Nationy Customer Contact Cenine PO Beo 544, Rotherham, 580 18Y Tel DO708 506 508 (Mon-Fri 6-6) Emai

Agenay 10000 213

-
uk

4.48 Inthe light of the above information, it is reasonable to propose a minimum ground floor
level of the 20.5m AQD for the new properties, which is at 200mm above the 1 in 1000

year predicted flood level,

4.4.9 In addition it must be noted that the proposed scheme involves the removal of two
existing buildings on the site which currently occupy some 556 sq. m within the flood zone
areas of the site which equates to some cubic metres of flood storage capacity.
Furthermore, the proposed design of the scheme proposes that the new building will have
ground floor uses that will allow inundation in the event of a flood. In essence the scheme
will therefore result in a net increase in flood storage capacity to the benefit of the local

area.

4.4.10 1n the light of parts of the site lying in both Flood Zones 2 and 3 we therefore apply a

Sequential Test to the site as follows.

. A Sequential Test

% § In general terms the Sequential Test should be applied to demonstrate that there are no

reasonably available sites in the area with a lower probability of flooding

that would be

appropriate for this type of development. To demonstrate the case for the application site

we consider the following:-

0] The Area of Search Used to Assess Alternative Sites
(i) Identification of Alternative Sites in the Area of Search

(i) Assessment and Explanation of Whether Alternative Sites at a Lower Flood Risk Level are

Reasonably Available

Page 58



5.1.1

5:1.2

5.1.3

To take each in turn;-

Area of Search
In the light of the nature of the development being most suitable in the urban area, the
most reasonable and relevant area of search is defined as the town envelopes of Malton
and Norton as shown in the Council's Strategic Housing Land Availability Update 2012 as
Principle Service Centre.
Alternative Sit
In identifying reasonably available alternative sites, we consider only those within the
development limit of the adopted Ryedale Local Plan and that meet the functional
requirements of the proposed development in the urban area at a lower flood risk level
and as such we refer to the Council’s Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
(SHLAA) Update 2012. (See Fig.3 below). The Flood Risk Zones are taken from the
Environment Agency’s Flood Map for Norton.
Sites 512 and 198 are missing from the table in Fig. 5, but they have been included in the
assessment which follows.
The following table (Fig. 6) refers to (Fig. 5) above and provides information gathered on
thirteen relevant sites identified in the SHLAA from the SHLAA 2009 and Update 2012,
Ryedale Local Plan and the Council’s Planning Application Register,
Fig. 5
SHLAA | Flood Planning Status In Site Category | Deliverability %
Site No | Risk In Adopted Dev. | Capacity Greenfield
Zone Ryedale local | Limits
Plan
Maiton
2 3(a) Area Liable to Flood | 100% 36 3 Not Deliverable 0%
(50%+)
234 1 Residential Site 100% 40 1 0-5 yrs. 60%
(90%+) Completed
235 1 Leisure 100% 67 2 S+yrs 100%
(90%+)
240 1 OPP for Retail Use | 100% 16 2 S+yrs 0%
(90%+) & Car Park
457 1 App for Retall Use 100% 12 2 S4yrs 0%
(90%+) Pending
275 1 Pt. Leisure Pt. 0% 17 1 0-5yrs 100%
(80%+) Unallocated
MNorton
113 3a) Pt. Leisure Pt. 100% 326 3 Not Deliverable 50%
(50%+) | Unallocated Pt. Area
Liable to Flood
259 1 Unallocated 100% 21 2 5+yrs 0%
(90%+)
430 3(a) DPP for Retail Use 100% 29 3 Not Deliverable 0%
(50%+)
431% 3(a) Area Liable to Flood | 100% 30 3 Not Deliverable 0%
(50%+)
433 3(a) Area Liable to Flood | 100% 45 3 Not Deliverable 0%
(50%-+)
512 1 Unallocated 100% 20 1 0-5yrs 0%
{90%+)
198 1 Unallocated 100% 18 1 0-5yrs 0%
{90%+)

* The application site is identified as being part of Site 431.

Page 59




514

5.1.5

5.1.7

-8 -

Assessment of Alternative Sites

In assessing the above sites we take account of the fact that the Council have
acknowledged that they currently have a shortfall in their 5 year housing supply. In
addition as the new Ryedale Plan Sites Document is at an early stage and there has been
no consultation as yet on preferred sites due to the outcome of the Local Plan Strategy
being still awaited. Moreover, an examination into the Sites Document will not take place
until sometime in 2014.

Whilst there are significant numbers of potential dwellings within the total of the SHLAA
sites, it is by no means certain that all of these will be allocated for housing in the eventual
the Local Plan. We submit therefore that at this stage the decisions on the acceptability
of new sites for housing in the short term must be restricted to current adopted national
and local planning policy.

Qur terms of reference are therefore limited to the Adopted Ryedale Local Plan
designations and the requirement to consider brownfield sites in preference to greenfield
sites for development as required by the national NPPF. Whilst we appreciate that the
Council have granted recently a number of planning permissions for residential
development on greenfield land outside development limits as a result of the Council’s 5-
year housing provision shortfall, we still maintain that brownfield land development should
be the priority for new housing sites.

Our assessment of the various SHLAA sites is made in the light of the above position and
it as follows:-

To take each in turn.

Maiton

Site 2.

This brownfield site and lies 50% in Flood Zone 3a within the Development Limit and is
comparable to the application site. The non deliverable designation is primarily the Flood
Zone category. Whilst we would accept that on the basis that not all the greenfield sites
proposed in the SHLAA that this site could be developed with appropriate flooding
mitigation measures, we see this site as less preferable to the application site due to the
its bad neighbour constraint and that that it has a higher Flood Zone designation.

Site 234.

This a brownfield site in Flood Zone 1 within the Development Limits on which a residential
development has been recently been completed and is therefore not available. The site
should therefore be discounted.

Site 235.

This site is currently greenfield and mostly within Flood Zone 2 within the Development
Limits. However, it is currently an allocated area of open space which is well located to
serve the local area and should be retained. The site is also identified as being only
available in the 5+ Year period, whereas the application site is available immediately. The
site should therefore be discounted.

Sites 240

This is a brownfield site mostly in Flood Zone 1 which has recently been granted Outline
Planning Permission on appeal for a Retail Use and Car Park. This site is clearly not
available as the intentions of the owners are clear and should therefore be discounted

Page 60



-9 -

Site 457

This is a brownfield site mostly in Flood Zone 1 in the Development Limits and unallocated
on which there is currently a planning application pending a Retail Use. This site is clearly
not available as the intentions of the owners are clear and should therefore be discounted.

Site 275

This site is mostly in Flood Zone 1, unallocated, greenfield, allocated partly for leisure and
outside the Development Limits. In addition it forms part of Malton School Playing fields
which are a valuable resource to local. Its development would also be constrained by
traffic noise from the A64 bypass. Whilst the site is in a lower flood zone it should be
discounted for the reasons referred to above.

Mailton and Norton SHLAA Sites

-
(. FER._ SEE . SN W
2 L R D
.1 Lt 1 & Fit) i = |
m - im =
) w W | .
e & L -
J % o n | W
: ) i3 m (71
bl o 114 1%
£ By e | 1% |
|/ an = w1 aw |
= - 3 1 » |
;" e Fi7] A5 i
Vs o] ] ) T
g | s =T ant | w
[ W | & s [ 8 |
e T ot e 0L
i [ |
=% T I
‘.
} A ke Bt 147 560 1
Fo N b i .
f 1 it = &= ey - St 1017
The Application Site i Zigaare, ¥, i
—id s RYEDALE
i = - r a ' PETMIET
T . - oo Bemay 86104 . ¥ COUNCH

The site lies 50%+ in Flood Zone 3(a), 50% greenfield, allocated part leisure, part
unallocated, part in area liable to flood and undeliverable. In addition, access to the site
is severely restricted and for this reason and those referred to above we would submit
that the site should be discounted.

Site 259

This site is mostly in Flood Zone 1, unallocated, brownfield, inside the Development Limits
and not available until 5+ Years. The site is currently occupied by an Elderly Persons
Home, which will involve a relocation of the existing residents. The SHLAA states that
there is currently no replacement facility is available. Whilst the site is in a lower flood
zone it should be discounted as it is not immediately available.

Site 430
This site is 50% in Flood Zone 3(a), brownfield, within Development Limits and has

recently been granted Detailed Planning Permission for a retail use. This site is clearly not
available as the intentions of the owners are clear and should therefore be discounted.

Page 61



5.1.8

5.2
5.2.1

53
5.3.1

6.1

6.2

Sy

Site 43

This site lies 50%+ in Flood Zone 3(a), brownfield, in area liable to flood and
undeliverable. In addition, the site is currently occupied by the local bus station and a
number of other commercial uses. For the above reasons we would submit that the site
should be discounted.

Site 512

This site lies mostly in Flood Zone 1, unallocated, brownfield, unallocated, and inside the
Development Limits, Whilst the site is in a lower flood zone, it should be discounted as
we are aware that the site is the subject of a planning application for residential
development which is currently awaiting validation.

Site 198

This site lies mostly in Flood Zone 1, unallocated, brownfield and inside the Development
Limits. Whilst the site is in a lower flood zone, it has a very restricted access which will
cause detriment to the neighbouring properties should it be developed.

ite 431
This site, which includes the application site, lies 20% in Flood Zone 1, 65% in Flood Zone
2 and 15% in in Flood Zone 3(a), is brownfield, allocated as an area liable to flood and is
not deliverable according to the SHLAA. However, of the other twelve sites assessed
above, we consider that it is preferable in that it is immediately available, it is brownfield,
inside the Development Limits, in a very sustainable location and we have a deliverable
solution to overcome the Flood Zone designation.

In addition, as we have stated above, the Council have a shartfall in their 5 year housing
supply in the District which we believe this site will contribute towards and assist in
resolving. We therefore submit that the development of the site is acceptable from a flood
risk standpaint.

In further support of the application the following should also be considered,

Current Planning Policy

Current Planning policy supports the development of the application site for residential
development as is set out in the Planning Supporting Statement submitted with the
planning application for the proposal.

Conclusion

In conclusion we consider that the Sequential Test for the construction of 61 No dwellings
at land to the rear of No's 5-17 Commercial Street, Norton, Malton has been robustly
applied and that the test has been passed.

Exception Test
The need for an Exception Test is demonstrated by reference to NPPF Technical Guidance
as follows:-

As small part of the site lies in Flood Zone 3(a) we therefore turn to paragraph 5 Table 1
(See Fig.7 below) of the NPPF Technical Guidance where it states that:-

Table 1: Flood zones

(Note: These flood zones refer to the probability of river and sea flooding, ignoring the
presence of defences)

Page 62



-11-

Zone 3a - high probability o7

Definition

This zone comprises land assessed as having a 1 in 100 or greater annual
probability of river fiooding (>1%), or a 1 in 200 or greater annual
probability of fiooding from the sea (>0.5%) in any year.

Appropriate uses

The water-compatible and less vulnerable uses of land (table 2) are
appropriate in this zone. The highly vulnerable uses should not be
permitted in this Zone.

The more vulnerable uses and essential infrastructure should only be
permitted in this zone if the Exception Test is passed. Essential
infrastructure permitted in this zone should be designed and constructed to
remain operational and safe for users in times of flood.

Flood risk assessment requirements
All development proposals in this zone should be accompanied by a flood
risk assessment.

Policy aims

In this zone, developers and local authorities should seek opportunities to:

« reduce the overall level of fiood nsk in the area through the layout and
form of the development and the appropriate application of sustainable
dramage syslems,

6.3 The nature of the proposed development is buildings used for dwelling houses and as such
is classified in Table 2 in NPPF Technical Guidance (See Fig.8 below) as a ‘more vulnerable’
use of land and therefore an Exception Test is required.

Page 63



-12 -

Table 2: Flood risk vulnerability classification Fg. 8

Essential infrastructure

« Essential transport infrastructure| (including mass evacuaton routes)
which has to cross the area at risk.

« Essential utility infrastructure which has to be located in a flood risk area
for operational reasons, including electricity generating power stations
and gnid and primary substations; and water treatment works that need to
remain operational m tmes of flood.

« ‘Wind turbines.

« Police stations, ambulance statons and fire stations and command
centres and telecommumications instailations required 10 be operational
during flooding.

« Emergency dispersal points.

Basement dwellings.

+ Caravans, mmmmmmum
residential use®

. mmmmm.wmiu
demonstrable need to locate such installations for bulk storage of
materials with port or other similar facilities, or such installations with
energy infrastructure or carbon capture and storage installations, that
require coastal or water-side locations, or need to be located in other high
flood risk areas, in these instances the faciities should be classified as
“essential infrastructure”™".

More vulnerable

-

Hospitals.

Residential institutions such as residential care homes, children’s homes,

« Buildings used for dwelling houses, student halls of residence, drinking

+ Non—residential uses for health services, nursenes and educational
estabiishments.

. Lﬂwmmummmmm
waste®.

« Sites used for holiday or shor-iet caravans and camping, subyect to a
specific waming and evacuation plan.”

Less vulnerable

« Poiice, ambulance and fire stations which are nof required to be

operational durng fiooding
+ Buikdings used for shops, financial, professional and other services,

6.4 Development within these areas may only be considered following application of the
Sequential Test.’ See above. Table 3 of NPPF Technical Guidance states that an Exception
Test is required for ‘More Vulnerable’ developments in Flood Zone 3. (See Fig. 9 below).

Page 64



6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

-13-

Fig. 9

Table 3: Flood risk vulnerability and flood zone ‘compatibility”

Flood nsk Essental Waner Highly More Less
vuinerability nfastructure | compatitie | wiinerabie | wuinerable | wulnerabie
classifcaton
(see table 2)
Zone 1 - v - « v
Zone 2 . v Excepton v v
= Test
i o
ZONe 33 | Exoepbon v = Exception v
i Test requred Test
requiIres
EM&: Excepton v x ! .
functona | Test requred
3 fioodplain
Key: ¥ Devslopment s appropnae.
= Development should not be permitied
Notes to table 3
This table does not show:
a e application of the Sequental Test whioh guices cevelopment 1o Flood Zone !
first, then Zone 2, and then Zone 3,

b food rsk assessment requrEMEnts; Of
¢ e policy ams for each flood zone.

We therefore now pravide evidence of mitigation measures as required by Paragraph 103
of NPPF referred to above to prove that the Exception Test has been passed.

To pass the exception test the development is required to -

a) provide wider sustainability benefits

b) be located on previously developed land

¢) be safe from flooding, without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

As required by a) and b), the development would de-contaminate the site, improve
outlook for the occupants of surrounding buildings, make better use of a brownfield site,
provide residential development, including affordable dwellings in the town centre and be
constructed to BREEAM very good standards, as such there would be sustainability
benefits. The site is also previously developed land.

However, to satisfy item c) we need to demonstrate by the following information that the
site will be safe from flooding without increasing flood risk elsewhere.

In the most recent flood event in Autumn 2012 this area did not flood due to the existence
of the Malton and Norton Flood Defences and the Malton - Scarborough railway line.

If the Flood Defences were over topped, water would either enter the site directly from

the River Derwent over the Malton - Scarborough railway line to the north or directly from
Commercial Street to the south.

Page 65



6.11

6.12

6.13

6.14

6.15.

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19,

6.20

-14 -

The Environment Agency have provided information referred to above for flooding within
this area which consists of modelled flood levels if the defences were to fail.

It has already been noted above that in the recent flood event in November/December
2012, the site was not affected by flooding.

A topographical survey to Ordnance Survey levels has been undertaken and this is
attached at Appendix 2 of this report. This shows that the general levels of the site range
between 18.6m AOD on the site’s northern boundary adjacent to the railway line to
21.31mAOD at the site entrance on the southern boundary.

It has already been noted above that the two existing buildings on site are to be
demolished to make way for the proposed development which together would increase
the flood capacity of the site by some 1305 cubic metres,

Alleviation Measures

The projected 1 in 100 year plus climate change level of 19.51mAQD is a maximum of
some 0.91mAQD above the existing ground levels of the northern most part of the site.
The southern part being a maximum of some 1.80mAOD above. The 1 in 1000 year plus
climate change level is 20.3mAQD and is 1.7mAQD above the northern half of the site
and 1.10mAOD below the southern part of the site.

In the light of the above and as the existing ground levels at the site range between
18.6mAOD and 21.31mAQD it is recommended that the existing ground floor level of the
proposed buildings are set a minimum of 200mm above the 1 in 1000 year plus climate
change level i.e. 20.5mAOD.

In addition to raising the proposed ground floor level it is also advisable to include all or
some of the following techniques to limit the damage to the building if flood water does
enter the building:-

Construct ground floor from solid concrete or suspended concrete floor

Construct external walls from masonry without cladding to first floor level

Construct interior walls with masonry to first floor level

Install water resistant insulation to walls

Install a water resistant plaster to ground floor walls

Install gas meters at high level within the houses to avoid flood water

Install electric consumer box at high level to avoid flood water

Feed electrical sockets from first floor and install sockets 600mm above ground floor level
if practical

Install boiler preferably at first floor level or if impractical, high on wall at ground floor.

Surface Water Drainage

The existing site surface area is of the site is partly non permeable, being concrete.
However, we as the new development proposed will take up the whole site area, we don't
believe the surface water areas will be significantly different from the existing, but these
will be calculated with the appropriate solution and attenuation to achieve 30% reduction
in flow rate.

Safe Access and Egress
It is likely that in the absence of over topping of the existing flood defences no flooding
would affect the site and access would be via Commercial Street.

If a major flood event were to occur within this area as a result of the failure of the flood
defences, then this area would be evacuated by the Environment Agency and Ryedale

Page 66



6.21

6.22.

6.23

R

District Council. Egress would be via Commercial Street before flood water depths became
unsafe or as a worst case scenario, the first floor could be used as a safe refuge as it
would be above the 19.51m being the projected 1 in 100 year plus climate change level.
An appropriate Flood Plan is attached as Appendix 3 to this report.

Recommendations
The following recommendations should be incorporated in the construction of the new
dwellings and site.

Floor Levels should be set at 20.5m AOD. and 1.7m higher than the lowest site ground
level.

Flood resilient measures should be incorporated into the fabric of the building.

The impermeable area of the proposed site will be smaller than the predevelopment site
thus reducing surface water run-off.

An Emergency Flood and Evacuation Plan shown at Appendix 3 is proposed to allow safe
evacuation measures to put in place in the event of flooding.

Conclusions

The site is in Flood Zones 2 and 3a and is protected by the River Derwent Flood Defences.
Under normal conditions this site will not flood. However, it may flood in a worst case
scenario within a 50-100 year storm event, if the Flood Defences are over topped.
Reasonable measures can be put in place to minimise this flood risk which make the site
safe for residential use.

This FRA and Exceptions Test confirm that this site is suitable for residential use with an
acceptable flood risk.

Conclusions

We submit that this Flood Risk Assessment confirms that this site is suitable for residential
use with an acceptable flood risk.

SMN/YTA 1.7.14

Appendix 1 Topographical Survey.

Appendix 2 Emergency Evacuation Plan

Page 67



EMERGENCY FLOOD WARNING AND EVACUATION PLAN
FOR LAND
AT
THE LAND AT THE REAR OF 5-17 COMMERCIAL STREET
NORTON
MALTON

1. WHY DOES THIS PROPERTY NEED AN EMERGENCY FLOOD WARNING AND
EVACUATION PLAN?

1.1 This property is located adjacent to the River Derwent. The site is protected from
flooding by the River Derwent Flood Defences. In normal circumstances during flood
events, the defences will protect properties within this area from flooding. However the
Environment Agency considers that the defences provide a 1 in 100 to 1 in 1000 year
and 1 in 100 or greater protection against flooding. Therefore this property may be
flooded within a flood event exceeding 1 in 100 years. To put this in context, the
Environment Agency considers that any property with a flood risk between 1 in 100
years and 1 in 1000 years is at moderate risk of flooding and between 1 in 100 years or
greater at a significant risk of flooding.

2. HOW WILL I KNOW IF THIS PROPERTY IS AT RISK DURING FLOODS?

2.1 The most important factor is to know when a flood is likely to affect this property.
The Environment Agency provides a flood warning service to householders who are at
risk of flooding. They can register with the Environment Agency on their floodline 0845
988 1188. Householders at this property should register with this service.

3. HOW CAN I BE READY FOR A FLOOD?

3.1 It is always prudent to design your own personal flood plan. The Environment
Agency provide a template for this which is attached to this plan. This can be completed
to help the householder to understand what actions to take in a flood.

4. WHAT IF I NEED TO LEAVE MY HOME?

4.1 The Personal Flood Plan provides advice on what to do in times of flood. In extreme
events it may be necessary for the occupants to leave the premises. To do this, a safe
route to higher ground should be available. For this property, the route is from the site
south to Commercial Street.

Page 68



A plan of the route is shown below.
5. EVACUATION ROUTE

X7/

==l

1 ‘ 2 \
AT e
" | V] = '

A TR L e W\ B =iy

&

W | o ——— L T

[oe |
1!

—TTHTIRE ), e e

& HJIH%} | f@@i@% i&%ﬁr
~= b % e ;2

WSl N\ g\

6. WHAT IF I CAN'T LEAVE MY HOUSE FOR ANY REASON?

6.1 It is important to leave the premises if you consider that flood levels may affect
your house and prevent you from leaving safely. You should also leave if you are
advised to do so by the Environment Agency or by Officers of the Ryedale District.
However, if the householder cannot leave for any reason, such if flood levels rise quickly
and there is no safe exit, then the occupants should make their way to the first floor
and use this as a safe refuge. The emergency services should then be contacted to
arrange evacuation

Page 69



m

e you sigaed up To recetve llood wamings?
1 reat codh Floodline om 0845 DB 1188 jo see
Il your asea recebuns free Aood waining:.

I comveryene
Hodline Ensironment Agency
Electricity provides
Tas prowicler
‘Wabes carrfaiy
Teleprhone provider

Insusanee compisy s
paliiy iy

Loral gouncil
Lotal iadle stition
Travel/wealbd infe

Key lacatbans

e cton
Elee ity
by

Wi

Wha can helpfwho can you help?
LT v
Relative

l.rwn-dnln-w‘ G

Page 70

Nika% 788 1188

Be prepared for flooding. Act now



_ What can | do NOW?

Mwmmd ook at the best way af stapping
s risk and protedt In pohahens Moadyiter ariering yous praperty
gk yous Insisance cavers pou Make a food plan and prepare o
tai Nesailing Tioad kit

Wit can you do i o Foed s expeciod i your aread

Homs
| Mo furnitare and elecidcal dems fo salely
uumwmmhm
mlmmdwtmmm-ﬂmnﬂ
 Tur off electiicity, water and gas supglies
Rl up canpets and rgs.
mmmmhmmhﬂuﬂﬂﬂmm
Move sentimentallems to salety
Pt impartamt documents in gobthene hags and mave to safety
Gardun and sutside

© Mhowe your car oul of the Anod risk area

h"wnhﬂnhﬂnmﬂ!‘mﬁﬂ
Busingss

Mhowe [mp o stark

mmmmmm

w“muﬂmtam

Evacuntion - Frapare a llood kit in advance
mmmmmmwummumwm
mmmumuﬂm-mmm“ﬂam
vk, Tood, meidication, bays for dhiidnen and pets, ubber ghoves and wellingsons

munudlﬂwmuumhmmm
your praperty bom fead domage. A dlirectony of these is available from the
Hatiornl Flood Forum

Tl HERTNSANBL. L

Page 71

or‘.mimm
Agency

Fand out wivese y et dhal yimt wouild need fo take
sandbags ﬁhmlﬂmwhnmhm
Iehenify wia can help you Umgersiand e finod waming codes

wiha e cam hedp

Be prepared for flooding. Act now



PDP

The Planning & Design Partnership
Planning.. Architecture.. Interiors.. Landscape
The Chicory Barn Studio, The O1d Brickvards, Moors Lane, Stamtord Bridge

York, The East Riding Of Yorkshire, YO41 THLUL
Telephone 01759 373656 Fax 01759 371810 eanail: ;hju!ﬁi&iﬂ“lﬂltﬂii&uk

DESIGN & ACCESS STATEMENT
PROPOSED 61 UNIT MIXED TENURE HOUSING

DEVELOPMENT ON THE FORMER ATS TYRE DEPOT,
COMMERCIAL STREET, NORTON YO17 9HX

217 July 2014

VIEW OF SITE ENTRANCE FROM COMMERCIAL STREET LOOKING NORTH

Page 72



9

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
USE

AMOUNT

APPEARANCE AND LAYOUT
SCALE

LANDSCAPE

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT
HIGHWAYS

DRAINAGE

10 SUNLIGHT AND PRIVACY

11 FLOOD RISK

12 SUSTAINABILITY

13 DESIGNING OUT CRIME

14 HERITAGE STATEMENT

15 ACOUSTICS

16 CONTAMINATION

17 TREES

18 CONCLUSION

Page 73



AERIAL VIEW OF THE SITE

1. INTRODUCTION

This design statement is prepared generally in accordance with the requirements set
out by DCLG Circular 01/2006 - Section 3. The appraisal will follow some of the
process advocated by the CABE Guide to pood practice.

2. USE

This is a detailed planning application for a development of 61 No, units of mixed
tenure housing on the former ATS Tyre Depot, Commercial Screet, Norton YO17 9HX.
The units will range from 4 bedroomed houses to single bed apartments with the ratio
ot each house type and variety of method of tenure having being discussed and agreed
with Ryedale District Council and a local Housing Association. The majority of the
units will be smaller single and two bedroomed units to meet the local housing need and
to be appropriate for the town centre location.

The current form of the development is as the result of extensive consultation and a Pre-
application Planning Advice Submission to Ryedale District Council.

Page 74



3. AMOUNT

The site is sandwiched berween the York to Scarborough railway and the main reail
street in Norton (Commertcial Street) with the plot facing south at the western end of
the town shopping centre. The site is approximately rectangular 65 m wide and 80 m
deep with an area of

4,897 m’, it slopes down from the highway at 21,0 m AOD to 18.60 m AOD adjacent to
the railway line. The River Derwent also runs between the two towns along the northern
side the railway line and has influenced the building styles in the past with river trade
and even boatbuilding featuring in historical records.

The existing retail units to the front (southern) boundary of the site will be retained with
the land immediately behind them altered and landscaped to form communal amenity
spaces, twelve parking bays and two new ancillary stores. The existing site access position
will be retained but reduced to a more domestic scale 5.5 m wide and a new forked drive
created to serve the front retail units and the residential complex further to the northern
boundary.

Parking spaces will be provided in an undercroft beneath the main development and
this will also provide a floodable void in the event of extreme flood conditions.
Additional parking bays will be provided to the rear of the existing buildings along
Commercial Streer which will help reduce daytime congestion in the Town Centre,

36 No. of the units will be single bed with internal floor areas of approximately 30 m°,
20 No. 2 bed units at approximately 60 m’, 3 No. three storey town houses with 3 beds
at approximately and 2 No. 4 bedrooms and 110 m” internal floor area.

Private and distinet pardens will be provided for the town houses and shared communal
spaces for the apartments along with cycle and refuse stores to the central courtyard.
The complex will be formally managed and supervised from a dedicated office on the
eround floor,

VIEW OF THE SITE ENTRANCE LOOKING EAST ALONG COMMERCIAL STREET

Page 75



4. APPEARANCE & LAYOUT

The town of Norton (population approx 7,000) runs alongside the southern bank of the
River Derwent, with Malton (population approx 13,000) nearby on the northern bank.
Malton is a market town and commercial centre with historic records dating back to a
Roman fort = Derventio, The A64 trunk road skirts the northern edge of the towns and
provides the main coastal trunkroad trom York. The transpennine railway between
Liverpool and Scarborough passes alongside the site with Malton Station within 700 m
as is the bus station. The main land use in the area is agricultural but the towns are also
known for a lage bacon factory, many horse racing stables and a 27 hole golf course,
Norton is a pepular residential location for the major conurbations of Leeds, York and
Hull which are readily accessible by commuters.

The proposed dwellings will be arranged in three connected wings around the boundary
of the northern end of the site, but also to match the north south alienment of the
adjacent burgage plots,

The development will be based predominantly on the characteristics ot traditional
Riverside Warehouses with the corner blocks incorporating full height glazed window
bays to contrast with the fenestration of the connecting wings which is in a more
domestic style and scale. The three storey building with loft accommodation will feature
raised gable parapets, slate roofs and brick string courses and details to add interest and
depth, The extenal doors and windows will include stone cills, brick arch heads and
vertical sash windows set back within brick reveals.

The connecting and circulation spaces will utilise fully glazed walls to help define the
separation berween the dittering housetypes and highlight the entry and exit positions,

ontle e=rthl
f

VIEW OF THE 8ITE ENTRANCE LOOKING WEST ALONG COMMERCIAL STREET

Page 76



5. SCALE

The existing buildings along the street frontage are three and two storey, stepping down
and reducing in mass from Georgian town houses, to a more Victorian cottage terrace
scale either side of the site access. The front elevations have been tormally ser out with
geometric window groupings and contrasting brick details to emphasize quality and
stature of the terrace with some still retaining most of their original features.

The proposed development will continue the theme in a similar manner and reinforce
the local residential character, returning the industrial retail site to a more appropriate
and community friendly use.

FRONT AND REAR VIEWS OF EXISTING THREE STOREY RETAIL UNITS TO
THE SOUTHERN BOUNDARY

Page 77



6. LANDSCAPE

See Tree Survey submirted with application, which concludes that the trees on the site
are not worthy of retention, possibly giving shelter to vermin and contributing to the
current run down and neglected appearance of the plot.

The preposed scheme includes a landscaping scheme which offers appropriate species
and materials to further improve the area and contribute to an improved street scene,

see Drawing Ref CEN L1,

7. PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

See Planning Supporting Statement submitted with application.

8. HIGHWAYS

The existing vehicular access to the plot is from Commercial Soreet and will be retained
although reduced in width to 5.5 m with the layout and arrangement having being
discussed and agreed with the Local Authority Highways department.

Whilst it is not anticipated that the residents will all own cars, a parking ratio of almost
90% has been achieved by providing 41 bays in the undercroft and 12 bays behind the
existing retail units. The corner locations of the undercroft will also provide secure
storage for just over 60 bicycles.

Vision splays of 4.5 m x 33 m are achievable, with Commercial Street being restricted to
20 mph at this location.

The access drive will include an informal turning head and an approved verge crossing
detail. No significant issues were identified with the vehicular access, however the exact
requirements will be guided by the NYCC Highway Department requirements.

9. DRAINAGE

A separate foul and surface water drainage system will be installed within the plot and
connected to the existing public sewers in Commercial Street with pumping stations as
required to specialist specification. The hard standing and access road will be surfaced
with permeable paving and a surface water storage tank will be incorporated with a
flow restrictor to be designed by a specialist which will reduce surface water run-off
from the site subject to the guidance and exact requirements of Yorkshire Water, the
Environment Agency and YCC drainage department.

10. SUNLIGHT AND PRIVACY

National guidance on assessing new development proposals is set out in the Building
Research Establishment Report “Site Layout Planning for Daylight and Sunlight: A
Guide to Good Practice” by P ] Littlefair (1991). Local plan policies generally protect
residential amenity and ensure that adjacent development does not resule in
unreasonable loss of light, overlooking or overshadowing. Good design ensures
buildings which in their design, torm and positioning are compatible with the

Page 78



character of the surroundings, and which will not result in an unreasonable loss of
privacy or natural light to neighbouring properties or be detrimental to
neighbourhood amenity.

The horseshoe arrangement and southern facing orientation provides good levels of
natural lighting throughout the development and with large spaces between the
neighbouring dwellings and the proposed development, the loss of light concern is
minimised and the shading created will fall mainly on the uninhabited railway and
river bank to the north of the site.

11. FLOOD RISK

See Flood Risk Assessment and Maps submitted with application.

The River Derwent is prone to flooding at Malton and Norton although as the site is
sl()ping, it includes areas ranging trom tlood zones 1 (low risk], 2 (medium risk) and 3
{moderate risk). This has been addressed with the inclusion of a floodable void in the
undercroft which will improve the flood storage capacity and slightly reduce the flood
risk locally,

The ground floor of the development will be elevated o 20,5 m aod which is 200 mm
above the 1:1000 year predicted flood level, but still close to the existing level on site
and some 600 mm lower that Commercial Street.

12. SUSTAINABILITY

The site is located in the centre of Norton, which is served by a regular bus and train
services, [t is readily accessible by public transport, footpath and by bicycle.

The proposed new dwellings will help Ryedale District Council to meet the housing
need and the new residents will support and contribute to the local economy and
prosperity.

The design is intended to enhance the streetscene and contribute to the character of
Norton.

Materials used during the construction will be sourced locally and selected with regard
to ‘whole life’ cost.

The refuse generated on site will be separated into the differing waste classes as
requested in preparation for collection by the local authority,

The proposal will not create significant levels of pollution.

The access drive will be surfaced with permeable materials and a surface water storage
tank with flow restrictor will be installed so thar the site has no greater impact on
flooding or rainwater run-off than it does at present.

The development is considered to be sustainable using the Bruntland 1987 definition
of “development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability
of future generations to meet their own needs”,

The dwellings will comply with current building regulations and will be efficient in
terms of thermal insulation and energy consumption which assists in minimising their
carbon footprint. The units will benetit from a thermally efficient heating systems and
low energy lighting. The use of Low Carbon Technology is intended to reduce the
demand on fossil fuels.

Page 79



13. DESIGNING OUT CRIME

The proposed dwelling is arranged to provide close supervision of the access drive and
and amenity spaces. The provision of distinct borders with well-defined public and
private spaces discourage antisocial behaviour and reduce the risk of crime. The
development is intended to encourage a community feel and promote a ‘crimeswatch’
conscious neighbourhood.

14. HERITAGE STATEMENT

See Archacological Desk Based Assessment and Sire History submitted with
application.

15. ACOUSTIC

See Noise Impact Assessment submitted with application.

16. CONTAMINATION

See Phase 1 Desk Top Study with application.

17. TREES

See Tree Report and Plan submitted with application.

18. CONCLUSIONS

The plot is currently vacant and ideally positioned to provide additional dwellings in
the centre of Norton.

The proposed new dwellings are intended to sit sympathetically and contribute
positively to this setting.

The development has been designed with flood risk in mind, the ground floor being
well above the 1:1000 vear flood level, and a large floodable void to the undercroft
below.

We believe this design statement has set out a well-considered scheme and the
principles behind the evolvement of the design,

The material planning considerations relevant to the determination of this application
have been set out in relation to the national, regional and local plan pelicy as
described in the Planning Supporting Statement.

We hope to have demonstrated that the broad principle of development on this site
complies with these policies on many levels.

The applicant hopes that Ryedale District Council is able to support this planning
application for the development of a high quality dwellings.

Page 80



Agenda Item 7

Item Number: 7

Application No: 14/01081/0UT

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Appn. Type: Outline Application

Applicant: Mr Paul Strickland

Proposal: Erection of dwelling with detached garage (site area 0.1ha)

Location: Land At Piercy End Kirkbymoorside

Registration Date: 6 October 2014 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 1 December 2014

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No views received to date

Parish Council No objections or comments made

Highways North Yorkshire No objections - recommend conditions

Building Conservation Officer Object

Environmental Health Officer Recommend condition

Neighbour responses: J  Cossins,Mr David Brewster,John Freeman,Leslie
Clarke,Mr Kentigern Hagan,

Overall Expiry Date: 16 December 2014

INTRODUCTION:

This application was considered at the November Planning Committee where it was deferred pending a
site visit. A Committee Site Inspection was undertaken on 2 December 2014.

UPDATE INFORMATION:

Since the November Committee the formal comments of Kirkbymoorside Town Council have been
received. They have expressed their support for the development on the condition that the emergency
services are consulted to determine that access is guaranteed at all times. They are of the opinion that the
development will not affect the setting of the listed building, and will have no visual impact. They
conclude that the mitigating circumstances of the application warrant further consideration.

A letter of support has also been received from the Parish Priest, who further advises that there will be
no impact on their property. (This property lies to the immediate south of the application site).

Two letters expressing concern have also been received since the November Committee. The full
responses are available to view on the Council website. However their main comments are that they are
in agreement with Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan-Local Plan Strategy with regard to protecting and
preserving open back land spaces within the Conservation Area. Furthermore they are concerned that
due to parking problems on Piercy End they do not want their ability to park in front of their garage to be
adversely affected by the development.

In relation to the Town Council comments, the road frontage clearly states ‘keep clear’, and the access
itself has ‘no parking’ written across the width of the access. Keeping the direct access to the site is a
civil issue which will be controlled by the applicant and the owners of the adjacent garages.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 81



In relation to the comments raised in the neighbour letter, the protection of the open land within the
Conservation Area is addressed in the earlier committee report on the November agenda. Comments
relating to the ability to park in front of their garage are a civil issue. Nevertheless the applicant has
confirmed that he has a right of access to the site at all times.

In relation to other issues, Members are aware that the application is in outline only, with all matters
reserved. The application was however accompanied by a plan for illustrative purposes to demonstrate
how the site could be developed. Officers expressed concern in the original report that, notwithstanding
the objections to the principle of the development in relation to the Conservation Area, the illustrative
design was out of keeping with the character of the area, and would erode the character of the burgage
plots. Since the November meeting, the agent has submitted a revised plan which illustrates a dwelling
incorporating a narrower, more traditional span, together with a predominantly linear footprint. The
revised plan is attached for Members attention.

Officers are of the opinion that the revised design approach has illustrated a structure which is perhaps
more in keeping with the appearance of linear, subordinate outbuildings, sometimes found in burgage
plot locations. However, overriding officer objections relating to any development in this open and
relatively undeveloped part of the Conservation Areas remains. The recommendation, therefore, is one
of refusal for the reasons previously stated.

If Members are, nevertheless, minded to approve this outline application, it is recommended that a
condition be imposed that requires the detailed plans to respect the single-storey linear form of
development illustrated on the revised plan.

RECOMMENDATION: Refusal

1 The proposed dwelling is in a backland location which does not constitute infill development.
As such, the development is contrary to the principles of Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy.

2 The proposed development fails to preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation
Area, by virtue of the harm to the burgage plot arrangement that consists of undeveloped land
behind frontage buildings. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy SP12 of the
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

3 The development would harm the setting of the neighbouring Grade II listed building which
shares a boundary with the application site. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy
SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 82



Item Number: 17

Application No: 14/01081/0UT

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Appn. Type: Outline Application

Applicant: Mr Paul Strickland

Proposal: Erection of dwelling with detached garage (site area 0.1ha)
Location: Land At Piercy End Kirkbymoorside

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 1 December 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 3 December 2014

Case Officer: Rachel Smith Ext: 323
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No views received to date
Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date
Building Conservation Officer No objection
Environmental Health Officer No views received to date
Neighbour responses: J Cossins,

SITE:

The site is situated in Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area to the rear of 51-55 Piercy End. The access
to the site is situated between the existing dwellings, which also provides access to a block of six
garages. The Catholic Church and vicarage is situated to the immediate south of the site. The
applicant has advised that the land is currently used as an allotment and is not a private garden, it is
approximately 800 square metres and is bounded to the west by the garage block, with hedges around
the other boundaries. The adjacent dwelling, 53 Piercy End, is a grade II listed building.

PROPOSAL:

Outline planning permission is sought for the erection of a single-storey dwelling and detached
garage, with all matters reserved. An illustrative plan has been submitted to demonstrate how a
dwelling and garage could be accommodated on the site. Vehicles and pedestrians would use the
existing access to the garages. The application is accompanied by detailed information relating to the
personal needs of the applicant. The applicants have a daughter with a progressive neurological
disorder who has to use a wheelchair or walking frame. The family currently live in a two-storey
house approximately 1 mile from the centre of Kirkbymoorside. The application site is within their
ownership. Letters in support of the application have been submitted from the following people:

Consultant Paediatrician

Consultant Paediatric Cardiologist

Occupational Therapist - York Teaching Hospital
Occupational Therapist - NYCC Social Services
Head Teacher, Kirkbymoorside Primary School
Chief Officer, Ryedale Special Families

The applicant’s personal statement

A letter of support has also been received by a Kirkbymoorside Town Councillor.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 N{venper88014



HISTORY:

There is no recent history on the application site itself. The following history is pertinent to the
adjacent Catholic Church:

00/00553/FUL - Permission granted for the change of use of 1** floor to office together with formation
of car parking area

08/001037/FUL - Permission granted for extension to church to form toilets
POLICY:

Primary Legislation

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Area Act) 1990

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework March 2012
National Planning Policy Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services (relates to Public open space Contributions)
Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP19 - Presumption id Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Conditions

APPRAISAL:
The main issues in the consideration of the application are:

Principle of residential development
Heritage assessment

Design

Neighbour impact

Access considerations
Contributions

Principle of Development

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance
with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy directs most development to the market towns, with Malton
and Norton supported as Ryedale’s principal town and Pickering, Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley as
local service centres. Limited small-scale growth will be directed to service villages. Housing in other
villages is justified only in exceptional circumstances. Policy SP2 states that the sources of new
housing that will contribute to the supply of new homes across the District area as follows:

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Fkag@bm 2014



Housing Land Allocations in and adjacent to the built up area

.Conversion and redevelopment of Previously Developed Land and buildings within
Development Limits
Replacement dwellings
Sub-division of existing dwellings

. Infill development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage)

. 100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with
Policy SP3

e Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where

appropriate.

Policy in the development plan therefore supports new development in Kirkbymoorside in principle.
A key requirement of Policy SP2, however, is that such development is limited to ‘infill only’. The
proposed site is located in a backland location which is not classed as ‘a small gap site in an otherwise
built up frontage’. As such, the development would not be supported by Policy SP2. Furthermore the
site is situated within a sensitive area location. It is within Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area, and
within the setting of a grade II listed building. Accordingly the acceptability of development in this
location is inextricably linked to the impact of the development on designated heritage assets. The
Council’s Conservation Officer has objected to the development for the following reason:-

“This application lies within the Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area and as such, under the Planning
(Listed Building and Conservation Areas ) Act 1990, Ryedale District Council has a duty to have
special regard to the preservation of the character of the area. In addition, a Grade Il listed building
neighbours the development site to the north and in my view this application would have an impact
on the setting of the listed building. Under Section 66 of the above Act, Ryedale District Council also
has a duty to pay special regard to the preservation of the special interest of the listed building or it
setting.

The character of the conservation area at this point is on the cusp between strong linear burgage plot
development to the north of the proposed site and more varied development to the south including the
19" Century Roman Catholic church and vicarage and a mid-late 20" century house set back at a
canted angle. A block of mid 20™ Century garages lies behind the frontage buildings visible through
and accessed by a vehicular access off Piercy End.

The above outline application proposes a ‘Single Storey Dwelling’. A detached building presumed to
be a garage is also shown on the block plan however no details of this are provided with the
application. In my opinion as this application is within the conservation area and affecting the setting
of a listed building, an outline application is not appropriate and detailed drawings should be
provided.

The development site uses the existing vehicular access and is positioned behind the existing garage
block. Views of the dwelling from the road, would be screened by the garage block. The pre-
application proposes a single storey ‘L’ shaped dwelling to the western boundary.

I consider that the principle of developing this site is unacceptable. In my opinion the character of the
conservation area which is desirable to preserve is the burgage plot arrangement that consists of
undeveloped gardens behind frontage buildings. This development does not follow that historic form
and would position a bungalow style dwelling in a backland location roughly centred within the plot.
Although I acknowledge that there is a vicarage behind the church at roughly the same location as the
proposed building, I am of the opinion that this is an anomalous form of development within the
conservation area and does not reflect the predominant character.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 N{venper8E14



I also have concerns regarding the development of this plot and its harmful effect on the setting of the
neighbouring Grade II listed building sharing a boundary with the plot to the north of the site. At
present, the setting of the listed building includes undeveloped tranquil back gardens which maintains
and strengthens the historic burgage plot character. The significance of the listed building in this
context can be described as a vernacular cottage set within a domestic street setting. The domestic
curtilage including neighbouring gardens forms the setting to the listed building and these all
contribute to its significance as they emphasise a historic cottage set within a traditional burgage plot
arrangement. I am of the opinion that a dwelling on this site would undermine this character and
cause harm to the setting of the listed building”.

Prior to the submission of this application, the applicant submitted a pre-application request, and was
advised that on the basis of the fundamental concerns regarding the backland location of the site, and
the concerns of the Council’s Conservation Officer, an application for the development of the site was
unlikely to be considered favourably.

The applicant has, nevertheless, resolved to pursue an application for the development of the site, and
accompanied it with a supporting statement. The full statement is appended, however the agent
disputes that this site was ever a garden because it was originally located behind a foundry.
Furthermore he argues that the location is marginal between the burgage plots which are found to the
north and the developed area of the Catholic Church and Petch Croft to the south. He also refers to
comments made by the Conservation Officer that the site is “only on the cusp” between these areas.

In relation to the impact of the development on the setting of the listed building he states:

The traditional house on the street frontage is important in its own right and contributes to the
character and appearance of the conservation area. However behind, apart from the traditional brick
and stone outbuilding, there are also three further, unsightly, outbuildings of plastic sheeting and
roofing felt.

The proposed house would be some 40m away from the traditional outbuilding, separated from it by
the hedge. The unsightly outbuildings define much of the setting of the listed building.

The applicant sums up this section of his statement by the following paragraph;

26. Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan, Heritage, rightly states that designated heritage assets will be
conserved. It also says that proposals resulting in’ less than substantial harm’ will only be agreed
where there is public benefit outweighing any harm. In my judgement there is no harm, but if it is
considered that there was it would not be substantial and the benefit to the applicants is a compelling
reason to approve the proposal.

The Conservation Officer has taken account of the applicant’s statement, and acknowledges that the
site is on the cusp between two zones. Nevertheless she advises that the site falls more within a zone
where green space to the rear of the plots contributes to the character of the conservation area.
Historic mapping also shows the site as being largely undeveloped and open. As such, she advises that
in her opinion, harm would be caused by the development which would not preserve or enhance the
character of the designated Conservation Area.

Paragraph 134 of the development plan states:-
“Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a

designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal,
including securing its optimum viable use” .

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Fkag@b@ﬁ 2014



Officers have taken account of the detailed personal statement submitted by the applicant together
with the submitted letters of support. Officers accept that there is a functional reason why the
applicants would benefit from living in a market town where there is good access to facilities. It is
also accepted that there are few single storey properties on the market which are within a short
distance of the town centre. Nevertheless, personal circumstances are not a public benefit, and carry
little weight as a material planning consideration. The agent has made reference to para 50 of the
NPPF which requires Local Planning Authorities to plan for a mix of housing based on the needs of
different groups in the community, including people with disabilities. It is considered however, that
this paragraph is intended to be taken into account when forming policies in development plans, and
by requiring developers of large housing sites to provide a mix of house types. It is not intended to
relate to the personal requirements of applicants.

In view of this it is considered that the development fails the duty under the act, and is contrary to the
requirements of policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan and Section 12 of the NPPF.

Design

The application is in outline with all matters reserved. A plan has been submitted for illustrative
purposes, but is not binding on the outline application. Nevertheless it is an indication of the proposed
development and shows an ‘L’ shaped dwelling and double garage. The application form states that
the dwelling would be brick walling with red clay pantiles to the roof. Officers consider that,
notwithstanding the officer recommendation, if it is accepted that a single storey dwelling would be
acceptable in this location, it should better enhance the form of the burgage plots, such as a simple
linear dwelling. The agent has advised that this would not be possible without increasing the width of
the dwelling with a corresponding increase in ridge height. Officers accept that circulation space
would be an essential feature of any dwelling. Nevertheless, it is still considered that a more
sympathetic plan form could be achieved. It is also considered that the form and location of the garage
is inappropriate and diminishes the burgage plots.

Neighbour considerations

The access to the site lies between two existing dwellings. Given that this is already used to serve six
garages, it is not considered that the use of the access for one further dwelling would result in a
significant adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers. Nor is it considered
that the dwelling would result in an adverse impact on their amenities by virtue of overlooking or
overshadowing. The vicarage to the rear of the Catholic Church is, however, sited in close proximity
to the southern boundary of the site, with windows overlooking it. In the absence of the submission of
detailed plans, it is not possible to fully assess the impact of a dwelling on the existing amenities.
Nevertheless it is considered that it would be possible to mitigate any significant impact on their
existing amenities by an appropriate design.

Access.

The views of the Highways Authority are awaited. However, it is accepted that the site is served by
an existing access which already provides access to six garages.

Conclusion

Officers have taken account of the particular personal circumstances regarding the submission of this
application, and have sympathy with the applicant’s need to be situated with easy access to facilities,
together with family and friends. It is also accepted that there are few single storey dwellings
currently available on the market in close proximity to the centre of the town. Nevertheless, it can not
be demonstrated that the development preserves or enhances the character of the conservation area. It
will result in harm to the setting of the listed building and the character of the conservation area.
Furthermore the illustrative plan and elevation accompanying the application fails to respect the
character of the burgage plots. Accordingly, the recommendation is one of refusal.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 N{veper8o14



RECOMMENDATION: Refusal

1

The proposed dwelling is in a backland location which does not constitute infill
development. As such, the development is contrary to the principles of Policy SP2 of the
Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

The proposed development fails to preserve or enhance the character of the Conservation
Area, by virtue of the harm to the burgage plot arrangement that consists of undeveloped
land behind frontage buildings. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy SP12 of the
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The development would harm the setting of the neighbouring Grade II listed building which
shares a boundary with the application site. As such, it is contrary to the principles of Policy
SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, and Section 12 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
18 Fkagebgg 2014



.Tl.W'r I-its u‘_Euﬂ.'a.!uu BY OR witw M'
lsufmrr mr;u .v|\_“ *.'.'EIE:F?:” mi
THAT ACT PROVIES A we:itoant !;::'ccmlou ..E
COPYOIGHT  This CO™  MUSY sor g COMED ¢
WITHIRT  THE H:-‘nm PERMISSION OF MI

Page 89



.uu;wm suetcs plass O3
e At DeRey evD
x-ugﬁmmx




QJ S s\ j@cy\:;

S
Karen Hood W& |y [ oJ o™ o9
From: Lisa Bolland [town.clerk@kirkbymoorsidetowncouncil.gov.uk]
Sent: 18 November 2014 11.02
To: Karen Hood
Subject: APP NO: 14/01081/0UT

APP NO: 14/01881/0UT
APPLICANT: Mr Paul Strickland

Management Development Team Leader

Please be advised that above planning application was considered at the meeting of the
Planning Committee held at 7pm on Monday 17th November.

Unfortunately I was away from the office from 11 October to 31 October and subsequently
your original correspondence dated 8 October 2014 was not receipted in the office until 1
November and it has not been possible for the Planning Committee to consider this
application until this date. I apologise for the delay of this submission but would ask
that you consider the views of the Kirkbymoorside Town Council Planning Committee as
follows:

The Application is supported by the Town Council on the condition that the emergency
services are consulted to determine that access is guaranteed at all times.

The Town Council disagree with the cbjections submitted by the Conservation Officer as the
proposal does not affect the setting of a listed building. Furthermore the proposed
dwelling will be set back from the road and out of view of the street scene thereby having
no visual impact.

It is the opinion of the Town Council that the mitigating circumstances of this
application warrant further consideration.

Regards

Lisa Bolland

Town Clerk

Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Page 91



Agenda Iltem 8

Item Number: 8

Application No: 14/00909/HOUSE

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr Adam Wiles

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above

Location: Newlands 4 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9AN

Registration Date: 19 August 2014 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 14 October 2014

Case Officer: Rachel May Ext: 329

CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Recommend approval

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Neighbour responses: Fiona Delphine & Geof Dudding,

Overall Expiry Date: 18 November 2014

INTRODUCTION:

Members will recall that this application was deferred for further negotiation at the October meeting of
the Planning Committee. A copy of the earlier committee report is attached for ease of reference.

APPRAISAL:

The earlier officer recommendation was one of approval. Concern was, however, expressed by
Members with regard to the scale and design of the proposal. Following the committee, a further
revision scheme was submitted. However, the neighbour has continued to object and therefore the
application is referred to the December’s Committee meeting for a final decision to be made.

The revised scheme omits the storage area above the garage. As a result, the height of the garage roof is
reduced by a further 0.6 metres. The eaves height on the southern elevation has been reduced by 0.1
metres. The parapet wall has been deleted from the west elevation reducing the rear extension height by
a further 0.35 metres.

The garage will now project approximately 2.8 metres off the existing side elevation, and will be
approximately 6.4 metres in length. The eaves height is proposed at 2.5 metres, and the ridge height is
approximately 4.3 metres. The extension is set back from the existing dwelling by 0.3 metres. The rear
extension will extent 3.8 metres along the boundary, and will be 6.5 metres in length. The height of the
flat roof is proposed at 2.8 metres above ground level.

It is considered that the revised plans will result in a reduced impact on the neighbouring occupiers’
amenity.

In light of the above considerations, the proposed side and rear extension is considered to satisfy the
relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan

Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 92



RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be
used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Existing and Proposed Plans and Elevations: revised. (drawing ref: MG/1562/PL/2014)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE

16 December 2014

Page 93



Item Number: 13

Application No: 14/00909/HOUSE

Parish: Norton Town Council

Appn. Type: Householder Application

Applicant: Mr Adam Wiles

Proposal: Erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include integral garage
with storage above

Location: Newlands 4 St Peters Crescent Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17
9AN

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 14 October 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 16 October 2014

Case Officer: Rachel May Ext: 329
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council Recommend approval

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Neighbour responses: Fiona Delphine And Geof Dudding,
SITE:

Newlands is a detached dwelling situated on St Peters Crescent, which is a predominantly residential
area. The site lies within the Development Limits of Norton, as defined within the Ryedale Local
Plan; and is within an archaeological sensitive area.

PROPOSAL:

Planning permission is sought for the erection of single storey side and rear extensions to include
integral garage with storage above. The extension incorporates a garage with storage above to the
side, and a garden room to the rear. At its highest point the garage roof is 5 metres above ground

level, and the parapet wall of the garden room is 3.1 metres above ground level.

Amended plans were negotiated by Officers in order to reduce the impact of the scheme and these are
subject of re-consultation locally which expires on 16™ October 2014.

HISTORY:
There is no planning history relevant to this application.
POLICY:

National Planning Guidance

National Planning Policy Framework
National Planning Practice Guidance

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy

Policy SP16 - Design
Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 94



APPRAISAL:

The main considerations when assessing this application are;
i.  Character and Form
ii.  Impact upon the Street Scene
iii.  Impact upon Residential Amenity
iv.  Conclusion

1. Character and Form

Original Scheme

An original scheme was submitted for a larger extension. This was the subject of a neighbour
objection from the occupiers of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ raising material planning considerations
including scale and proximity to their boundary.

A revised scheme, dropping the eaves and ridge height, was submitted to the Local Planning
Authority in order to address these concerns. The occupiers of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ have however
stated their objections remain in light of the revised scheme. Both letters can be viewed on the
Councils’ website.

Concerns were also raised regarding the size and location of the garage, compromising the off street
parking facility. Following consultation with the Highway Authority, it is considered the garage
would be able to accommodate a car inside and no objections are raised from NYCC Highways on
highways grounds.

The Proposal

The proposed development is in the form of a single storey, side and rear extension. Following the
demolition of the existing detached timber asbestos garage on the west elevation, an attached garage
is proposed on almost exactly the same footprint, with additional storage space above. The garage
will project approximately 2.8 metres off the existing side elevation, and will be approximately 6
metres in length. Originally the eaves height was 3.5 metres, and a ridge height of approximately 6
metres. However the revised plans propose the eaves height at approximately 3 metres, and 5 metres
to the ridge. The extension is set back from the existing dwelling by 0.3 metres.

The rear extension will extend 3.8 metres along the boundary, and will be 6.5 metres in length. The
height of the flat roof was originally set at 3.3 metres, but is now proposed at approximately 3.1
metres.

Overall, the scale and height of the development has been designed to ensure the extension will
appear subservient when viewed within the wider street scene. It is also considered that it would not
dominate the front elevation of the dwelling. It is considered the size and scale of the proposal is, on
balance, appropriate and in compliance with Policies SP16 Design and SP20 Generic Development
Management Issues of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

The proposed construction materials are brick and concrete pan tiles. These materials will match the
hosting dwelling, and are therefore considered acceptable. Timber painting bi-folding doors are
proposed on the north elevation and a steel painted door is proposed for the garage on the south
elevation.

ii.  Impact upon Street Scene

The application site and the surrounding plots are long and narrow, but there is no distinct housing
pattern or spacing around the dwellings. In terms of the street scene, there is a mixture of types and
sizes of detached and semi-detached dwellings in the crescent. ‘2 St Peters Crescent’ has developed
on the boundary shared with ‘4 St Peters Crescent’. ‘6 and 8 St Peters Crescent’ sit centrally in the
plot, and is a pair of symmetrical semi-detached houses.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 95



In terms of impact on the street scene, the side extension compromising the garage would be seen
from public viewpoints and is considered to be in keeping with the surrounding area. It is therefore
considered the extension will not to be detrimental to the visual amenity of the surrounding area. The
rear element of the extension would not significantly impact on the street scene as it will not be easily
seen from any public viewpoints.

iii.  Impact upon Residential Amenity

An objection was received from the occupiers of property of ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ to the original
scheme stating the development would detrimentally impact on the amount of natural light entering
their property, and that the design being inappropriate for the character of the neighbourhood.

Following a re-consultation with regard to the revised plans the occupiers of, ‘6 St Peters Crescent’
stated there objection remains. There has been no response from Norton Town Council. However, the
revised plans are considered to take into account the previous objection with regard to scale and
siting.

Whilst the development will slightly increase the amount of the massing of building along the
boundary shared with the immediate neighbour, the reduce pitch of the garage roof and existing fence
will help mitigate any adverse impacts.

In addition, the west elevation extending along the boundary will not feature any fenestration. The
side of 6 St Peters Square does have 3 small windows, however none are considered to serve primary
rooms and therefore the presence of the extension within approximately 2.5 metres (as amended) is
not considered to be intrusive.

On balance, it is considered there will not be a substantial material adverse impact on the amenity of
the neighbours and therefore this application complies with SP20 Generic Development Management
Issues of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

iv. Conclusion

At the time of writing, there has been one objection received from ‘6 St Peters Crescent’ to the
original and revised proposals. The full letters can be viewed on the Council’s website along with a
response from the applicant, Mr Wiles to the issues raised.

The Highway Authority has no objections to the proposal and Norton Town Council recommends
approval for this application.

In light of the above considerations, the proposed side and rear extension is considered to satisfy the
relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies SP16 Design; SP19 Presumption in Favour of
Sustainable Development; SP20 Generic Development Management Issues of the Ryedale Plan —
Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore
recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 96



2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Existing and Proposed Plans and Elevations: revised. (drawing ref: MG/1562/PL/2014)
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

(NB Pursuant to this condition the applicant is asked to complete and return the attached
proforma before the development commences so that materials can be agreed and the
requirements of the condition discharged)

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 October 2014

Page 97



EXISTING

PROPOSED

EXISTING

PROPOSED

o~ H Bﬁ

AT ELEVATION

NORTH  ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

T ELOGR 2LaN

b saie

RYEDALE DM

19 Al M
VELOPMENT
D‘\,‘,’;\\N\J;xu.jﬂ
U O OAH fos,
aie
¥r A, Riles
[ o
rescent

£ sed single storey extensior,
e and replacesent canopy docve
front door
[

Bristing and proposed plans and
elevatio

o
G B Vb Torege Yok Y00 00
o s s

D6l e e s ey 41 maserers
5 i

e

Frraes

e y6/1562/7L/ 2014

Page 98



Key | Scaedule

2 =
S8 = =
£ o T g =
ag g
58 =
58 = S
b = =
> &
0 =

e Tecl

|

MG/1562/3/PL/2014

Traving fo.

EXISTING

WEST ELEVATION

NORTHE ZLEVATION

EAST ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

E‘::;

PROPOSED

WEST ELEVATION

NORTH ELEVATION

SOUTH ELEVATION

EXISTING

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

PROPOSED

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

GROUND FLOOR PLAN




Agenda Item 9

Item Number: 9

Application No: 14/00980/MFUL

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application Major

Applicant: W&W Estates (Thornton Dale) Ltd (Mr John Warrington)
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of 6no. four bedroom

dwellings, 4no. three bedroom dwellings, 2no. two bedroom dwellings and
2no. one bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking and
amenity areas and repositioning of vehicular access

Location: Ryelands Care Home Hurrell Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North
Yorkshire YO18 7QR

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 19 December 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 16 December 2014

Case Officer: Alan Hunter Ext: Ext276

CONSULTATIONS:

Housing Services Support

Property Management Contribution towards affordable housing and public open
space required

Parish Council No objection

Highways North Yorkshire No objection - recommends condition

Countryside Officer No objection - recommend conditions

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions

Land Use Planning Recommend conditions

NYM National Parks No objection

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend condition

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection subject to improvements been carried
out and a commuted sum agreed

Neighbour responses: Mike Halliday, Roger Dawson,

The application site contains a former Care Home located on Hurrell Lane, Thornton-le-Dale. The
application site has a frontage of 59m and total depth of approximately 100m at its greatest, and
measures 0.64 hectares in area. Part of the site wraps around the rear of a group of bungalows on the
south side. The application site is located within the development limits of Thornton-le-Dale and
adjacent to an Area of High Landscape Value, being the fringe of the Yorkshire Wolds.

There is existing residential development on the northern and southern sides, with open countryside to

the western side. There is a group Tree Preservation Order (TPO) on the planting adjacent to the site
on the eastern side.

PROPOSAL:
Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing Care Home and the erection of 14
dwellings with associated garages, parking, amenity areas and re-positioning of vehicular access. The

scheme comprises the following mix:

® 6 no. 4 bed dwellings

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 100



e 4 no. 3 bed dwellings
® 2 no. 2 bed dwellings
e 2no. 1 bed dwellings

Of these, there are 8 semi-detached properties and 6 detached properties.
The proposal includes the provision of 35% affordable housing through:

e 2 no. 2 bed dwellings;
e 2no. 1 bed dwellings;
e An off-site commuted sum equivalent to 0.9% of a dwelling to make up the balance.

The dwellings are to be constructed of a mixture of stone and brick under clay pantile roofs with
timber windows and doors. The dwellings have eaves heights between 5Sm and 5.6m and ridge heights
from 7.8m to 9.1m. The proposed dwellings are of traditional design.

The smallest units (Plots 1 and 6) will have a footprint of 7.6m by 4m, and the largest, Plot 14, will
have a footprint of 11.4m by 9m at its greatest.

There has been the following documents submitted with the application:-

Design & Access Statement;
Arboricultural Report;

Planning Statement;

Ecological Report;

Phase 1 Desk Based Ground study

These are available to view online.

HISTORY:

There is a varied history on the site relating mainly relating to the former Care Home. It includes:
2005: Planning permission granted for the erection of a glazed atrium roof over open courtyard to
form reception area and offices together with conversion of garage to laundry room with windows to
replace garage doors.

1999: Erection of a pair of semi-detached retirement bungalows and extension to nursing home.

1996: Erection of extensions to retirement home.

1994: Planning permission granted for the erection of a double garage.

1993: Planning permission granted for the erection of a conservatory and detached garage.

1991: Planning permission granted for the erection of a single storey extension to existing nursing
home.

1991: Planning permission granted for the erection of an entrance porch

1988: Planning permission granted for the erection of part one storey/part two storey extension to
nursing home.

1985: Planning permission granted for the change of use from offices to residential and nursing home
for the elderly

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 101



POLICY:

National Policy

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012
National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013)

Policy SP1 - General Location of New Development and the Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Distribution and Delivery of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services

Policy SP13 - Landscapes

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Policy SP18 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy

APPRAISAL:
The main considerations in relation to this application area:

The principle of the proposed development;

The layout, scale and design of the scheme;

Impact upon the residential amenity of the adjoining properties;
Whether the proposed development will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity;
Affordable housing provision;

Drainage;

Highway safety;

The impact upon the surrounding landscape;

Protected species;

Trees and landscaping;

Developer contribution; and

Other issues.

This application is classed as ‘Major’ development and therefore has to be determined by Planning
Committee.

Officers have been in negotiations with the applicant regarding the layout of the proposed scheme. As
a result revised plans have been submitted that have resulted in a reduction in the scale of Plot 14
along with improvements to its fenestration. Furthermore, Plots 1 and 2 have been ‘swapped’ with
Plot 14. This is because it is considered that a detached dwelling would relate better to the detached
property to the northern side on Hurrell Lane and a pair of semi detached dwelling would also have a
better relationship to the terraced bungalows on the southern side of Hurrell Lane. Hedges have also
been introduced within the ‘inner’ frontage areas and a side bedroom window has been altered on Plot
10. The central access point onto Hurrell Lane has also been moved 7m further south from that
originally proposed. The revised plans are now subject to a period of re-consultation, which closes on
the date of the Planning Committee meeting. Members will be updated at the meeting of any
additional comments.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 102



Principle of the proposed development

There is considered to be no protection afforded to the Care Home use by Policy SP11 of the LPS.
The building itself was built approximately 25 years ago, and there is considered to be no objection in
principle to its demolition. It is understood that there is no need for this facility and the property has
been bought by the applicants on the open market.

The adopted Local Planning Strategy is based on a residential strategy which seeks to focus new
residential development in sustainable settlements comprising the four market towns and the selected
‘service villages’ Policy SP1 defines Thornton-le-Dale as a Local Service Centre, and a tertiary focus
for growth. The village has public transport links, a schools, some retail provision and is very close to
Pickering, that has two allocated employment sites.

Para. 49 of NPPF states:

‘Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of sustainable
development. Relevant policies for the supply of housing should not be considered up-to-date if the
local planning authority cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites.’

The Council does not currently have a 5 year supply of housing (4.39 years of housing supply at
30.06.2014). Therefore in accordance with para. 49 of NPPF, the proposal must be considered against
para. 14 of NPPF.

Para. 14 states:

‘.... For decision-taking this means:
e Approving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay; and
e Where the development plan is absent, silent, or relevant policies are out-of —date, granting
planning permission unless:
- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this framework taken as a whole; or
- Specific policies in the Framework indicate development should be restricted.’

In this case Policy SP2 (Delivery and Distribution of new housing) of the Local Planning Strategy is
the principal policy relating to housing supply and under the terms of para 49 has to be considered
‘out of date’. Incidentally, Policy SP2 seeks to provide an additional 300 dwellings over the plan to be
located within the ten identified Local Service Centres, including Thornton-le-Dale. However, in view
of the site’s location within the development limits of the settlement it is considered to be consistent
with Policy SP2. Therefore, even if full weight could be attached to Local Planning Policy SP2 it is
considered that the scheme would be consistent with that policy. It should be noted, however, that
Policy SP1 (General Location of new development and settlement hierarchy) and Policy SP19
(presumption in favour of sustainable development) and all other relevant paragraphs of NPPF seek to
encourage sustainable residential development in locations such as Thornton-le-Dale.

In view of the above, together with the sustainable location of the site within the development limits
of Thornton-le-Dale, the principle of residential development on the site is considered to be
acceptable. This is subject to any impacts associated with the proposal that are considered to cause
‘significant’ and ‘demonstrable’ harm in accordance with para 14, which will be addressed below.

The layout, scale and design of the proposed scheme

The proposed development has an access onto Hurrell Lane in a central position with a dwelling on
the northern side and a pair of semi-detached properties to the southern side. The access leads to a cul-
de-sac with dwellings at either side and along the rear (eastern side) boundary. This is considered to
represent a logical and effective use of the site in view of its irregular shape.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 103



The proposed semi-detached units (Plots 1 and 2) are designed to appear as a modest double fronted
dwelling, with one central door and a side door. The largest dwelling (Plot 14) has been reduced in
scale from the original submission and its fenestration has been significantly improved. As a result
Plot 14 is considered to relate well to the existing detached properties to the northern side. The semi-
detached properties to the southern side will form an appropriate link to the terraced bungalows to the
southern side.

The general design of design and scale of the proposed dwellings is considered to respect the local
vernacular of the village and is considered to result in a well designed scheme. The ridge heights of
between 7.8m and 9.1m is typical of other two storey dwellings in the area.

The mix of the scheme was improved on the advice of officers to incorporate 6 semi-detached
properties and 8 detached dwellings. Whilst some terraced units could improve the mix further in
view of the location of the site, it is considered to be reasonable mix. The density of the site is 22
dwellings to the hectare, which is a relatively low density level. However, in view of the edge of the
village location and the character of surrounding dwelling, and that this site has the potential to ‘open
up’ another potential site via the proposed cul-de-sac, the density is considered to be acceptable in this
respect.

There is considered to be a good mix on the size of dwellings on the site from 1-bed units to 4-bed
dwellings.

Plots 5, 6, 7, and 12 are to be in brick and the remaining 10 plots are to be stone. The proposed
dwellings are all to have clay pantile roofs with timber windows and doors. The design also
incorporates details such as art stone quoins, brick dentil courses, and flush verges. It is considered
that the proposed materials are considered to be acceptable and relate well to the character of
dwellings in the village.

Affordable Housing provision

The affordable housing provision comprises the following:

2 no 2 bed dwellings
2 no. 1 bed dwellings

An off site commuted sum equivalent to 0.9 of an affordable unit is also required - calculated by the
Council’s Valuer to be £90,000. This provision meets the 35% on site requirement contained within
Policy SP3 of the LPS. Of those on-site units one of the 2-bed units is required to be an intermediate
property and the remaining three units are required to be available for rent. The precise terms will be
secured through a Section 106 Agreement.

Impact upon the residential amenity of the adjoining properties

There is a detached dwelling to the north fronting Hurrell Lane. There will be a separation distance of
between 6m and 12m between that dwelling and plot 14, and 5m between plot 2 and the adjoining
bungalow to the south western side. Hurrell Court is a collection of bungalows to the southern side.
These are relatively small properties with communal areas, that were formerly related to the operation
of the Care Home. To the northern side are generally detached properties with large gardens. The
proposed dwellings will all have separation distances from surrounding properties above the widely
recognised minimums of 20m from a ‘back to back’ relationship. The side by side relationship for
those proposed dwellings fronting Hurrell Lane is considered to be acceptable on the revised plan. As
a result there is considered to be no unacceptable potential overlooking to adjoining properties, loss of
sun lighting or day lighting, or an unacceptable massing of buildings in close proximity to existing
dwellings. It is also noted that no objections have been submitted in respect to specific residential
amenity impacts.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 104



There is a first floor side window on Plot 1, which it appeared should be obscure glazed to prevent an
unacceptable level of potential overlooking to the adjoining property.

Whether the proposed development will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity

The dwellings will all have their own private car parking and garden areas. The proposed dwellings
will all have a satisfactory relationship with the existing dwellings and between individual plots. As a
result each dwelling is proposed to have a satisfactory level of residential amenity.

The trees under the group TPO to the east are not considered to compromise the residential amenities
of the proposed dwellings.

Drainage

Yorkshire Water has confirmed that the mains sewer can accept foul water and recommends standard
conditions in this respect. The applicant originally proposed to drain surface water into the mains,
however Yorkshire Water has requested that the applicant investigate other sustainable forms of
drainage first. The applicant has identified that there is a watercourse/drain to the south of the site
within the highway verge (400m to the south), which is managed by the Internal Drainage Board.

The Internal Drainage Board (IDB) has stated that there is a ditch approximately 400m south of the
application site and it is in a moderate condition. The IDB have stated that they would have no
objection to receiving the surface water subject to improvements being carried out to the ditch
network. The IDB has requested a commuted sum for undertaking this work and this would have to be
secured via a S106 agreement. Finally the IDB have stated that surface water would need to be
attenuated on site and discharged at a controlled rate.

The agent has been asked for precise details of the above and has stated that there would be 100m3
storage underneath the parking areas for Plot 1 and 2 and surface water could be attenuated to 3 1/s. It
is also understood that the highway drainage and the surface water drainage for the individual plots
require separate pipes as the highway drainage pipe is to be adopted by the Highway Authority.

The applicants have confirmed that the underground tanks will not result in increases in the height of
the development above existing ground levels and that a management company would be set up to
manage the surface water drainage system.

Regarding the drainage of water within the highway, the proposal is to drain surface water from the
highway into underground oversized pipes which will then drain into an existing network of drainage
to the south via the existing highway. This will be delivered via a S278 agreement and a commuted
payment in respect of future maintenance.

Highway safety

The proposed development relates to a former Care Home, the traffic associated with the lawful use of
that building includes staff, visitors, medical personnel and deliveries. This level of activity should be
considered against the anticipated movements of 14 dwellings. The local Highway Authority, given
the scale of the proposal has not requested a Transport Assessment for the proposed development. The
Highway Authority responded to the original submission to state that they had no objections subject to
the imposition of standard highway conditions. These conditions include a detailed specification of all
works within the highway proposed to be adopted, that roads are constructed prior to occupation of
the dwellings, surface water drainage, precautions to prevent mud on the highway, parking for the
individual dwellings, that the existing access is to be closed, construction parking, and the provision
of a public footpath from the site to the existing public footpath on the A170.

The provision of a proposed footpath to the A170 is currently being considered further by officers.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 105



The impact upon the surrounding landscape

The proposed development replaces a modern care home building with 14 well designed dwellings in
a cul-de-sac layout. The site is surrounded on two sides (north and south) by existing residential
development with mature planting to the eastern side. There is open countryside on the western side.
The site lies within the development limits of Thornton-le-Dale and is considered to be enhancement
to the current appearance of the site. It is considered that the proposed development will not have an
adverse effect upon the special scenic quality of the Area of High Landscape Value.

Protected species

An Ecological Survey and Assessment has indicated that there is a significant maternity bat roost in
the main building and several summer and transitional roosts throughout the site. A European
Protected Species Licence will be required as these buildings are to be demolished. The site and
buildings also contained suitable nesting habitats for birds and the Countryside Management Officer
recommends that the submitted method statement is adhered to during construction works. The
submitted reports also contain recommendations in respect of enhancement to the local biodiversity
and it is recommended that conditions in respect of the above issues are imposed. Subject to these
conditions it is considered that the proposal will meet the requirements of Policy SP14 of the LPS.

Trees and landscaping

An Arboricultural Report has been submitted and considered by the Tree and Landscape Officer who
has stated:

“The proposal requires the removal of eight trees, i.e. two limes (T2 and T12) and a cherry (T13) on
the site frontage, a sorbus species (T4) close to the northern boundary, and four apples in the eastern
side of the site. Of these only two limes are considered to be of any amenity value. However, both of
these trees are poorly structured and liable to suffer branches losses as they further mature”.

There is, therefore, no objection the loss of the trees and supplementary planting of small to medium
sized trees is required by condition.

Furthermore changes have been negotiated to provide additional hedge planting along the frontage of
plots within the scheme. Conditions are therefore recommended in respect of the additional planting.

A condition is also recommended in respect of a protecting fencing for the trees on the eastern side of
the site, protected under a group Tree Preservation Order.

Developer contributions

The Council’s Valuer has calculated that there is a requirement for an off-site contribution towards
Public Open Space (POS) of £30,912 in accordance with Policy SP11 of the Local Plan Strategy.

As outlined above a financial contribution of £90,000 has been calculated by the Council’s Valuer to
make up the shortfall in respect of the 35% affordable housing provision.

These contributions together with the on-site affordable housing provision will need to be secured by
S106 agreement.

Other issues
The Environmental Health Officer has no objection subject to a condition relating to potential ground

contamination through the preparation of a Phase 2 report. The North York Moors National Park
Authority has no objection to the proposal.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 106



The Parish Council had no objection to the original submission. The neighbour to the south has
written and asked that the proposed dwelling nearest to his property (Plot 14) has a carport to the rear
and not the side of their property. One further neighbour letter has been received which raises the
following issues; the security of boundaries and privacy; additional traffic using Hurrell Lane and
suggested method to increase its safety; drainage; the width of Hurrell Lane; footpath provision
possibly being a marked area on the road; re-positioned utility poles; suggest 8 dwellings instead of
14 would be more in keeping with the area; and the impact upon the adjacent bungalows at Hurrell
Court.

The comment regarding the car port has been addressed through the revised plans. As a result the
proposed scheme will have a better relationship with No. 12 Hurrell Court and is not considered to
adversely affect its amenities. A condition is recommended regarding boundary details, with the aim
that the private areas of surrounding properties are protected by a fence or structure to a suitable
height. Highway safety has been assessed by the Highway Authority and is appraised above. The
density of development is acceptable, 8 dwellings would clearly not be an efficient use of land in this
sustainable ‘service village’ location. Furthermore, it would not secure the public benefits secured
under this submission. Finally residential amenity impacts have been appraised above. Officers are
currently considering the Highway Authority’s request for how best to accommodate a pedestrian path
from the application site to the A170.

In view of the above assessment, there has been no significant or demonstratable harm identified and
Members of the Planning Committee are recommended to approve this application.

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Guidance

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP3 Affordable Housing

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP4 Type and Mix of New Housing

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP11 Community Facilities and Services

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP14 Biodiversity

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP22 Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community
Infrastructure Levy

RECOMMENDATION: Approval subject to S106 Agreement in respect of
developer contributions and the expiry of the consultation
period.

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to
be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 107



Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre
square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building.
The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed

Reason:- To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Prior to the commencement of the development, details of all windows, doors and garage
doors, including means of opening, depth of reveal and external finish shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure an appropriate appearance and to comply with the requirements of
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of
landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs
and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The
submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on
planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including existing items to be retained. All
planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the
first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer
period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs
which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of
similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any
variation.

Reason:- To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply
with the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and
design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling
to which they relate.

Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the
neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by
Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the completion of the
approved surface water drainage works and no buildings shall be occupied or brought into
use prior to completion of the approved foul drainage works.

Reason:- To ensure that no foul or surface water discharge takes place until proper
provision has been made for their disposal and to satisfy the National Planning Policy
Framework.

The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and surface water on
and off site.

Reason:- In the interests of satisfactory and sustainable drainage, and to satisfy Policy SP20
of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 108



10

11

12

13

No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of disposal of foul and
surface water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off-site works, have
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure that the site is properly drained and surface water is not discharged to
the foul sewerage system which will prevent overloading, and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, development shall
not commence until a Phase 2 site investigation report is undertaken and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Should the Phase 2 investigation recommend remedial
works, or if these are requested by the Local Planning Authority, development shall not
commence until a Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Reports shall be prepared in accordance with Contaminated
Land Report 11 and BS 10175(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potential
Contaminated Sites. The development shall not be occupied until the approved remediation
scheme has been implemented and a verification report detailing all works carried out has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- In order to fully take account of potential contamination and to satisfy Policy SP20
of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

Notwithstanding the submitted drainage details and prior to the commencement of the
development full details of the method of draining surface water from the site, including its
detailed design and routes, attenuation details, and future maintenance of the surface water
system shall be submitted to and approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- To ensure the site can be effectively drained and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the
Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework.

No removal of hedgerows, trees or shrubs shall take place between 1st of March and 31st of
August inclusive, unless a competent ecologists has undertaken a careful, detailed check of
vegetation for active birds nests immediately before the vegetation is cleared and provided
written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and that there are appropriate measures in
place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority, by a suitably qualified ecologist for written
approval prior to any such removal or clearance works.

The Following works — the demolition of the Ryelands Care Home shall not in any
circumstances commence unless the local planning authority has been provided with either:

a) A license issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53 of The Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 authorising the specified activity/development to go
ahead; or

b) A statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not
consider that the specified activity/development will require a license.

Reason:- In order to fully address the impact upon protected species ant to satisfy Policy
SP14 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy
Framework.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 109



14

15

No development shall take place until a method statement for the creation of new wildlife
features has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The content
of the method statement shall include the following:-

a) Purpose and objectives for proposed works

b) Detailed designs/working methods necessary to achieve stated objectives
c¢) Extent and location of proposed works

d) Timetable for implementation

e) Persons responsible for implementation

f) Initial aftercare and long term maintenance

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works or the depositing of
material on the site, unless the following drawings and details have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway
Authority:

(1) Detailed engineering drawings to a scale of not less than 1:500 and based upon an
accurate survey showing:

(a) the proposed highway layout including the highway boundary
(b) dimensions of any carriageway, cycleway, footway, and verges
(c) visibility splays

(d) the proposed buildings and site layout, including levels

(e) accesses and driveways

(f) drainage and sewerage system

(g) lining and signing

(h) traffic calming measures

(i) all types of surfacing (including tactiles), kerbing and edging.

(2) Longitudinal sections to a scale of not less than 1:500 horizontal and not less than 1:50
vertical along the centre line of each proposed road showing:

(a) the existing ground level

(b) the proposed road channel and centre line levels

(c) full details of surface water drainage proposals.

(3) Full highway construction details including:

(a) typical highway cross-sections to scale of not less than 1:50 showing a specification for
all the types of construction proposed for carriageways, cycleways and footways/footpaths
(b) when requested cross-sections at regular intervals along the proposed road showing the
existing and proposed ground levels

(c) kerb and edging construction details

(d) typical drainage construction details.

(4) Details of the method and means of surface water disposal.
(5) Details of all proposed street lighting.

(6) Drawings for the proposed new roads and footways/footpaths giving all relevant
dimensions for their setting out including reference dimensions to existing features.

(7) Full working drawings for any structures which affect or form part of the highway
network.

(8) A programme for completing the works.

The development shall only be carried out in full compliance with the approved drawings

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 110



16

17

18

19

and details unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority with the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
secure an appropriate highway constructed to an adoptable standard in the interests of
highway safety and the amenity and convenience of highway users.

No dwelling to which this planning permission relates shall be occupied until the
carriageway and any footway/footpath from which it gains access is constructed to
basecourse macadam level and/or block paved and kerbed and connected to the existing
highway network with street lighting installed and in operation.

The completion of all road works, including any phasing, shall be in accordance with a
programme approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Highway Authority before the first dwelling of the development is occupied.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
ensure safe and appropriate access and egress to the dwellings, in the interests of highway
safety and the convenience of prospective residents.

There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application
site until full details of any measures required to prevent surface water from non-highway
areas discharging on to the existing or proposed highway together with a programme of their
implementation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. The works shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details and programme.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in
the interests of highway safety .

There shall be no movement by construction or other vehicles between the highway and the
application site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until that part
of the access(es) extending 20 metres into the site from the carriageway on the existing
highway has been made up and surfaced in accordance with the approved details and/or
Standard Detail number A1l and the published Specification of the Highway Authority. All
works shall accord with the approved details unless otherwise approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. Any damage during
use of the access until the completion of all the permanent works shall be repaired
immediately.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
ensure a satisfactory means of access to the site from the public highway in the interests of
vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience.

No part of the development shall be brought into use until the existing access on to Hurrell
Lane has been permanently closed off and the highway restored. These works shall be in
accordance with details which have been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. No new access shall be created
without the written approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Highway Authority.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in
the interests of highway safety.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 111



20

21

22

23

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of
material on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or
other works until:

(1) The details of the required highway improvement works, listed below, have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with
the Highway Authority.

(iii) A programme for the completion of the proposed works has been submitted.
The required highway improvements shall include:

(a) Provision of tactile paving

(b) provision of a 1.5 metre wide nominal width kerbed footway along the east side of
Hurrell Lane, between the proposed estate road entrance and existing footway at the A170
junction, together with alterations to road drainage arrangements to give positive drainage
where considered necessary due to kerbing, and street lighting as appropriate.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
ensure that the details are satisfactory in the interests of the safety and convenience of
highway users.

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with
the Highway Authority, the development shall not be brought into use until the following
highway works have been constructed in accordance with the details approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority under condition 19.

Provision of footway etc as described in that condition.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in
the interests of the safety and convenience of highway users.

No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilities have been constructed in
accordance with the approved drawing number 1531/5A. Once created, these parking areas
shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all
times.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
provide for adequate and satisfactory provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in
the interests of safety and the general amenity of the development.

There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application
site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on
public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway
Authority. These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where
considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway
Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of
material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available
and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in
consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of
highway safety.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 112



24

25

26

27

28

During construction works, there shall be no:

(a) Light Goods Vehicles exceeding 3.5 tonnes
(b) Medium Goods Vehicles up to 7.5 tonnes
(c) Heavy Goods Vehicles exceeding 7.5 tonnes

permitted to arrive, depart, be loaded or unloaded on Sundays or a Bank Holiday, nor at any
time, except between the hours of 07:30 to 16:30 on Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00
on Saturdays.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
avoid conflict with vulnerable road users.

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
HCV's brought onto the site until a survey recording the condition of the existing highway
(Hurrell Lane) has been carried out in a manner approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in
the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the area.

Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
establishment on a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of
material in connection with the construction of the site, until proposals have been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of:

(i) on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of
the public highway

(ii) on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the
operation of the site.

The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all times that
construction works are in operation. No vehicles associated with on-site construction works
shall be parked on the public highway or outside the application site.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to
provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and the storage facilities, in the interests of
highway safety and the general amenity of the area.

Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no
establishment of a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of
material in connection with the construction on the site until details of the routes to be used
by HCV operation traffic have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. Thereafter, the approved
routes shall be used by all vehicles connected with construction on the site.

Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in
the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the area.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved precise details of the
existing ground levels and the proposed finished ground floor levels measured in relation to
a fixed datum point shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason:- In order to ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy SP20 of the

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 113



29

30

31

32

Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

Prior to the commencement of the development, details of the landscaping for the
development shall be submitted for approval in writing. The submitted scheme shall include
a planting schedule providing details of species, planting sizes, and numbers of each species
and their locations within the scheme. The approved scheme shall be carried out before the
use hereby permitted is commenced and prior to the completion of the development, or in
accordance with a phased programme of development agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. If within a period of five years after planting (and including the existing
tree or hedge to be retained), any trees or plant is removed, dies or becomes, in the opinion
of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged, defective or diseased, another tree or
plant of the same species and size as that originally approved shall be planted at the same
place within the next planting season, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written
consent to any variation.

Reason:- In the interests of compliance with Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan
Strategy, and in the interests of amenity and enhancement of the development.

Prior to the commencement of the development, including site stripping or demolition, tree
protection fencing of a design previously agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority shall be erected along the eastern boundary of the development along an
alignment at least 1.0m outside the crown spread into the site of any tree along that
boundary. Once erected the fencing shall remain in situ until the completion of the
development.

Reason:- To ensure that the trees on the land immediately to the east of the development,
which are protected under a Tree Preservation Order, are not damaged as a consequence of
development, and in accordance with Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

Prior to the commencement of the development the mature lime and whitebeam in the north
western corner of the site referred to as tree 1 and tree 3, and the large mature ash along the
eastern boundary of the site referred to as tree 11, all shown to be retained on drawing No.
ARB/CP/950/TPP, dated August 2014 shall be protected by protective fencing in
accordance with BS 5837:2012 Trees in relation to demolish, design and construction —
Recommendations or similar design agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority
along the alignment shown in red on the above drawing.

Reason:- To ensure that the roots and the upper parts pf the tree are not damaged as a
consequence of development.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, the first floor window
on the south elevation of Plot 1 shall be permanently obscure glazed with obscure or opaque
glass, with details to be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason:- In order to protect the amenity of the adjoining neighbours and to satisfy Policy
SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 114



33 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Drawing No. 1531/5D
Drawing No. 1531/6C
Drawing No. 1531/7
Drawing No. 1531/9
Drawing No. 1531/10
Drawing No. 1531/11
Drawing No. 1531/12
Drawing No. 1531/13
Drawing No. 1531/14
Drawing No. 1531/15B
Drawing No. 1531/16B
Drawing No. 1531/17
Drawing No. 1531/18
Drawing No. 1531/19
Drawing No. 1531/20A

Reason:- For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
INFORMATIVES:

1. You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in order
to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out. The 'Specification for Housing
and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North Yorkshire County
Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's offices. The local office
of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the detailed constructional
specification referred to in this condition.

2. These works shall include, where appropriate, replacing kerbs, footways, cycleways and
verges to the proper line and level.

3. There must be no works in the existing highway until an Agreement under Section 278 of the
Highways Act 1980 has been entered into between the Developer and the Highway Authority.

Background Papers:

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002

Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework

Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 115



Zibesy  owwn VDOSZIL  av

LR - N N N

EE X N

- O BNV UBIEBPL YL DOEELL 243LD L

aws ESL Asmems 18NS uBIH 16
BSN0H BSH0LIORY

payun ubisap syl

WENNSUCD LBISA0 [E4Nja8iR Yy
M U303 38)4 MaJpuT

ueld uope20o]

HOL 8L OA BILSHIC A ULON ‘8{eq 8] UpiLoy |

aUET [[24nH
aWDH 818D BJEQ 8] UOJUIOYL

P17 (BUCISPE 188ID) SBIEIST AN PUE M

SPFOA00T A8AMAL APusay] PAALBSAL Sty jy B[O uBLAdE] UMea] (3) AEALAG ETdep.)

) _/

Lreen

y-Omnen

Page 116



as/1esT  owsva TV® 002: T =vos

e o 3N00"ISIEINDUBISIPLYT O0EEIL ZHITO L
o o avs 6SL Aorsaiors 1ens udtH 1S | |
> 2 asnop; assopoed ||
s 5 poyuy uisep n«»\
° /i
.
.

JuEymsu0D uSISa( eIV
o I19YOIO[ MaIpUR

noker ay1s 130&2}

AOL 8TOA PIMYSHIOZ YHION |
S[e( 9f uojuIoy, \
SWOH aIe) 9[e( 9] UOJUIOY], |

paywr] (oreq uojuIoy]) SATEISH M B M

sonuadosd joniow usdo a0
L PUD €L ‘ZL ‘L1 ‘0L 6 '8 ‘L ‘b ‘C SI0/d Joj sesnoy
sonuedosd Koupdnooo [000] pejuRs Jo

es0yoind pejsisso [090] 40 9 PUD § ‘Z ') Si0id Joj SesNOH

8/1£51 04 Bumosp

n“_nm_ 401 Buimoip 9Boiob 9jbuis

8/1€S1 a4 Buimosp of
91 % SL/1ESL 4o Bumoup 4 adky asnoy

Hodind PaYIDOp ¥1 Jold
4o0}p PAUIQUIOd Z1/1 | Joid
0106 jbuis PayoDlep ¥/€ 30id
ssnoy paydoep ¥1 10id

ZL/1EGL Joi Bumosp D edky ssnoy esnoy PeUdDIeP €1 10id
LI/LEGL joi Bumoup  odky ssnoy esnoy peUIDIep Z1 10id
eL/1! o1 Bumoup 9 8dA} esnoy @snoy payooiep || 30id

ohww. ssnoy ssnoy payooyep O} 1old
ssnoy ssnoy POYIDIPP WSS 6/8 Joid
2171651 401 Bumoip 9 odky esnoy 9snoy peydDIep £ 10id
6/1€G1 Joi Bumoip g 88N0Y  8SNOY PeYILIeP IWes g J0id
OL/1£G1 Joa Bumoup v edA} esnoy  esnoy peyopyep wes G 30id
€1/1€GL Jo1 Buimoup @ 8dKy ssnoy ssnoy pPeYdDeP 1WSE /¢ oid
6/1€GL Jo4 Bumoip g odA} esnoy  9sNOY PIYODIPP IWSE Z 0Id
6/1€G1 jou Bumoip v odK} esnoy  esnoy Peyooiep 1wes | oid

96paY WIOY)-UOU SNONPIOBP/SNOJBJUD KIBLIDA PoXIW
99U} Joquij PepIDOq 9SO YBIY WWIO0BE
20Us) Jequiny POPIDOQ 85O UBIY WIWIOD6

llok suols Ap sucls |umou by wwpos
90Us) yBly WWOORL WO} 0} PedJojuIal/palindal

seousy/sebpay Yy SADY O} O UoU 8uy o} seruedosd Bunsie
o4y puo sepedosd meu oy} usemjeq Aiopunoq Jejewied eyl

Kox /210N

oS Jo sull

ABasdsup woxy

983008 2oUBTAIUTIW

| poumies oq 0}
\sanius xo o oui

\d

A

SMopuim

| smopuim
useos |0y eousy
Aiopunoq Buop

pejunid see.}/qnays_

—

Aiopunoq
oys jo suj—

Y (A on 1)
L/ yorupuwl :oaolx,\

usesos 0} @duBy
AKippunoq Buojp
pojupid seas} Meu

NV'1d dd

<~
SIAHY

A}

W

Page 117




gﬂ.s m"“-ﬁ__
I
‘ 5
X
R}

oy

iy

Hemes o gitn 1, 2%

-

T e 16

e
-

Page 118

531




L/1EST  owevia 00T Tavs ]

P ey

b T T B pDOY 9}D1S8 MaU WOoJ]l YINOS DBuyoo| UOIIDAS|T
¢ o Parwy uBrsop Lp

. WS u0D WBisaq AR 05°99 44 02'99 144 G199 144 0799 144 0099 144 09°69 144 0469 144

: .

suopenapo 100115 pasodord

AOL BTOA IYSIHIOL YHON
S[e( 9y uoyuIoy,
SwOK 9reQ 3[ed 9] UowIOY ]

TR

PO (O[eq UOIUIoY) SHIEISE M B M

Mgl mgm

0T

| (suoys Ut yIng) (suoys Ul yIng) (fouq Ul 3jing) (ouoys U1 3nqg)
B e RS 14! €1 (A IT
poOOJ 21D1ss MaUu WOoJdl Yyliou @CEOO_ UOI1DA3(

G/6°,9 144 G.L°/974d §2¢'89 144 0189 144

(1ouq Ul 3inq)  (fPLq Ul 3IINg) (euoys ur yiing) (euoys ur ying) (suoys ur yiing)

ppOJ 9)}D}S® MaU WoJ) 1SDa Dujoo| UoIIDAS|]

0099 7144 0099 144 0%'99 144 0,99 144 G1°29744 G129 144 §2'29744 6229744

Y

(suoys Ut yiing) (su0ys ur yiinq) (suoys ur yiing)

(0] 6 8

Page 119




6/1€GT  owmna V@ 0S/T awos

®  0YISTOIPNBIILYT 00EEIL THO1O L
VS 6L ATSOIS 190598 Uy 16

2sm0H 983030y

pojpuy] USSP 441

ceee

eecesen

JuEHNSU00 UBtSAQ (eI
wvon 10Y0IO)) MIIpUE

(¢ puw 1 s101d) gy sad4) asnoy pasodord

0L STOA JHYSHIOA WHON
[e(] 9] UOYUIOY, ‘AU [PAME
QWO 218D Ae( 9] UOJUIOY,

DAY (Peq UOILIOYL) SVEISE M B M

UOIDASIT YHON

sopi o) syen puo sbuenco
Joos oy upid o> "0 US>

UOIIDAD|T 1SOM

ot o poxy
sexnb puncl oy o0l

odd
moms oD HoDKY

g adA}y ssnoy
Z syold

100|4 384

v 2dA} esnoy
L yod

I

oo Buiuip /Buial

oz
[ [/

EES

D ]

i =

”v Buipupy \ N
i

i

|

i

losar q 000%

7

wooipaq

(I

odd
UGS o YooK

J00|4 punoJ9

2dA) esnoy
Z yoid

v 2dAy asnoy
L jord

m

woou Buy |

§

e

wooupaq

D =
js IMESHE
mu&mou i @

r‘}g E— N B T

+—gior wooipaq &
uouow | - A,
=h] i ;
b | bl b | :
108 50 o1 siom owres b1 S Soop P mepts I
230N
UOIIDAS|] 1SDP3

UORDASI3 Yinos

owoy puo soop
Joqun portod Rt

sbudoo sucts o

doy ) 104 /oo puo sBusoy poel
ate oo Kevuii> Yiowou

souoieico; uois o

Page 120



POV (318 UOIUIOYL) SNEIST MM

(¥ 301d) uonpAs|3 3sD3

(pepuby ¢ 10|d) up|4 J0OO|4 1SUl4 (pepuby ¢ 10|d) uD|4 J0O|4 pPunoIs

(¢ 10id) uoloAs(g IsOM

woo.paq

‘006t

R —

(pepupy ¢ 3o|d) uonpAR|3 Yynos (pepupy ¢ 3o0id) UOIDABIF YIION

odd
o oma Kol

Page 121



OT/T€ST  owmwa VD 0S/T  awos

e @ MOISTEOIDUSISIPLYT O0EETLTHAT0 1L,
. aVe 6SL AJTSI0IS 199118 Wiy 15
B Seof] ssi0iong
B PoImY USISOP LpT
Emsu0) WA PP
o Joy03e)y MOIpIE

(9 pue ¢ s10/d) Gy SedAs asnioy pesodod

¥OL 8TOA SNYSHIOA UHON

a[e( 9] UOIUIO], ‘OUeT [[PLME]

QUIOY 918D 9[E( 9] UOJUIOY],

P (S8 UOIUIOYL) SOIEIST M B M

UoIDAR|] 1SaM

g odA} sesnoy

|
RLIERL,
RRRRK

%
020

TR
205

<

[
29

ocpopun -
pup unund puo Buppea
MWoued/puce. ia. sobsen ety

UOIIDAS[T UYINOS

595 o) sujes, puD sbuiowo)
Joor o1 uiyd Ao “sye0d Jouis
Joqun wlin punduine Jo0p paLDL) Jequy

odd
oRus oo o0

10014 3sdi4

v odA} esnoy
9 joid G joid

y@ 4y3oq

lwoou Buiuip /Buini

oL

=

EE

wooipaq
ooz

UOIIDAS|3 YION

J100|{ punou9

g adAy esnoy y odA} esnoy

9 3jo0id g 3o[d

I

| p—3§ =] woouyiog [ P
| LEEEA e

I3 J

il

‘006t o

UOI}DAS|] }SDJ

o9 0 s puo sBuencs
Joou" sty oK oo “ye0d Jeuico
69U Wil PURGAIRG 1005 PoIL) Jequ

i owoy puo
s suote 0 ; 7 s00p soqui, peruiod

1 o soanos

P Pq sanod ¢ anopun weuwsso
Soqus poiiod

sonde Jound oy poxy
enb puncl o4 YooK

P —
"poppoq.soIy obpu

=5

T ]

40 oy 104 Ao puo sbueoy pooy -2
ik 03 Ko Row " o s

b Buvgod pu, Buipped
wou e g o \\

doy 3 100 foo puo sbuysoy posy
Lpin yoois Kouuias s

Page 122



L1/1€ST

£ T

0S/T  awos

eecesec

ceee

®  MCOINEMONDUIIDLYT O0EELL Epor0 1L
Ve 6SL AISBOIS 19911S gy 1o

20 %isong

pojrwy uBsap Lp7

F T g —
v I9Y03O)} Marpue

(2 301d) D 2d&y asnoy pesodord

AOL 810A SUYSIHIOX UIION
a[eq 9] UojIOY, ‘OUET [PLmME
SUIOH 9180 2[8( 3] UOIUIOY ],

Py (Sreq UO3UIOY L) SEIST MBM

LuoNlDAR(3 YIION

e

c,a,__,{gm_m

e piogesou

=P

|

yinos

suoib youq buppsfoid

400

13 3sdl4

j 100|} punoig

b

Il

oo

wooupaq

ooee

wooupaq

[

i wooupaq f\\

(u

sbupenos joos
o1 Ao uioid puo sow uid

oucis ‘aKod 03 Sans puo
swcaq "s1e0d o0 M 4ouod

UOI}DAS(T }SOM

108 09 o) som jowsepes

sy jo wnwiu o oerss v
S Soon puo opum 1Y

210N

oAU oD WooK

PO

{[ﬂ,_FLJ—L

pub nod bup bupped

uouta/puos tiin S9Bsen yemy

HHH

ob0IDb m
woot Ajiwpy /3s0 0044 /Uaydl g
kt %J
g b f 8
< |/
—
§ ) ,
| oo T {
| | |
| T
/ 4
% YA\
- 0005 o o
sa0 UOIIDAB|T 1SDT o ummmes i S
—_—
bl suso; H
| 5
[ =| B

=

L

Joyou wewso/puos.
 'poppeq soy o6py

il b e b Bopned
i woudpuos on ek o

I jaennt Goyon poo

IBARINIBAN sofrcp foos oo o |

Page 123



GUCIE

"
PO UBsop LpT

seceeen

EmNSU0Q UBISQ APV
on I9YDII MIpUER
(6 % g s10d) @ 2d&) asnoy pasodoxd
AOL STOA IYSHIOK YION
a[eq 3] UOjUIOY, ‘AUeT [2LNH
SUIOH 18D 3[8Q 3] UOYIOY],
PO (Preq uoIUIOYL) SAUIST MBM

(pepupy g joid) up|d Jool4 }suid

(pspupy g jo0id) UORDAS|T }SOM

sooe @ sma puo shusmos
odd Joo o, i o " smea
Soms Sopass KO 19, @y UGS J00p Pl Joqu

dus w00

L

6 30/d UoIDASIT YINOS

(pepupy) g 3jo|d UOIIDAS|T ULION

ELLILG)

e

|
),m

wood buiay .;

-

(pepupny g 101d) UOnDAS|3 3SD3

S e o 2l povod

PR

sbup) yomsuole ooy

S6usanos oot oped Aop

b Busood hus Buppen
o /puos pn 2s6an )

oo o o puo st pom
i yooys AeuID omLT

e

ot poo ‘_._!..3

sbusoy pooL Uy 4
ony sooq. peApd 90K

il ::

) 10d fop puo sbunisoy, pooy

ot yooe Hovui Womra

oo ouso/puos

2 poppoq sem sbpu

| W wooJ ,:wn:um
1
|r==1ir
' { |

]

1
|
|
|
|
v
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

I
\
|
|
|
|
|
|
I
1

(pepupy g 30|d) UD|4 J0OJ4 PuNoJ9

Page 124




8I/1EGT  ownvia 0S/T  wmos

ceee

eecesen

o TeooMmOEIY 00%eT
VS GSL IS 0 s 15
ISNOH asiompioRg

PRy USisop LpT

im0 U EImoRTIY
wwon 197030 morpUE

(11 301d) D 2dA) asnoy pasodoxd

NAOL 810A SIUSHIOA YIION
are( 9] uOYuIoY[, ‘Oue [PLmH
SWIOH 9IeD e ] uojuIoy ],

Py (918 UOIUIOYL) SATEISH MBM

UOI}DASIT }SOM

100J} }sdi4

oo ovore o

)| E__E

soopsou pioceioous
pup Buuod puo Buppoa
Wowoo/puoe. o seBen sny

1 e

——

wooupaq |y

o5z

=

=7

UOHDAS[T YHON

J00|} punous

!
~

5056

m wops Ajiwiny /38D4x{Da1q /Usyo

uopoAs|3 ynos

Pro} 10 J6quin pourod

sncpun
souyanon yoor o ko0 ———
uoid Bl oasa ‘Sxoieh e e
i s oy

i o shimen S

P s6uso; svors Eamou

[r—— ITIT T
005 Bungod pus Buppen
wous/ i e e

doy o yod Ao puo susisoy pooy
nin yo018 Aouuio owua

C

sousnos joos oy fors
— R T R

-,m@ i Adouos pauinsy ey

NG

-

omao w0

Woussoa ssquiy petuiod

|
sououw wewes/puse
4 100 oo puo sbunsog post  pappeq sor3 9bpu
i 018 e oW
T

o
oo woq

snopum

socgssoun p
pub Burod pus Buppad -
Juouwss/puo gh seBsen ganiy

Page 125




TI/TEST  oumva VD 0S/T  #ws

O T up|d Jool4 1sdl4 up|d 1004 punol9

.

. QVS 6SL AISOIS 10008 WA [
. ISTOH 93103y
° pajruy uBsop Ly

s = = —— B X
ey 59 Ao fﬂﬂm L
Jaé.wwonoﬁﬁ Bwnw_nu Ju— aoﬁH _ — “ )

eeceeen

R

/ Yooy
(c1 101d) O °d&) asnoy pasodoid - 4 2
ADOL 8TOA IMYSHIOX YION J_rr,,
9[e( 9] UOJUIOY], ‘DUE [PLINH
SUIOH are) e 3 UOIUIOY],

PoIY] (F[eq UOIUIONL) SITEISE MBM UOIIDAS|] 1SD3

sz | L - = _Hv : E _H_ I
i J:
%\; ‘ i

wowo) pozold oanon
wntno po1o00 sepnod

\
AN
L

E=

w
€
S
°
2
°
®
5
®
2
e

i
§

]
£
=

~ 190
L oogz |
woo4yjoq

HHHHH]

|

{1

|

H

i

'3 t woo.paq | wooupaq g

ot
Suneep youa Bupesion

[rpm——
o Baraod pus Supoes
oo . Sekson

s o wnwu o e U
198 90 ) SIoM [owelED Uf SUWL) J0OP PUO. ACPUIR IV

230N

UOIIDAS|T }SOM

1500 Jouwion puo ussios
i Po1o05 Japmod

5 UOHDAR|3 YIION

R 3 uaﬂw T
I TS
i ﬂ o |
LH

wm I

Wl Bumen
] Iuep ouq sainos &

sonds sownt o) pay
son, punss Jou 00

-
3¢

= /‘1/4‘”»""

wew) pozmis oanop S
D' poYooo sephod

do} 0} Jod Aop puo sSuysoy poer " doy @4 30d Ao pup sbuwsoy poey
e ! \aln o0e o Vowri

Page 126




¢1/1eS1

© e e omooosmomumpt Tat0 L
. o Qvs 681 OIS 195150 i 18
o o 98T51 9810PfIBY
e« o PO USsop LT
°
. B T T —
. v Joyd3ey morpue
(€1 301d) O 3df) asnoy pasodoxd .
JOL BTOA SHUSIOX GHON
a1eq 5[ UONLIOY ], ‘e jormy
QUK 2180 9[BQ 3] UojuIOY,
PAAWIT (O[eq UOYUIOY]) SAHBISH MBM uol M DAS _ m #m Om an fo ot PO 02 woospseq
- K gt _—
1 £
- N —r— e ——— | = =
Sl
o 1 il
Uniinio petooo Spaad - =2 S sy L
s H
[— ] Amn
[T ——— FoS— = i m
L— T N‘IT
= ORI }, T —
DN i \\\I\\\r}wz . ‘
wu_ oo gn o oo =
wEREERE [T s o .
o - 1 260.06
- aqou
H _w W n Wo0Jpat
& wooupaq paq
o svcn w0
> s o v . % mno;,
~ -
~ -
. -, A
N > 7 ~ IE = E T——
- L — =
. sudos suors %
Q -
~ -
~ p
~ y
< o
~
s jo s o pwres
10 20 o1 oo oy bt Sy S0 e w0
310N
11DAB no [P
o UONDAS[3 yINog — N
. -
g — ; .
: 8 o - A* . W
= s 105 -
UOIlDAS So § = I
RIACTERR RS o i =
o a8 ] . &
\\\\\\\ ot auci v
i | I - ‘
[l — — stumo; wiomsuois mamos— m i 1 s .
\\\\\\\\\\\ e nﬁﬁﬁ el M e
1T |
. :ﬁ\qjt mm
[ svomb s 1o .
i -] ]
Seopum Juewesoo Jeqnd o) pexy Ll Jenb o) pexy .
Jequp peyuiod. Je3n5 punal joy ¥o0 I Jepnd punos oy ¥o0K T T

N sundo
Ry, 0 Fown ponouos

up|d J400|4 punoJs

up|g 1004 3sii4

oo yueso/puos
o1 Geppeq s sbpis

o1 0} 100 foro puo sbusols poor
i yoore Koo omopa

Studos ouere o

sbusoy posy

o} 0} y0d 4o puo sbueoy pooy
i o0t Aouwiio owd

Page 127



G T TR =

130 TTREETE
] i..m..._qrd%m

ey s oy
o IpyEeY Maspay

. Tt 100l 4 S0 g Pl
S
T S e i

-

Uold 4004

T e §
¥
77
T/; MEI
J.rr.r __
UONDAS|T YINOS
— — e —_—
I g -
I
- ———
- 4108 §1818 (SO B VSR S = B
HIRBL SRR 1 -
m. i, s e

e s o

SR

Page 128



[T TV ORTT s
B S ghdm.m
=3 o wheor o)

- e 1
| |
ﬁ wanipag Fa
LAy
i B
P
m‘........_____v-_. F N
—
———
..... Fab Ry
#ap
uoljoaa|] 1503 uoIIDAS|] YIJON _
1lk
A 7 R S e pt—-

m (00 g OO0 —

4 = .....l.........w —— 15 e ——— F .._ i 3
St n_\..l b _...__m_.- ._...“_-_- -_..%-ﬁ-.__.r_ |

_._m_._f_._. ..... ._r_._r.. A8 8bs e LB st 1R

sremem

zl-_!-_-_-_.!-_-_-_-._-_.-—l!- IE-_.!I
E!I-I_l-l—.-_h‘-_-_-_-_-_-_-_.-i-li-'-ii

L e e T T R L O S I L LI
% -

Page 129




BLITES] e TVBRIT e

mm.ilﬂl.ﬂnﬂﬂ..lﬂmum

......... ==

: P Thyanp 1ot "
: .Miw!!l% UD|4 J00(4 PUNOLE m
LT
wWE
= i F o 9 .
g | “
woos Sug/ofns
_. L
11111 Shigepeges
Aoy
PR UOIIDAB]T JEOM e
e < |Nd.ﬂihh_. = ?: i
H - B ) E
- — e TREENE | i
- IJ‘I—M[I‘“ W
—— = mt— _____:____._:_=_:_:__$_=1.______"ﬂ A
e AR SRR B2 AR TR
iiis !uﬂmﬂ:ﬁ:.ﬁ.-__n_ﬁmwﬂ.ﬁhﬂﬂﬂmﬂ.

—1

Page 130




" e Asiys i S B

uoijpas|3 Iso3

; ____ T __ _ SITF ) Ee—
b
saisiids
.."-"l..uu
= spany s

& (g %ﬁ T —

ST

- Page 131




b »
.‘. ‘l““; "

YEW TREE ASSOCIATES

LAND, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS
Supporting Planning Application Statement

For
The Erection of 14 Dwellings
at
Hurrell Court
Hurrell Lane
Thornton le Dale
Pickering
North Yorkshire
for

W&W Estates (Thornton Dale) Ltd

5.9.14

HEAD OFFICE: YORK ALCTION CENTRE, MURTON LANE, MURTOM, YORKE YO19 5L

ALSD AT: YEW TREE HOWSE SOUTH BACK LANE (WEST) - TERRINETON YORK YO&0 4 PX
T:01453 648448 - M: OT540119062
W o w tgewd reeces socisb e ook K s i reowhesyew b e soc sstes, oo uk

YW TREE ASSOCIATES: DIRECTOR - MARK NEWDY 0= T L1 FMETH 3 RTPI
PARTMER: VALERIE NEWRY Y it

Page 132



Contents
1. Introduction
2. Site Location and Description
3. Planning Site History
4. The Proposal
5. The Planning Policy Context
6. Key Issues

7. Conclusions

Page 133



1.0

11

2.0

2.1

2.2

3.0
31
4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

Introduction

This statement provides support for a Detailed Planning Application Enquiry for the erection
of 14no. dwellings on land at Hurrell Court, Hurrell Lane, Thornton le Dale, Pickering, North
Yorkshire.

Site Location and Description
The site is on the eastern side of Thornton Dale and to the east of Hurrell Lane. (See Fig. 1

below). The land extends to some 0.64ha (1.58 acres) and comprises the former Hurrell Court
Care Home/Alcohol Rehabilitation Centre, now closed.

The site is bounded to the north and east by existing residential development, to the west by
agricultural land and the south a complex of retirement bungalows known as Hurrell Court.

Planning Site History
The site has no relevant planning history.
The Proposal

The proposal shows 14 No new dwellings of mixed tenures on 0.64/1.58 acres of land at
Hurrell Court, Hurrell Lane, Thornton le Dale. (See attached drawing ref. no. 1531.5).

A new access road in the same location as the existing access is taken from Hurrell Lane on
the western boundary of the site. The dwellings are arranged in a frontage nature forming a
small cul-de-sac.

The dwellings comprise 6No 4bed detached/semi-detached type units with garages, 2No
3/4bed detached, 2No 3bed semi-detached, 2no 2bed semi-detached and 2 1bed semi-
detached units. This mix is consistent with the Council's Strategic Housing Market Assessment
referred to in more detail later under Affordable Housing.

The density of the site follows the typical density of the settlement. There will be a variety of
materials for walls and roofs-stane, brick, render and timber, with pantiles and slate used for

Page 134



5.0

5.1

5:2

53

55

5.5.1

6.1

w3

roof coverings. Existing boundary treatments will be enhanced and supplemented with good
levels of new planting incorporated throughout the site.

The Planning Policy Context

The main issue in respect of the proposal is whether the principle of development is acceptable
from a planning standpeint and to determine this we turn to the Planning Acts.

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states "if regard is to be
had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the
planning Acts the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise”. The development plan for the Ryedale District comprises
the policies in The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy (adopted on 5 September 2013).

Its relevant policies are as follows:-

The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy 2013

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing

Policy SP12 - Heritage

Policy SP16 - Design

Policy SP 17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues

National Planning Policy Framewaork

The relevant paragraphs and references are:

Paragraphs 11-16 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development Ministerial Forward
Paragraph 17 Core Principles

Paragraph 39 Promoting Sustainable Transporting

Paragraphs 47, 49, 50 Delivering a wide choice of High Quality Homes

Paragraphs 56, 60, 61 and 65 Requiring Good Design

Paragraphs 94 Meeting the Challenge of Climate Change, Flooding and Coastal Change
Paragraphs 109 - 125 Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment

Paragraph 159 Plan Making

Paragraphs 187, 196 and 197 Decision-Taking

Key Issues
The key issues to be taken into account when assessing this proposal are:

1. Sustainable Development
2. Principle of Residential Development
3. Siting, Scale, Design and Effect Upon the Character of the Area
4, Impact on the Residential Amenity of the Adjoining Neighbours
5. Highway Safety

6. Drainage and Flood Risk
7. Affordable Housing

8. Public Open Space

9. Impact on Nature Conservation and Protected Species.
10. Ground Conditions

Page 135



11.Trees

To take each in turn.

Sustainable Development

A number of references are made to the presumption in favour of sustainable development in
the NPPF.

In the Ministerial Forward it states that:-

*Development that is sustainable should go ahead, without delay — a presumption in favour of
sustainable development that is the basis for every pian, and every dedision.’

and at Paragraph 14 states:-
At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework /s a presumption in favour of
sustainable development, which should be seen as a golden thread running through both plan-
making and decision-taking'

For plan-making this means that:

ee/ocal planning authorities shoul itV nities to meet fopme
needs of their area;

eelocal Plans should meet objectively assessed needs, with sufficient fexibility to adapt to
rapid change, unless:

—any adverse Impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the
benefits, when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole; or

—spedific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted. ®
For decision-taking this means. ¥

ee gpproving development proposals that accord with the development plan without delay;
and

17 % im " doin 7] ignificant J] nstrabl) fgh

benefits, when assessed against the polidies in this Framework taken as a whole; or

—specific policies in this Framework indicate development should be restricted, g

(Our emphasis)
Footnole 9
For example, thase poficies relating to sites profected under the Birds and Habilals Directives (see paragraph 119) andfor
designated as Sites of Spacial Screntific Interest; land designated as Green Ball, Local Green Space, an Area of Outstanding
Natural Beauty, Heritage Coast or within a Nalional Park {or the Broads Authorty); designated hentage assets; and locations at
risk of flooding or coastal erosion.
Footrnote 10,
Unfess malerial considerations indicate otherwise.”

At paragraph 17 under the heading "Core Planning Principles’ the document sets out 12
planning principles of which the following is particularly relevant namely:-

\..proactively drive_and support sustainable economic development to_deliver the homes,
business and ingustrial units, infrastructure and thriving local places that the country needs.

Every effort should be made objectively to identify and then meet the housing, business and
other development needs of an area,...”

Page 136



6.1.3

6.1.7

(Qur emphasis)
In addition, at paragraph 49 it states that:-

‘49, Housing applications should be considered in the context of the presumption in favour of
sustainable development....)

The document continues a paragraph 50:-

50, To deliver a wide choice of high quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership
and create sr.rsfafnabf’e .fnduswe and mixed mmmunmes local ﬁa"anmna autharities should:
eep/an fo J - ds, market trends
and the neerfs of different groups in the COmmunity (sum as, but nor limited to, families with
children, older people, people with disabiiities,....)"

(Our emphasis)
Paragraph 50 is reinforced at paragraph 159 under the heading ‘Plan Making — Housing’
where it states:-

'159. Local planning authorities should have a clear understanding of housing needs in their
area. They should:

......—addresses the need for all types of housing, including affordable housing and the needs
of different groups in the community (such as, but not limited to, families with children, older

people, peaple with disabilities, service famifies and peaple wishing to build their own homes);
and

—caters for housing demand and the scale of housing supply necessary to meet this
demand,...’
(Our emphasis)

We find further support for the proposal at paragraph 187 which states:-

takers at every fevef shoufd seek to aﬂﬂmve amffcatfons for sustamab@ a@vebpment where
possible. Local planning authorities should work proactively with applicants to secure
developments that improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area.”

(Our emphasis)
and at paragraph 197 under the heading "Determining applications we find further support
as follows:-

'197. In assessing and determining development proposals, local planning authorities should
apply the presumption in favour of sustainable development.

(Our emphasis)

In The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy at Paragraph 1.2 of the Introduction to the plan
states:-

'1.2 The purpose of the Ryedale Plan is to encourage new development and to manage future
growth whilst ensuring that change across the District is based on a presumption in favour of
sustainable development.’

(Our emphasis)
and at Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy it states:-
In all other villages, hamlets and in the open countryside development will be restricted to
ﬁ‘iat

ggzmm;._rnmﬁ or

* which can be justified in order to secure significant improvements to the environment or
conservation of significant hentage assels In accordance with the National Enabling
Development Policy and Policy SP12 of this Plan, or which is justified through the
Neighbourhood Planning process”

Page 137



6.1.9

6.2

6.2.1

6.2.2

(Our emphasis)
Further policy support is found at Policy SP19 ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable
Development’ which states:-

‘When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive approach that
reflects the presumption fn favour of sustainable develooment contained in the National
Planning Policy Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants jointly to find
solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure
development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area.
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant, with
polices in Neighbourhood Plans) will be approved without delay, unless malerial consideralions
indicate otherwise.

Where there are no policies refevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at
the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless material
considerations indicate otherwise — taking into account whether:

* Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh
the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework
taken as a whole: or

Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted.”

The Principle of Residential Development

The NPPF under the heading 'Delivering a wide choice of high guality homes' the document
states at paragraph 47 that:-

47, To boost significantly the supply of housing. local planning authorities should:

eeyse their evigence base to ensure that their Local Plan meets the full, objectively assessed
needs for market and affordable housing in the housing market area, as lar as is consistent
with the policies set out in this Framewaork, including identifying key sites which are critical to
the delivery of the housing strategy over the plan period;

eeidentify and update annually a supply of specific deliverableis sites sufficient to provide five
vears worth of housing against their housing reguirements with an additional buffer of 5%
(moved forward from later in the plan period) to ensure choice and competition in the market
for land. Where there has been a record of persistent under delivery of housing, local planning
authonities should increase the buffer to 20% (moved forward from later in the plan period)
to provide a realistic prospect of achieving the planned supply and to ensure choice and
competition in the market for land;

e e/dentify a supply of specific, developable:: sites or broad locations for growth, for years 6-
10 and, where possfbfe for years 11-15;

is vighle. Sites with planning perm:ssm sfould be cmsm‘ared deliveralie until permission expires, unless tere s clear evidence
that schemes will not be implemented within five years, for example they will not be viable, there is no longer & demand for the
type of Lrits or sites hiave lpng term phasing pians.

12 Top be consigered developable, sites showld be in 2 suitable location for housing development and there should be a reasonable
prospect that the site i gvaiable and could be viably developed at the point envisaged,

(Our emphasis)

The Council have only recently confirmed that they have a demanstrable 5-year supply of
housing sites although this is in question at present. However, and assuming a 5 year supply
exists there will be a need to maintain this position and the Council will require a continuing
supply of housing sites particularly as it appears that the housing market is gaining momentum
again.

Page 138



-7-

6.2.3 The site lies within the Development Limit as shown on the Ryedale Local Plan Inset Plan for
Thornton le Dale (Fig. 2).

Rvedale Local Plan Inset Map for Thornton le Dalej \ Fig. 2
T L 1
! . :
5%
MR RSN W\
%
\
\
od \

Development Limit

\\.

S _
s
.—“......-..-.--

"f""::.
_-?’ -

\
s ¥
'\‘ »
|‘ Y :‘:
¥ 5 ‘n. Y
" - ‘:i';l."*, - m&
e LA N
TR AR NN
" ' \
il \
L
[ )
L, !
i % _ L
L N LY = \
), | i
| et -
-
! -
\ } -
- The Application Site
8
3 ¥ I
T ! ) Y
. { ad R
) L* 1\ ¥
- N
-4
CENV3!

........

6.2.4 Ttistherefore submitted that as the current use of the site has already established the principle
of development by the current use and that as it is surrounded by residential development,
that the proposal for the redevelopment of the site for residential use should be considered
acceptable in principle.

6.2.5 Turning to The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy we find support at Section 3 of the Plan
where under its Aspirations and Strategy - Strategy Summary it states:-

Page 139



6.2.6

6.2.7

-8-

SECTION 3 — ASPIRATIONS AND STRATEGY
The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy

Place / Role Approach and Ambitions

Service Villages

Service Villages - Limited small-scale housing
Local Service Centres — growth

Limited small-scale growth to * Protecting and enhancing
address emplovment, housing local community facilities

and - Support the delivery of projects

identified within local Parish Plans’

(Our emphasis)

At Policy SP1 under the heading General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
where it states that:-

SP 1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy
Ryedale’s future development reguirements will be distributed and accommodated on the
basis of the following hierarchy of settlements:

Principal Town - Primary Focus for Growth

- Malton and Norton (including Old Malton™)

Local Service Centres (Market Towns) — Secondary Focus for Growth
* Pickering

" Kirkbymaoorside

* Helmsley

Local Service Centres (Service Villages)- Tertiary Focus for Growth

- Amaotherby and Swinton,;

- Ampleforth;

" Beadlam and Nawton,

- Hovingham,

- Sherburn;

* Sheriff Hutton,

* Shingsby;

* Staxton and Willerby;

- Thorrton le Dale...”
(Qur emphasis)

Policy SP2 also supports the proposal as under the heading Delivery and Distribution of New
Housing states that:-

SP2 Delivery and Distribution of new housing

The delivery of at least 3000 (net) new homes will be managed over the period 2012-2027.
The sources of new housing that will contribute to the supply of new homes across the District
are as follows:

Maltornr and Norton

* Housing Land Allocations in and adjacent to the built up area

~ Conversion and redevelopment of Previously Developed Land and buildings within
Development Limits

" Replacement dwellings

" Sub-division of existing dwellings

- Infill development (small open sites in an otherwise continually built up frontage)

- 100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with
Policy SP3

Page 140



6.2.8

6.2.9

6.2.10

6.3

6.3.1

S

- Change of use of tourist accommodation (not including caravans, cabins or chalets) where
appropriate
Pickering, Kirkbymoorside,
Helmsley, Service Villages
- As above
- 100% Rural Exception Sites outside of and on the edge of Development Limits in line with
Policy SP3’
(Our emphasis)

and at paragraph 4.34 under the heading Type and Mix of New Housing the plan states:-

‘4,34 The provision of an appropriate mix and choice of new housing is central to the objective
of creating sustainable and balanced communities. The District will need to ensure 3 range
and choice of market housing s provided to respond to changing demographics and market
ivers.”
(Our emphasis)
and policy SP4 follows:-

'SP 4 Type and mix of new housing
Increased housing choice and high quality housing will be provided through -
- New housing development
* The re-use of empty properties
- Improvements and adaptations to existing homes
New housing sites in Ryvedale will provide increased housing choice and contribute to the
provision of a balanced housing stock.”
(Our emphasis)

Thornton le Dale is identified as a Service Village and therefore the location of development
in the settlement accords with Policies SP1, SP2 and SP4 of the Ryedale Plan — Local Plan
Strategy. As such the proposal to develop the application site is also in accordance with those
policies.

Siting, Scale, Design and Effect Upon the Character of the Area
Policy SP16 of The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states:-

Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are
accessible, well integrated with their surroundings and which.

' Reinforce local distinctiveness

- Provide & well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily
navigated

" Protect amenity and promote well-being

To reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, layout, scale and detailed design
of new development should respect the context provided by its surroundings including:

- Topography and landform that shape the form and structure of settlements in the landscape
* The structure of towns and villages formed by street patterns, routes, public spaces, rivers
and becks. The medieval street patterns and historic cores of Mafton, Pickering,

Kirkbymoorside and Helmsley are of particular significance and medieval two row villages with
back lanes are typical in Ryedale

* The grain of the seltiements, influenced by street blocks, plot sizes, the orientation of
buildings, boundaries, spaces between buildings and the density, size and scale of buildings

* The character and appearance of open space and green spaces including existing Visually
Important Undeveloped Areas (VIUAs) or further VIUAs which may be designated in the Local
Plan Sites Document or in @ Neighbourhood Plan. Development proposals on land designated

Page 141



6.3.2

-10 -

as a VIUA will only be permitted where the benefits of the development proposed significantly
outweigh the loss or damage to the character of the settlement

" Views, vistas and skylines that are provided and framed by the above and/or influenced by
the position of key historic or landmark buildings and structures

© The type, texture and colour of materials, quality and type of building technigues and
elements of architectural detail

The design of new development will also be expected to:

- Incorporate appropriate hard and soft landscaping features to enhance the setting of the
development andyor space

* Contribute to a safe and well connected public realm by respecting and incorporating routes,
buildings and views which creale local identily and assist orientation and wayfinding, creating
public spaces which are safe and easy to use and move through by all members of the
community, facilitating access by sustainable modes of travel including public transport,
cycling and walking

* Reduce crime and the fear of crime through the careful design of buildings and spaces *
Provide, where appropriate, active and interesting public frontages, clearly defined public
spaces and secure private spaces

" Make efficient use of land and to be built at a density which Is appropriate to its surrounding
context. In general new housing development should not be built below an indicative density
of 30 dwellings to the heclare uniess this can be justifted in terms of the surrounding context
* Proposals for major development will be expected to include a statement identifying the
waste implications of the development and measures taken to minimise and manage waste
generated

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan
Strategy states:-

‘Character
New development will respect the character and context of the immediate locality and the

wider landscape/townscape character in terms of physical features and the type and variety
of existing uses proposed uses and activity will be compatible with the existing ambience of
the immediate locality and the surrounding area and with neighbouring land uses and would
not prejudice the continved operation of existing neighbouring land uses

The cumulative impact of new development on the character of an area will also be considered

Design

The design of new development will follow the principles established in Policy SP16. Extensions
or alterations to existing buildings will be appropriate and sympathetic to the character and
appearance of the existing building in terms of scale, form, and use of materials

Amenity and Safety

New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future
occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and bulldings or the wider community
by virtue of ils design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on
amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural
daylight or be an overbearing presence

Developers will be expected to apply the highest standards outfined in the World Health
Organisation, British Standards and wider intemational and national standards relating to
noise

New development proposals wiich will result in an unacceptable risk to human life, health and
safety or unacceptable risk to property will be resisted. Developers will be expected to address
the risks/potential risks posed by contamination and/or unstable fand in accordance with
recogrised national and infernational standards and guidance

Page 142



6,35

6.3.4

6.3.5

6.3.6

6.4

6:4:1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

-11 -

All sensitive receptors will be protected from land and other contamination. Developers will be
expected to assess the risks/ potential risks posed by comtamination in accordance with
recognised national and international standards and guidance’

We submit that the proposal meets all the requirements of the above criteria and some
weight should be attached to these policies as they are broadly consistent with the aims of
the NPPF.

The NPPF paragraph 56 states the Government attaches great importance to the design of
the built environment, Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible
from good planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people.

Paragraphs 60, 61 and 65 of the NPPF make it clear that decisions should not attempt to
impose architectural styles or particular tastes and should not stifle innovation, originality or
initiative through unsubstantiated requirements to conform to certain development forms or
styles, should address the connections between people and places and the integration of new
development into the natural, built and historic environment and proposals should not be
refused for buildings which promote high levels of sustainability because of concerns about
incompatibility with an existing townscape, if those concerns have been mitigated by good
design.

We believe that the proposed scheme is considered not to have a detrimental adverse effect
on the character and form of the area by virtue of its design, layout, scale, external appearance
and landscaping. We submit that the proposed scheme therefore complies with and policies
SP16 and 20 of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy and advice given in NPPF.

Impact on the Residential Amenity of the Adjoining Neighbours

One of the core planning principles set out in Paragraph 12 of the NPPF states that planning
should always seek a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land
and buildings.

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan
Strategy states:-

... Amenity and Safety
New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future

occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and bufidings or the wider community
by virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on
amenity can include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural
daylight or be an overbearing presence’

Standard standoff distances are achieved in respect of all the dwellings with no overlooking
issues. The proposed development is therefore considered not to cause a significant
detrimental impact on the residential amenities of the neighbouring properties in accordance
with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan
and the NPPF.

Highway Safety

Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan
Strategy states:-

Page 143



6.5.2

6.5.3

6.5.4

6.5.5

6.6

6.6.1

6.6.2

-12 -

Access, Parking and Servicing

Access to and movement within the site by vehicles, cycles and pedestrians would not have a
detrimental impact on road safety, traffic movement or the safety of pedestrians and cyclists.
Information will be required in terms of the positioning and treatment of accesses and
cireulation routes, including how these relate to surrounding foolpaths and roads’

These Local Plan policies should be afforded weight as they are broadly consistent with the
aims of the NPPF.

In addition with respect to parking, paragraph 39 of the NPPF states that when setting local
parking standards for residential and non-residential development, local planning authorities
should take into account the accessibility of the development; the type, mix and use of
development; the availability of and opportunities for public transport; local car ownership
levels; and an overall need to reduce the use of high emission vehicles.

The dwellings would be served from a single new access in a similar position to the existing
access on the western boundary of the site. Adequate sight lines and adequate parking
provision has also been provided for within the site.

We submit that the proposal will not adversely impact on the highway network either from an
access or parking standpoint and therefore consider that the proposal is acceptable as it
accords with policies SP20 of The Ryedale Local Plan- The Local Plan Strategy and Paragraph
39 of the NPPF.

Drain nd_Fl Risk

The NPPF paragraph 94 states that local planning authorities should adopt proactive strategies
to mitigate and adapt to climate change, taking full account of flood risk, coastal change and
water supply and demand considerations. NPPF Paragraph 95 states to support the move to
a low carbon future, local planning authorities should plan for new development in locations
and ways which reduce greenhouse gas emissions; actively support energy efficiency
improvements to existing buildings.

Policy SP17 (Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources) of The Ryedale Plan - Local
Plan Strategy states:-

Land resources will be protected and improved by:

" Supporting new uses for land which is contaminated or degraded where an appropriate
scheme of remediation and restoration is agreed and in place

* Prioritising the use of previously developed land and protecting the best and most versatile
agricultural land from irreversible loss. New land allocations will be planned to avoid and
minimise the loss of the Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land. Proposals for major
development coming forward on sites that are not allocated for development which would
resuft in the loss of the Best and Most Versatile Agricultural Land will be resisted unless it can
be demonstrated that the use proposed cannot be located elsewhere and that the need for
the development outweighs the loss of the resource

Flood risk will be managed by:

© Requiring the use of sustainable drainage systems and technigues, where technically
feasible, to promote groundwater recharge and reduce flood risk. Development proposals will
be expected to attenuate surface water run off fo the rates recommended in the Strategic
Flood Risk Assessment. In addition, major development proposals within areas highlighted as
having critical drainage problems in the North East Yorkshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
(or future updates) as Critical Drainage Areas may, if appropriate, be required to demonstrate

Page 144



6.6.3

6.6.4

6.6.5

6.6.6

6.6.7

6.7.
6.7.1

-13 -

that the development will not exacerbate existing problems by modelling impact on the wider
drainage system

" Ensuring new development does not prevent access to waler courses for the maintenance
of flood defences

- Undertaking @ risk based sequential approach to the allocation of land for new development
and in the consideration of development proposals in order to guide new development to
areas with the lowest probability of flooding, whilst taking account of the need to regenerate
vacant and previously developed sites within the towns. In considering development proposals
or the allocation of land, full account will be taken of the flood risk vulnerability of proposed
uses and the national 'Exception Test’ will be applied if required”’

The application site is located in Flood Zone 1 as shown on the Environment Agency’s Flood
Map for Thornton le Dale which is at a low probability of flooding and as such no Flood Risk
Assessment is required.

The foul drainage from the dwellings will be connected into a new drain/sewer and routed
around the private roadway which serves the existing dwellings to the south of the site and
then connected into the foul sewer via the existing pumped system.

Due to the levels across the site which generally fall from north to south, the surface water
and foul drainage from the new dwellings and the highway drainage cannct discharge directly
into the existing foul and surface water sewers in Hurrell Lane, The surface water from the
road and pavement will therefore be discharged into a small packaged pumping station located
in the south east corner of the site and the water will be pumped into the sewer in Hurrell
Lane.

The surface water discharge from the site will be regulated by the use of oversized drainage
pipework to allow for onsite storage to accommodate 1 in 30 year storm conditions and to
ensure that a 1 in 100 year event does not surcharge the site drainage system and can be
stored on site without risk to pecple and property.

We submit therefore that the proposed development can be satisfactorily drained and is
therefore considered acceptable and in accordance with Policies and the guidance in NPPF.

Affordable Housing
Policy SP3 (Affordable Housing) of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy states:-

‘Where local need exists, the Local Planning Authority will seek the provision of new affordable
homes by:
* Negotiating with developers and landowners to secure a proportion of new housing
development to be provided as affordable units
* Supporting Registered Social Landlords in bringing forward wholly affordable schemes within
Ryedale’s towns and villages

- Supporting in principle, the release of 'Rural Exception Sites’
Affordable homes will also be provided in conjunction with landlords through the purchase
and repair of existing dwellings, alterations and improvements fo the existing affordable
housing stock and through the re-use of emply homes.

Affordable Housing from Develgper Contributions

The Local Planning Authority will seek the provision of:

25% of new dwellings as affordable housing on-site (in settlements outside West and South
West Ryedale*) as part of developments of 5 dwellings or 0.2 ha or more and 35% of new
awellings as affordable housing on-site with a further additional financial contribution
equivalent to a further 5% of provision as part of developments of 5 dwellings or 0.2ha or

Page 145



o 1 o

more in West and South West Ryedale™ ( including Ampleforth, Helmsiey™*, Hovingham and
Sheriff Hutton)”
Where the on-site contribution does not equate precisely to whole numbers of units, equivalent
financial contributions will be sought.
Below the threshold of 5 dwellings/0.2 ha, a pro-rated financial contribution will be sought
from all new residential development, where this is viable.......

(Our emphasis)

6.7.2 The proposal is for 14No dwellings and therefore there is a requirement for 35% of the

dwellings to be affordable i.e. 4.9 dwellings. However, 4No 2bed dwellings are to be provided
in line with Policy SP3 which equates to 28.57% provision. The Applicant is prepared to make
up the shortfall of the 0.9 of a dwelling by means of a commuted sum which has been
calculated and agreed with Kim Robertshaw as:-

The difference between the open market value (research suggests £160.000) and the value
that it would be sold to a housing association. This has been confirmed by Leslie Farguer at
Yorkshire Housing as £65,000,

Therefore, the amount is 0.9 X (£160k-£65K) = £85,500.

6.7.3 The Applicants are content to pay this sum and as such we submit that the requirements of

6.7.4

6.7.5

6.8

6.8.1

Policy SP3 are therefore met.

In addition however we find support for the affordable and open market house type provision
in the North Yorkshire Strategic Market Housing Assessment which states:-

Future Need for Affordable Housing

1.36 If North Yorkshire were to meet the needs of all households who cannot afford to buy
or privately rent a home on the open market’? it would have to deliver 2,808 affordable
dwellings (excluding Selby) each yvear over the next 5 years. This is shown in the table below.
Figure 10 Net Annual Affordable Housing Need (Next 5 Years) — North Yorkshire

Net Annual Affordable Housing Need — North Yorkshire & Local Authorities
Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough CityofYork Nth Yorkshire
(Total)

218 320 507 260 256 457 790 2.808
Source: North Yorkshire SHMA, 2011

1.37 In particular, there is currently a shortfall in smaller 1 and 2 bedroom and larger 4 or

more bedroom affordable properties across North Yorkshire. The shortage of these property

types is making it harder for the authorities of North Yorkshire to meet the housing needs of
households who cannot afford to buy or privately rent a home on the open market.”

(Our emphasis)

In light of the above, we therefore submit that the proposal should be considered acceptable
under Policy SP3 of The Ryedale Plan — Local Plan Strategy.

Public Open Space

We submit that given the size of the site it is not appropriate to provide onsite Public Open
Space. However, the applicant is prepared to consider that a financial contribution be made
in lieu of such provision to assist the Parish Council with improving existing facilities in the
village where appropriate. This can be the subject of a $106 or Unilateral Undertaking.

Page 146



6.9

6.9.1

6.9.2

-15 -

Impact on Nature Conservation and Protected Species

NPPF paragraphs 109 to 125 relate to conserving and enhancing the natural environment and
to impacts of development proposals on protected species planning policy and guidance which
is provided by the NPPF and accompanying ODPM Circular 06/2005 “Biodiversity and
Geological Conservation- Statutory Obligations and their Impact within the Planning System”
in addition to the Habitat Regulations and Bat Mitigation Guidelines published by Natural
England.

As such Ecological Assessment by Access Ecology Ltd has been prepared and this has found:-

‘Phase 1 Habitat Survey

127, All of the habitats and floral species identified on site are common and the site was found
fo contain limited floral diversity.

128. As a result, It is considered that the habitats present on the site do not present a
constraint to the proposed development and no further botanical survey is necessary.”

‘Controlled Invasive Species
135. No evidence of any controlled or invasive species was found during the survey.
136. As a resull, controlled invasive species do not present a constraint to development.”

Bats

138. The proposals require the demolition of the building identified as containing a bat roost.
One species has been identified as roasting on site, commaon pipistrelle.

139. When compared against the guidelines for proportionate mitigation (Mitchell-Jones, A.J.
2004) the site fs considered to be of Moderate conservation significance.

Short Term Impacts: Disturbance

140. In the absence of mitigation, short-term disturbance impacts on bats from the proposed
demolition of the buildings, If carried out at their most vulnerable times of year with no
constraint on working hours, and would result in significant detrimental impacts to the bats
from likely killing or injury of individual bats, and disturbance of a maternity colony, increase
in noise, dust, human disturbance, and vibration disturbance. As a result the short term impact
of the demolition is considered likely to be significantly adverse on both individual bats within
the roosts as well as on bat populations at the local level.

141, It is considered that suitable mitigation (Giming and exclusion) together with the provision
of compensation would minimise these impacts, but the demolition would still result in an
increase in noise, fuman presence, etc.”

Long Term Impacts: Roost Loss

142, The proposed demolition would result in the destruction of @ maternity roost. an annex
roost and summer transitional roosts of one bat species (common pipistrelle).

"Without mitigation the impact of these losses is likely to be adverse for the population of this
species at a local level.

144, As previously stated, the Bat Mitigation Guidelines classify buildings such as that at Hurrell
Court as of moderate conservation significance. As a result of this the guidelines state the
following mitigation / compensation is required;

145. "Timing constraints. More or less like for like replacement. Bats not to be left without a
roost and must be given time to find the replacement. Monitoring for 2 years preferred.”
(Mitchell-Jones, A.J. 2004).

146. In practice, this means for the demolition to proceed, a suitable altemative roost structure
would have to be constructed in close proximity to the current building.”

‘Other Protected and Notable Species — Nesting Birds

Page 147



6.9.3

6.10

6.10.1

6.10.2

6.10.3

6.11

6.11.1

-16 -

152, The site contains suitable features for nesting birds namely trees, hedgerows and the
building.

153. As a result, it is recommended that as much of the existing trees and hedgerow habitat
as possible is retained, and that the building demolition works are carried out outside of the
main bird nesting period (March to August).

154, Where this is not possible, a suitable method statement for the protection of nesting
birds would have to be put in place’

In order to maintain and enhance the ecological value of the site and in accordance with the
aims of The National Planning Policy Framework (MPPF), it is recommended that as part of
the new development, suitable replacement bird nest featuras be incorporated into the final
building and landscaping scheme. This should include provision for swallow and other building
nesting bird species and suitable habitat and nest boxes for tree and hedgerow nesting birds,”

We submit however, that providing the mitigation measures as recommended in the report
are carried out, it will be possible for development to take place without harm to any
acknowledged nature conservation interests and therefore would not be contrary to the advice
contained within the NPPF.

roun ndition
Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources of the Ryedale Plan states:-

Land resources will be protected and improved by:
* Supporting new uses for land which is contaminated or degraded where an appropriate
scheme of remediation and restoration is agreed and in place....”

Desk Top Ground Survey has been prepared by Geo Investigate and submitted with the
application and concludes that the risks to development of the site are low but recommends:-

‘In light of the Phase 1 desk study findings it is recommended that a Phase 2 investigation
including a ground investigation and contamination and gas testing is carrfed out at the site
lo establish the actual site conditions and to properly assess the risks from the geology of the
site and its historical land use.

The Phase 2 investigation should be designed to focus on the polential contaminants
highlighted in the CGHM (Figure 1 and Table 4). As the potential for hazardous gas to exist at
the site is Low, as oppased to negligible, a gas survey is necessary also.

The Phase 2 investigation should comprise boreholes, gas monitoring and contamination
analyses to establish the ground conditions across the site.’

As such we submit that subject to a Phase 2 survey and suitable planning conditions attached
to any permission, the proposal will meet the requirements of Policy SP 17 of the Ryedale
Plan.

Trees

The site contains a number of trees and as such and Aboriculture Report has been prepared
by Elliot Consultancy Ltd and submitted with the application. This concludes that a number of
trees will be lost as a result of the development, however a suitable landscaping scheme would
mitigate their loss. The full recommendations are contained in the report.

Page 148



?I

7.1

= 17 IS
Conclusions

We believe that we have provided a substantive case through not only Central Government’s
most recent planning policy statements, but also the Council’'s own planning policies and
material considerations we respectfully submit that the proposal is acceptable in all respects
and should receive the support of the local planning authority.

SMMS YTA 5.5.14

Page 149



Design and Access Statement

Housing development on land at Thornton le
Dale Care Home, Hurrell Lane, Thornton le
Dale, North Yorkshire

Introduction

This Design and Access Statement has been prepared in support of an application
for planning approval, submitted to Ryedale District Council, for the demolition of
the existing buildings, the construction of fourteen 2-storey dwelling houses with a
mixture of integral or detached garages and private garden/amenity space to the
front and rear and an adoptable estate road to provide access to the individual
dwellings.

The proposed dwellings on the site are to include 6 detached dwellings, 4 semi
detached dwellings and 4 low cost affordable homes for local residents.

The proposed scheme has been designed to reflect both the site’s location within
Thornton le Dale, in terms of quality of design and proposed materials, and also to
ensure that the development is in keeping with the character and appearance of
the immediate vicinity. In doing so it also ensures, importantly, that the application
proposals accord fully with all relevant planning policy.

In terms of planning policy the principal policy documents relevant to the proposed
development comprise the National Planning Policy Framework and the Ryedale
Plan which comprises two parts, The Local Plan Strategy was adopted in
September 2013 and the Local Plan Sites Document which is currently being
prepared. Please see Supporting Planning Statement by Yew Tree Associates
submitted with the planning application.

Site description and history

The site, which is approximately 0.6 hectares in area, is located within a
predominantly residential area and was until recently, a Care Home/Alcohol
Rehabilitation Centre now closed. The site is located at Ordnance Survey co
ordinates 484320E and 483141N

The site is currently accessed from Hurrell Lane close to the junction with South
Lane and is a large rectilinear single storey building with internal courtyard, gardens

Page 150



and large carparking area to the area between the building and Hurrell Lane. To
the west of the site are open fields with residential buildings beyond, to the south of
the site are terraced and semi detached houses with detached houses to the north
and east along Hurrell Lane and Winton Road (A170).

The site was previously occupied as a residential Care Home/Alcohol Rehabilitation
Centre but has been for sale as a development site since May 2013. The selling
agents, GVA prior to placing the site on the open market held discussions with
members of the planning department at the local authority and produced a planning
appraisal to identify that the site is suitable for housing.

The original buildings are to be demolished to allow for the redevelopment of the
site which is currently unoccupied.

Principle of Development

At the heart of the National Planning Policy Framework is a presumption in favour
of sustainable development, which is seen as a golden thread running through both
plan-making and decision-taking. In terms of the application proposal paragraph 49
confirms that ‘housing applications should be considered in the context of the
presumption in favour of development. In seeking to establish this pro-active
approach to development the NPPF confirms that its Core Planning Principles
reguires local planning authorities to:

* ‘encourage the effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously
developed, providing that it is not of high environmental value;

e actively manage patterns of growth to make the fullest possible use of public
transport, walking and cycling, and focus significant development in
locations which are or can be made sustainable.’

In light of the above and, following discussions with the planning officers from the
Local Authority, it has been established that the principle of residential development
on the site is acceptable in planning terms.

The grant of planning consent will allow the opportunity for the applicant to progress
with the proposals for the redevelopment of the site.

Design, Scale and Layout

One of the NPPF’'s 12 core planning principles underpinning both plan-making and
decision-taking aims to ensure that planning should

‘always seek to secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all
existing and future occupants of land and buildings;

Section 7 of the NPPF is dedicated to requiring good design and advises that:

Page 151



‘The Government altaches great importance to the design of the built environment.
Good design is a key aspect of suslainable development, is indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people’.

Chapter H of the Ryedale Plan also requires good quality design with any
development proposals. In terms of the former this advises that:

All development proposals will:

Provide a quality residential environment that reflects local distinctiveness in terms
of location, scale, proportions, layoul, materials, design, relationship to the street
and size of plot and would maintain or enhance the character of the settlement. In
addition, the density of the development would avoid the inefficient use of land
whilst respeciing local character;

In light of the policies highlighted above, with the NPPF and Ryedale Plan
emphasising the importance of high quality design with new developments
generally, the development scheme the subject of this planning application has
been formulated, in close liaison with the Council's planning officer, in order that it
accords fully with planning policy in all respects.

In terms of the layout and scale of the proposed development it was agreed with
the planning officer that the scheme should comprise 14no 2-storey houses set
around an adopted access roadway with 3no houses fronting onto Hurrell Lane.

It is proposed to provide a mix of dwelling types within the development and they
will be as follows:

Two semi detached one bedroom dwellings (low cost affordable dwellings)
Two semi detached two bedroom dwellings (low cost affordable dwellings)
Two semi detached three bedroom dwellings

Two detached thee/four bedroom dwellings

Two semi detached four bedroom dwellings

Four detached four bedroom dwellings

. & & @ 8 @

The plot sizes for each dwelling are commensurate with the existing arrangement
of housing in the vicinity of the site and the proposed layout will provide each
dwelling with rear private garden areas which are a minimum of 9m in depth.

The external treatment of the proposed houses will include door canopies, porches,
chimney stacks and varying traditional window designs with stone/brick lintels and
stone cills to provide a large variety of traditional designs around the development
and which seeks to compliment the design and appearance of the local vernacular.

The houses are to be fronted predominantly with natural stonework with a small
number of dwellings having new facing brickwork which will be complemented with
either stone lintel, arched stone lintels of brick soldier course lintels to the windows
and doors and with stone projecting cills together with timber framed porches and

Page 152



door canopies (plain tile covered). The windows will be painted timber double
glazed frames and the doors will be composite doors in painted timber frames

The houses will have flush pointed gable verges and the eaves of the houses are
to be provided with half round black guttering fixed to the walls by means of gutter
spike brackets and all of the roofs to the development will be covered using natural
clay pantiles to local authority approval.

Landscaping

The existing site contains areas of landscaping around the perimeter including a
number of trees and hedges on the eastern boundary abutting the wooded gardens
to the properties on Winton Road. This hedge will be retained and reinforced with
additional plants where necessary.

It is the applicant's intention to provide landscaped gardens at the rear of the
houses including close boarded timber fences between the individual dwellings.
Flagstone paving will be provided within the garden areas with paths to the refuse
store area.

An Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been prepared to assess the effect of the
development upon the existing landscaping at the site and a copy is attached to the
application for consideration.

It is the client’s intention to provide a stone wall around the perimeter of the site
along the western boundary. The wall will be traditional in appearance.

Additional areas of landscaping will be provided to the southern boundary between
the existing dwellings and the new development and also in the south eastern
corner of the site around the surface water pumping station and this area of
landscaping will comprise medium growth trees of a species to later agreement.

Land Contamination Assessment

The development will not cause pollution to the air, water or land and is not on, or
near potentially contaminated or unstable land and therefore complies with the
requirements of the Local authorities policies.

A site investigation survey was carried out by Geoinvestigate Limited of Stokesley,
North Yorkshire and a report prepared numbered G14161a issued in September
2014.

Section 4.2 of the report assesses the contamination test results taken during the
survey work and confirms that the contamination levels on the site are low with no
test results exceeding the threshold values for residential usage of the site and
therefore no remediation works are necessary.

Page 153



Housing Mix and Affordable Housing Requirements

The proposals, the subject of this planning application is for the construction of
fourteen 2-storey detached dwelling houses with a mixture of integral or detached
garages and private garden/amenity space to the front and rear.

Ryedale Local Plan policies states that the Council will seek an appropriate mix of
housing on all housing sites and this policy is complied with by the provision of eight
house types for the development.

Ryedale Plan policy SP3 relates to Affordable Housing and where a local need
exists, the Local Planning Authority will seek the provision of new affordable homes
by negotiating with developers and landowners to secure a proportion of new
housing development to be provided as affordable units

The local authority seeks to provide 35% of new dwellings as affordable housing
on-site (in settlements outside West and South West Ryedale®) as part of
developments of 5 dwellings or 0.2 ha or more and the proposed development will
provide 4 affordable houses (2 no two bedroom and 2 no one bedroom dwellings).
The shortfall to 35% of the total requirement (0.9 units) will be provided by a
financial agreement which has been agreed in principle with Mr Barnsley and a
section 106 agreement will be arranged in confirmation of this agreement

Waste Audit

A walk aver visual survey of the site has been carried out and this survey/ report
indentified areas of waste on the site prior to any building works commencing.

The survey identified that the site is overlain with areas of concrete and the original
buildings which are to be demolished and drainage pipelines below ground.
Following demolition works, the materials arising from the demolition and the sub
surface materials and the concrete slabs will be excavated and the excavated
material stockpiled on site and then crushed and reused as hardcore within the
development.

All waste products generated from the development will be sorted and segregated
for recycling and will be stored on site in designated skips according to waste type
far removal to a licensed waste disposal site as and when required.

Surface water management plan and flood risk in accordance with
PPS25

The Environment Agency indicative flood maps have been consulted and they have
confirmed that the site is not subject to a risk of flooding and that generally any
potential flooding in the area would be from the River Derwent and Thornton Beck
on the southern side of the site of the site; The river is approximately 4500m from
the site.

Page 154



The foul drainage from the dwellings will be connected into a new drain/sewer and
routed around the private roadway which serves the existing dwellings to the south
of the site and then connected into the foul sewer via the existing pumped system

Due to the levels across the site which generally fall from north to south, the surface
water and foul drainage from the new dwellings and the highway drainage cannot
discharge directly into the existing foul and surface water sewers in Hurrell Lane,
The surface water fram the road and pavement will therefore be discharged into a
small packaged pumping station located in the south east corner of the site and the
water will be pumped into the sewer in the main road, Hurrell Lane .

The surface water discharge from the site will be regulated by the use of oversized
drainage pipework to allow for onsite storage to accommodate 1 in 30 yr storm
conditions and to ensure that a 1 in 100 yr event does not surcharge the site
drainage system and can be stored on site without risk to people & property.

Access Statement

The dwellings are all designed in accordance with the most recent Building
Regulations and are DDA compliant.

The proposed new houses will be provided with wide entry doors and internal doors
to the ground floor together with a level access to the principal entry door and all
internal facilities which are required to allow the houses to be fully accessible, as
required by current legislation.

The driveways will be level or will have very shallow gradients in accordance with
approved document M of the building regulations and will provide a suitable
approach from the point of access to the entrance of the house to allow disabled
users to be able to gain easy access to the dwellings.

Energy Statement

Harnessing solar power to provide domestic energy and hot water is an efficient
way of generating renewable energy. If necessary and in crder to achieve the
requirements of the building regulations, the development will be adapted to
facilitate the use of pv panels, in terms of their orientation, the majority of the
dwellings have been located so that either the south- or south west-facing roof of
every dwelling can be constructed with photovoltaic panels to provide electricity.

Wherever possible, the house will be constructed in accordance with the principles
of the Code for Sustainable Homes, they will exceed the current building regulations
and will seek to meet and surpass the Govemment's requirements for new
dwellings.

Transport, Highway and Parking Provision

The site is located in an area which has a range of bus services which serve
Thornton le Dale and connect the town with Leeds, Scarborough, York, Helmsley

Page 155



and Malton together with intermittent services to Whitby and the coast south of
Scarborough

Vehicle access to the site is as shown on the submitted plans, and the position of
the access to the site on the western boundary has been discussed and agreed
with the highways officer. The access road radii at the junction with Hurrell Lane
will be 6 metres and the access verge crossing will include dropped kerbs with
tactile paving to maintain pedestrian, cycle and vehicle access to this part of
Thornton le Dale.

A footpath along the western boundary of the site will be provided from the new
access road to connect the site to Thornton le Dale for pedestrians.

Ample access will be provided for emergency and refuse vehicles along the
proposed access road within the site which is 5 metres in width and a hammerhead
turning area will be provided to the access roadway to allow emergency services,
refuse vehicles etc to enter and leave the estate road in a forward gear.

The parking arrangements are indicated on the submitted site layout drawing and
every house has either a garage and parking or at least one additional off-street
parking space.

Conclusion

This statement has been prepared in support of an application for planning approval
for the coenstruction of 14 detached dwelling houses.

The planning policy context outlined above makes reference to the requirement of
both the NPPF and the Council’s Development Policies to formulate a scheme
which is not only of a high quality design in its own right, but also preserves and
enhances the character and appearance of the surrounding area. It is the
applicant’s view that this has very much been achieved with the scale, form and
external appearance taking full account of the local vernacular.

In light of the above it is respectiully requested that officers support applications for
planning approval for this housing development.

147 Design Limited
51 High Street
Stokesley

North Yorkshire
TS9 5AD

Page 156



Agenda Item 10

Item Number: 10

Application No: 14/01187/FUL

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Appn. Type: Full Application

Applicant: Ryedale District Council (Mr Roger Barnsley)

Proposal: Removal of roller shutter door to north elevation and replacement by 2no.
timber windows and surrounding brickwork

Location: 4 Dale Road Sheriff Hutton Malton YO60 6RZ

Registration Date:
8/13 Wk Expiry Date: 30 December 2014
Overall Expiry Date: 28 November 2014

Case Officer: Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325
CONSULTATIONS:

Parish Council No objection

Highways North Yorkshire No objection

Neighbour responses:

'Unit 3c¢', 4 Dale Road, Sheriff Hutton is a small industrial unit located in the south of the Sheriff
Hutton Industrial Estate. The Industrial Estate is located to the south west of the village and houses
approximately 78 units of a B1, B2 and B8 Use Classes.

PROPOSAL:

The removal of a roller shutter door to the north elevation to be replaced by 2no. timber windows and
surrounding brickwork.

Members are advised that this application has been referred to Planning Committee for determination
as the application is submitted on behalf of Ryedale District Council.

HISTORY:
There is no relevant history in relation to this application.
APPRAISAL:

Planning permission is sought for the removal of a roller shutter door to the north elevation to be
replaced by 2no. timber windows and surrounding brickwork. The main considerations to be taken
into account are:

i. Character and form
ii. Impact upon the immediate locality

The roller shutter door that is proposed to be removed measures 2.45m in width and 2.7m in height,
which is the same as the other three existing doors on the northern elevation of the industrial unit. The
proposed two timber windows will measure approximately 1m in width. The proposed windows will
match the existing timber windows of the industrial unit located to the north of the site. They are
considered to be appropriate and sympathetic to the character of the host building, complying with

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 157



Policy SP16 (Design) and Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of the Ryedale
Plan - Local Plan Strategy.

The proposed timber windows are also considered to respect the character of the immediate locality of
the industrial estate and will match the existing timber windows of the industrial unit to the north of
the site.

Sheriff Hutton Parish Council and the Local Highway Authority have raised no objections to the
proposal.

In light of the above considerations, the removal of a roller shutter door to the north elevation to be
replaced by 2no. timber windows and surrounding brickwork is considered to satisfy the relevant
policy criteria outlined within Policies SP16, SP19, SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy
and the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval
subject to the following conditions.

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues

National Planning Policy Framework

National Planning Policy Guidance

RECOMMENDATION: Approval
1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before .

Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved plan(s):

Drawing Number DR/02.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
Background Papers:
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002
Local Plan Strategy 2013

National Planning Policy Framework
Responses from consultees and interested parties

PLANNING COMMITTEE
16 December 2014

Page 158



Alterations to 4 Dale Road, Sheriff Hutton

Haactwary
Ll ]
=
b3
=
>
; ‘emainal Howse
-
]
E
Sub Sla
El 5ub Sa
Cagfs
e
Snar? Futton
hustnal Park
Sewage
Workn

-

CCrown Copynght and database night 2014 Ordnace Survey 100019408

-—*—: RYEDALE
! DISTRICT
' COUNCIL

Scale 1. 1250 on A4

Page 159



Bumesp s1; Uo pauyap se 1osioid pue ssodind
PopUB|UI aU) 10} Ue) Jajo ed JO BIOUM Ui PaSN aq o 10U ) BUIMEIP SIL L

cona

oy soqunu Bumeig

[ owoolo

FI¥OS IONOQ | 0051 805} | oes
uoneolddy Buluuelq

e Bues

Ueld 8)IS pue suopeAs|3 pesodold pue Bugsixg
om Sumei

UOHNH JieuS PEOY 8leq b ON
e suojesayfe pasodoid

poloid
SR, HHZ 2LOA
S %, QUYSHIOA YHON
& B uojjeny
PEOY UCYEW PIO
- 9sNoH 8jepaky
Tvqar® IPUNog Yusiq alepaky
o] oo oo wweia] oo swodng [ owa rou | rou

[ 1 1

00S:} NVd 3lIS

0S:1 4 NO NOILVAI13 d3SOdO¥d ANV ONILSIX3

0S:L P NO NOILYA313 d3S0d0O¥d ANV ONILSIX3

0S:1 2 NO NOILVATT3 d3S0d0O¥d ANV ONLLSIX3

0S:1 ® NO NOILVA313 d3S0d0O¥d

0S:1 B NO NOILLVA3T3 ONILSIX3

SN 1RG0 - SWRIALY - L'9Z:pL L0Z/0L/6T - BMP Vi UONH JUSUS\URSNY HSGOM\44VLS\X @

Dana 160
ragc LUV




Agenda Item 11

RYEDALE

DISTRICT

COUNCIL

PART B: RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

REPORT TO: PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 16 DECEMBER 2014

REPORT OF THE: HEAD OF PLANNING AND HOUSING
GARY HOUSDEN

TITLE OF REPORT: PUBLICATION OF THE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE
LEVY (CIL) REVISED DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL EXCLUDING THE WARDS FALLING WITHIN THE
NORTH YORK MOORS NATIONAL PARK.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 For Members to agree to publish the revised Draft Charging Schedule (DCS) for formal
consultation and subsequent submission to the Secretary of State for Examination in
order to progress the introduction of the Community Infrastructure Levy.

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 Council is recommended to resolve to:

(i) Approve the revised Draft Charging Schedule at Appendix 1 for formal public
consultation and subsequent submission to the Secretary of State for
Examination.

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 To progress the production of the Draft Charging Schedule and therefore the
implementation of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS

4.1 There are no significant risks associated with the report. It is considered that greater
risks to the delivery of necessary infrastructure are likely to arise if the Community
Infrastructure Levy is not progressed to adoption or if the correct process of
producing the Draft Charging Schedule is not followed. Delays to the adoption of the
levy also present a risk on the basis that from April 2015, additional limitations on the
use of Section 106 contributions will come into force which will restrict the Council’s
ability to collect contributions from developers towards necessary infrastructure,

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 161



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

should CIL not be operative in advance of the April 2015 deadline.
POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION

Members are aware that the Community Infrastructure Levy is designed to be the
main funding source for Ryedale to be able to deliver the strategic infrastructure
required to support planned growth established through the Ryedale Plan. The
Ryedale Infrastructure Delivery Plan (January 2012), produced to support the Plan
sets out the infrastructure requirements that will help to deliver the Plan objectives.
This document enabled a funding gap to be calculated, which currently stands at
circa. £64 million. The ability to identify an infrastructure funding gap is necessary in
order to justify a CIL charge. The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010
(as amended) set out the regulatory framework which needs to be followed by the
Council (the ‘charging authority’) as it prepares to implement the CIL charge.

CIL charges are outlined in a Charging Schedule and the Regulations establish the
procedural requirements for producing this. Following consultation on a Preliminary
Draft Charging Schedule, a charging authority is required to produce a Draft
Charging Schedule. The latter is the version of the charging schedule which is
formally published for consultation and comments received on the Draft Charging
Schedule are those that are considered at the CIL Examination.

Regulation 14 of the Regulations provides a central theme that needs be followed
when producing a charging schedule. Crucially, it sets out the need to strike a
balance between the need to fund infrastructure through the levy whilst also
considering the effects the levy may have on constraining development. To this end
a charging schedule must have direct regard to the economic viability of development
that is likely to take place in Ryedale. Indeed, the viability assessments that are
undertaken to support the levy should have regard to all of the policy requirements
set out in the Development Plan. This includes developments achieving policy levels
of affordable housing.

The Council prepared its Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule in 2013. The
document was informed by an economic viability assessment, undertaken by Peter
Brett Associates which set out the sources of information and assumptions used to
inform the proposed charges. The Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule proposed the
following charges:

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 162



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.0

6.1

Use Proposed CIL charge

(per sq.m)
Private market houses:

Lower Charging Zones £55
All Other Areas £70
Supermarkets £120
Retail Warehouses £60
Public/Institutional Facilities as follows: education, health, £0

community and emergency services
All other chargeable development £0

Members of this Committee agreed the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule in
August 2013 and following subsequent ratification by Council, the Preliminary Draft
Charging Schedule and the economic viability study were subject to public
consultation in accordance with the regulations. This process concluded on 15
November 2013, during which a total of 16 responses were received. A summary of
the comments received together with responses to these were considered at the 7
May meeting of Planning Committee (minute 224 refers).

Taking account of the comments made on the PDCS where appropriate, revisions
were made and the Draft Charging Schedule (DCS) was produced and consulted on
between June and August 2014. The charges proposed in the DCS remained the
same as set out at the PDCS stage and shown above.

Following the DCS consultation, a total of 10 representations were received including
several noting general support for the approach taken. Those that objected to the
DCS, principally raised the same issues as set out in the responses to the PDCS.
However one representation in particular identified a potential error in the viability
modelling. Following a detailed review of the assessments, unfortunately an error
was found to be present in the viability model, which meant that the level of viability
had been over-stated in some cases. As a result, the Council’s consultants have
needed to revisit and revise the viability assessments.

REPORT
The revised Draft Charging Schedule

The Council’s consultants have now corrected the error in the viability model, and
then updated the key assumptions that are inputted into the model in terms of sales
values, build costs and benchmark land values. In addition, the analyses of patterns
of sales values that inform the approach to zoning have also been reviewed and
updated. Given that the error in the original viability model results in changes to the
original figures, it is necessary to re-consult on a revised DCS. This has sadly caused
a time delay to the process of preparing and adopting a CIL charging schedule, to the
extent that it will not be possible to have an adopted schedule by April 2015. Revised

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 163



6.2

6.3

6.5

6.6

6.7

viability assessments, along with all of the assumptions which underpin them, are set
out in a Revised Draft Charging Schedule Viability Report that will be published as
part of a consultation on the revised DCS.

In recommending charge rates based on the evidence, the starting point is a
calculation of the maximum possible charge for each use that is consistent with
maintaining viability. It is then necessary to drawn down from these maxima to
ensure that the vast majority of development will remain viable. Consistent with
previous work, the Council’s consultants recommend charges are set at 50% - 75%
of the maximum to achieve this, and balance the need to maintain viability, with the
need to fund the infrastructure that is required to enable growth.

The revised assessments show that small adjustments to the DCS are required. The
viability of residential development in lower value areas is shown to be lower than
previously assessed. In addition, increased sales values mean that slightly higher
charges for residential development in moderate and higher value areas are
appropriate. No changes are required to the charges proposed for non-residential
development. However, the changes to the residential charges proposed still mean
that it is necessary and appropriate to consult on a revised DCS. The charge rates
proposed in the Revised DCS are shown below.

Use Proposed CIL charge
(per sq.m)

Private market houses:
Lower Charging Zones £45

All Other Areas £85

Supermarkets £120

Retail Warehouses £60

Public/Institutional Facilities as follows: education, health, £0
community and emergency services

All other chargeable development £0

As can be seen the residential charge for lower charging zones has been reduced by
£10 to £45, and for all other areas has increased by £15 to £85. All other charges
remain the same. Officers consider that the charges reflect the need to strike the
necessary balance required in the regulations in relation viability and that they are
fully supported by robust evidence.

It should also be noted that the geographical extent of the charging zones for private
market houses remain the same. (See charging zone map included in Appendix 1)

It is considered that the Council is now at the stage where the revised Draft Charging
Schedule can be taken through the final formal stages of production. This process
involves an additional consultation period following which any additional comments
will be reviewed. Given that this is a revised DCS, Officers consider that the statutory
minimum of four weeks is the appropriate consultation period. Subject to the
outcomes of this consultation, the Draft Charging Schedule will then be submitted for

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 164



Examination along with all of the representations received.

6.8 The Regulations prescribe the procedural requirements for the formal publication and
submission of the Draft Charging Schedule.

Other Procedural Matters

6.9 An important procedural requirement particularly at the formal stages of the
preparation of a DCS is that it is taken forward in accordance with a timeframe
achievable for adoption. The previously stated timescales have been altered by the
discovery of the error in the model. Officers consider the following revised milestones
should now be used for the next stages of the process:

Revised DCS consultation — January 2015

Submission — February 2015

Adoption — June 2015 (this date is an estimate and depends on the nature of
representations received and the capacity of the Planning
Inspectorate)

7.0 IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The following implications have been identified:
a) Financial
A budget has been set aside for the preparation of the Draft Charging Schedule
and the costs of an Examination. Any additional work that has been required as a
result of the error will be done at the Consultant’s own expense. Once CIL is in
place, it will generate revenue to the Council, although this revenue is ring-fenced
for spending on a list of infrastructure items that the Council produces. This
accompanies the charging schedule and is updated on a regular basis.

b) Legal
Preparation of the charging schedule is be subject to the requirements of the
Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended). On adoption, CIL will
become a mandatory charge for development listed in the charging schedule.

8.0 NEXT STEPS

8.1 Officers will complete the administrative arrangements which are required to ensure
that the Revised Draft Charging Schedule is published in accordance with statutory
requirements. All those individuals or organisations who have previously submitted
comments on the charging schedule will be notified, alongside the statutory consultees
listed in the Regulations. A copy of the Revised Draft Charging Schedule will also be
made available at Ryedale House and on the Council’s web-site.

Gary Housden
Head of Planning and Housing

Author: Daniel Wheelwright, Forward Planning Officer
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 313
E-Mail Address: daniel.wheelwright@ryedale.gov.uk

Background Papers:

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 165



Revised Viability Assessment, December 2014
Background Papers are available for inspection at:
www.ryedaleplan.org.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE 16 DECEMBER 2014

Page 166



RYEDALE
DISTRICT
COUNCIL

Ryedale District Council

Community Infrastructure Levy

Revised Draft Charging Schedule

Published December 2014

Page 167



The Charging Authority

This Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Revised Draft Charging Schedule has been
published by Ryedale District Council. The Council will be both a Charging Authority and a
Collecting Authority.

Statutory Compliance

The Draft Charging Schedule was approved for publication at the 18 December meeting of
Full Council. It is published in accordance with Part 11 of the Planning Act 2008 (as
amended), and the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended).

In setting its CIL rates in accordance with Regulation 14(1) of the Community Infrastructure
Levy Regulations 2010, Ryedale District Council has aimed to strike what is believed by the
council to be an appropriate balance between:

e The desirability of funding from CIL (in whole or part) the estimated total cost of
infrastructure required to support the development of the District, taking into account
other actual and expected sources of funding; and

e The potential effect (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the economic
viability of development across the District.

Justifying the Introduction of CIL

At the time of publishing (December 2014), the Council has identified and infrastructure
funding gap of £63,870,000.

As a part of the economic viability study that supports the charging schedule, a revenue
projection has been produced to identify the potential revenue from the proposed CIL rates
over the life of the development plan. This figure is estimated at £6,240,615, approximately
£416,041 per annum.

Scope of CIL
The following development types will be liable to CIL:

e Development comprising 100m? or more of new build floorspace;

e Development of less than 100m? of new build floorspace that results in the creation
of one or more dwellings, but excluding self-build properties; and

e The conversion of a building that has not been in use for at least 6 continuous
months during the last three years.

CIL Exemptions and Relief

The CIL regulations provide for certain types of development to be exempt or eligible for
relief from CIL, as set out below:

Page 168



Development exempt from CIL

e The conversion of any building previously used as a dwelling house to two or more
dwellings

e Development of less than 100m2 of new build floorspace, provided that it does not
result in the creation of a new dwelling

e The conversion of a building in lawful use, or the creation of additional floor-space
within the existing structure of a building in lawful use

e Development of buildings and structures into which people do not normally go (eg,
pylons, wind turbines, electricity sub stations)

Development entitled to Mandatory Relief from CIL

e Development by registered charities for the delivery of their charitable purposes, as
set out in Regulation 43 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

e Those parts of a development which are to be used as social housing, as set out in
Regulation 49 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010

Where planning permission is granted for a new development that involves the extension or
demolition of a building in lawful use, the level of CIL payable will be calculated based on the
net additional floorspace. This means that the existing floorspace contained in the building to
be extended or demolished will be deducted from the total floorspace of the new
development, when calculating the CIL liability.

The definition of lawful use is contained in Regulation 6 (11(ii)) of the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), which states the following:

“contains a part that has been in lawful use for a continuous period of at least six months
within the period of three years ending on the day planning permission first permits the
chargeable development”

Page 169



CIL Rates

The Revised Draft Charging Schedule Report, undertaken by Peter Brett Associates
(formerly Roger Tym and Partners), informs and provides the viability evidence for the CIL
rates proposed by Ryedale District Council. The proposed charging schedule is as follows:

Use CIL Charge per sq. m

Private market houses (excl. apartments)

Low value areas £45
All other areas £85
Supermarkets £120

Retail Warehouse £60

Public/Institutional facilities as follows: education,

health, community and emergency services £0

All other chargeable development (incl.

apartments) £0

The definitions of the Supermarkets and Retail Warehouse are as follows:

e Supermarkets — Supermarkets are large convenience-led stores where the majority
of custom is from people doing their main weekly food shop. As such, they provide a
very wide range of convenience goods, often along with some element of comparison
goods. In addition to this, the key characteristics of the way a supermarket is used
include:

e The area used for the sale of goods will generally be above 500 sqg. m.

e The majority of customers will use a trolley to gather a large number of
products;

e The majority of customers will access the store by car, using the large
adjacent car parks provided; and

e Servicing is undertaken via a dedicated service area, rather than from the
street.

e Retail Warehouses — Retail warehouses are usually large stores specialising in the
sale of household goods (such as carpets, furniture and electrical goods), DIY items
and other ranges of goods. They can be stand-alone units, but are also often
developed as part of retail parks. In either case, they are usually located outside of
existing town centres and cater mainly for car-borne customers. As such, they
usually have large adjacent, dedicated surface parking.

The charge zone areas are shown on map shown overleaf.

Page 170



Page 171



Supporting Information and Evidence Base

The documents listed below support this CIL Draft Charging Schedule. All documents are
available on the Council’s website, or can be viewed at the following locations:

e Ryedale Local Plan Strategy (adopted September 2013)

e Ryedale Infrastructure Delivery Plan (January 2012)

¢ Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy Viability Assessment (August 2013)

e Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy Addendum Report (January 2014)

e Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy Revised Draft Charging Schedule Report
(December 2014)

e Draft Regulation 123 List

Page 172



Agenda Iltem 14

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS

1.

Application No: 13/00884/CON Decision: Approval

Parish: Westow Parish Council

Applicant: Mount Farm Partnership

Location: Buildings At Mount Farm Main Street Westow Malton

Proposal: Demolition of agricultural buildings.

2.

Application No: 14/00710/FUL Decision: Refusal

Parish: Harome Parish Council

Applicant: Thomas Crown Associates Ltd.

Location: Land East Of Rye House Farm Helmsley

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural livestock building with stoned turning area and formation
of vehicular access

3.

Application No: 14/00792/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mrs L Spink

Location: Land At Chandlers Wharf Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: T2 - Sycamore - Crown thin by 10-15%

4.

Application No: 14/00839/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Helmsley Town Council

Applicant: Miss Sandra Race

Location: 8 Storey Close Helmsley YO62 5DP

Proposal: Erection of external flue to gable end

5.

Application No: 14/00952/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Appleton-le-Street Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr A Studdart

Location: Glebe House Main Street Appleton Le Street Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6PG

Proposal: Erection of 4 bed detached dwelling with attached 2 bay garage following the
demolition of the "central" stone barn and existing 3 bed dwelling, retaining a section
of wall to form front courtyard together with change of use of part of existing "front"
stone barn to form domestic workshop/garaging with storage above, and alterations
to hard/soft landscaping to form yard and grassed areas to the rear, including
formation of vehicular access to proposed grass bank.

6.

Application No: 14/00989/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sand Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Karen Holbrook

Location: Sawmill House Upper Helmsley Road Sand Hutton YO41 1JZ

Proposal: Installation of 2 no. ground floor windows to south side elevation

Page 173



7

Application No:

14/01001/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Christopher Boyes

Location: The Paddocks Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8EX

Proposal: Formation of culverted bridge vehicular access and alterations to dwelling to include
replacement of timber windows with UPVC, replacement of flat roofed dormer
windows with pitched roofs and rendering of all elevations (part-retrospective
application)

8.

Application No: 14/01003/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Fitzwilliam(Malton) Estates (Mr Keith Davies)

Location: Old Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Erection of 470mm dwarf retaining wall to rear of front boundary trees and 200mm
high timber stake and board retaining structure to front of trees

9.

Application No: 14/01010/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Fitzwilliam (Malton) Estate (Mr Keith Davies)

Location: Old Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Internal fitting out works to unit

10.

Application No: 14/01017/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council

Applicant: Claive Docwra

Location: Blacksmiths Arms PH Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RP

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to south-east elevation to form entrance lobby
together with extension and change of use of existing detached garage to form a 1
bedroom holiday let, housing for biomass boiler and fuel/general storage areas

11.

Application No: 14/01020/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr G Barker

Location: Beech Lea Flaxton York YO60 7QZ

Proposal: Change of use of part of general purpose agricultural building to an agricultural
repair workshop for personal use and also as a workshop for storage and repair of
gardening equipment and motor vehicles for personal/private use of the applicant
(retrospective application)

12.

Application No: 14/01049/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Foxholes Parish Council

Applicant: Ms M Hollowell

Location: 4 Ash Court Main Street Foxholes Driffield North Yorkshire YO25 3QR

Proposal: To crown lift to provide a clearance from ground level of 3m, crown thin by
approximately 10/20% and reduce the crown on the house and road side by 2-3m
crown in respect of T3 (Cherry) within TPO No. 328/2011.

13.

Page 174



Application No: 14/01050/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Tom Hirst

Location: Alba Rose Residential Home Keld Head Hall Middleton Road Pickering North
Yorkshire YO18 8NR

Proposal: To fell T1 (sycamore), remove epicormc growths and reduce crown of T3, TS5, T8,
and T12 (limes) by 2-3meters, reduce roadside branches by 2-3 meters of T 14
(Horse Chestnut), and fell T15 (lime) all within TPO No.171/1991.

14.

Application No: 14/01031/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: South Holme Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Julia Foster

Location: Manor Farm South Holme Slingsby York YO62 4BB

Proposal: Erection of garden room to west elevation and installation of entrance door to west
elevation of existing detached outbuilding

15.

Application No: 14/01032/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: South Holme Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Julia Foster

Location: Manor Farm South Holme Slingsby York YO62 4BB

Proposal: Erection of garden room to west elevation and removal of existing external door and
section of wall to form a wider link between the existing kitchen and proposed
garden room, together with installation of entrance door to west elevation of existing
detached outbuilding

16.

Application No: 14/01034/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Acklam Parish Meeting

Applicant: Miss Amelia Risi

Location: 2 Main Street Acklam Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9RG

Proposal: Replacement of 2no. front single glazed timber windows by single glazed timber
windows (retrospective application)

17.

Application No: 14/01065/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Dean Fitton

Location: 33 Elm View Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EF

Proposal: Erection of detached single garage to replace existing shed

18.

Application No: 14/01066/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Swinton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Matthew Vasey

Location: Howe Dene High Street Swinton Malton YO17 6SL

Proposal: Alterations to existing vehicular access

19.

Application No: 14/01069/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Fryton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr A Laird

Location: West Farm Fryton West Fryton Lane Slingsby Malton YO62 4AT

Page 175



Proposal: Erection of single storey garden room extension and repositioning of plant room
entrance door

20.

Application No: 14/01070/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Fryton Parish Council

Applicant: Mr A Laird

Location: West Farm Fryton West Fryton Lane Slingsby Malton YO62 4AT

Proposal: Erection of single storey garden room extension to include removal of section of
garden wall and repositioning of plant room entrance door

21.

Application No: 14/01060/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Rutter

Location: Uplands House Castle Howard Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7JH

Proposal: Slight reduction of south westerly branches in low to mid crown area, reduce low
northerly limb by 1.5m to re-balance crown and slightly reduce overall height of
INo. Horse Chestnut by a maximum of 2m, and fell 1No. Elm suffering from Dutch
Elm disease all within G2 within TPO No. 336/2014.

22,

Application No: 14/01072/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Mrs Thackray

Location: Sedums 20 York Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6AX

Proposal: To carry out minor crown shaping to T57 (holly) and slight crown lift, and slight
crown re-shaping of T56 (yew) within TPO No. 247A/1999.

23.

Application No: 14/01074/ADV Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Food Programme Delivery Orchid Group

Location: Cooperative Store Champleys Mews Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AE

Proposal: Display of 1no. externally illuminated fascia sign, 1no. internally illuminated
projecting sign and Ino. non-illuminated post mounted staff parking sign

24,

Application No: 14/01075/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mrs Tina Rush

Location: 49 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DU

Proposal: Change of use of domestic outbuilding to a retail unit with external display area

25.

Application No: 14/01079/TPO Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr Roy Foggin

Location: 97 Middleton Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8NQ

Proposal: To reduce the north eastern scaffold limbs of T5, T6, and T7 (Limes) by 1.5m, all
within TPO NO. 89/1973.

26.

Application No: 14/01080/LBC Decision: Approval

Page 176



Parish: Nunnington Parish Council

Applicant: National Trust (Mr John Moorey)

Location: Nunnington Hall The Avenue Nunnington YO62 5UY

Proposal: Raising of existing courtyard wall to 1.5m high and erection of 1.5m high stone
enclosure to house 3 phase electric transformer on a 0.5m high concrete plinth
following demolition of the existing oil tank bund

27.

Application No: 14/01084/73A Decision: Approval

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Frederick Lees

Location: 12,14, 15,16, 17, 18, 19 & 20 Hurrell Court Hurrell Lane Thornton-Le-Dale
Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7QR

Proposal: Removal of Condition 02 of approval 02/01019/FUL dated 20.02.2003 to allow
unrestricted residential use

28.

Application No: 14/01086/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Malton Town Council

Applicant: Fitzwilliam Malton Estate (Mr Alex Welburn)

Location: Building At Old Talbot Yard Yorkersgate Malton North Yorkshire

Proposal: Internal fitting out works to unit to include stairs to access first floor

29.

Application No: 14/01091/ADV Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: McCarthy & Stone

Location: North Riding Garages Ltd Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EQ

Proposal: Display of 2 no. non-illuminated post mounted sale boards

30.

Application No: 14/01092/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Edstone Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr And Mrs I Hamilton

Location: Brecklands Farm Great Edstone Kirkbymoorside YO62 6PE

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part single storey extension to east elevation

31.

Application No: 14/01105/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Marishes Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr C Hoggard

Location: Howe Bridge Farm Low Marishes Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6RQ

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for storage and housing of livestock adjacent to
existing agricultural buildings

32.

Application No: 14/01106/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council

Applicant: Mrs Sheila Everist

Location: Church Cottage Church End Sheriff Hutton YO60 6SY

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension

33.

Application No: 14/01107/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Page 177



Parish: Settrington Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Philip Mason

Location: Park House Town Street Settrington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8NR

Proposal: Erection of timber shed at rear of double garage for storage of garden equipment and
tools (retrospective application)

34.

Application No: 14/01112/73A Decision: Approval

Parish: Huttons Ambo Parish Council

Applicant: R F Racing Ltd (Mr Richard Fahey)

Location: Musley Bank Stables Musley Bank Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TD

Proposal: Variation of condition numbers 11,12 and 13 of approval 14/00574/MFUL dated
26.08.2014 by substitution of Tree Plan No. BA4799L.ANO2 by Tree Plan No.
BA4799L.ANOS - revision of landscaping scheme

35.

Application No: 14/01114/FUL Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: XYLO Of Pickering (Mr Dominique Bizien)

Location: Garage To Rear Of 20 Firthland Road Pickering North Yorkshire

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of garage to form an office to include erection of pitch
roof over existing flat roof and installation of double timber doors to replace existing
up and over metal door

36.

Application No: 14/01116/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mr R And Mrs M E Crawford

Location: Glencoe The Avenue Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EH

Proposal: Erection of attached single garage together with formation of vehicular access and
paved parking/turning area

37.

Application No: 14/01123/LBC Decision: Approval

Parish: Pickering Town Council

Applicant: Mrs Tina Rush

Location: 49 Eastgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7DU

Proposal: Display of 1no. door mounted non-illuminated name and direction sign

38.

Application No: 14/01129/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council

Applicant: Mr & Mrs T Mellor

Location: Burnside 54C St Hildas Street Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PH

Proposal: Erection of single storey side extension following demolition of existing attached
single garage

39.

Application No: 14/01160/HOUSE Decision: Approval

Parish: Normanby Parish Meeting

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Bell

Location: Westfield House Westfield Lane Normanby Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RJ

Proposal: Erection of detached garden store

Page 178



40.

Application No: 14/01165/HOUSE Decision: Approval
Parish: Thornton-le-Clay Parish Council

Applicant: Mr Thomas Lonsdale

Location: 1 Winston Row Low Street Thornton Le Clay YO60 7TQ
Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear to replace existing conservatory
41.

Application No: 14/01186/HOUSE Decision: Approval
Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Clements

Location: The Struan Vivers Place Kirkbymoorside YO62 6L.X

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension

Page 179



Appeal Decision

Site visit made on 18 November 2014

by A N Roland BSc DipTP MRTPI
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

Decision date: 26 November 2014

Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/D/14/2226929
The Croft, Foston, YORK, YO60 7QG.

e The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

e The appeal is made by Mr and Mrs Pickard against the decision of Ryedale District
Council.

e The application Ref: 14/00743/HOUSE was refused by notice dated 21 August 2014.

e The development proposed is erection of two storey side and rear extension to

incorporate integral double garage following demolition of existing detached garage and
rear extension.

Decision
1. The appeal is dismissed.
Main issue

2. The main issue in this appeal is whether the extensions would integrate
satisfactorily with the character of the existing dwelling.

Reasons

3. The existing property is a modest detached cottage of some charm. The
extension to the side of the dwelling would incorporate a set back in its front
wall and taken in isolation, it would appear as a proportionate addition to the
host property. However, the proposals also incorporate a full width two storey
rear extension with a dual pitched roof. Because of its height, width and
particularly its rearward projection, it would to my mind appear as an unwieldy
addition to the property, with the net result that the property would appear
engulfed in extensions.

4. 1 take the appellant’s point that there are no public views to the rear of the
house as it backs onto fields. Nonetheless, the depth of the rear extension
would be visible from adjoining houses, as well as from the gaps between the
properties along the road frontage. The two storey side extension would add to
the impression of the property being subsumed in extensions, notwithstanding
my view above that in isolation, it would be proportionate in scale.

5. The appellant points out that the property is unusually small relative to its
immediate neighbours to either side, but further afield to the East is another
example of a modest detached cottage and part of the charm of historic
settlements such as this, is derived from an eclectic mix of styles and size of
properties. My attention is also drawn to the fallback position of the demolition

WWW.planningportal-90V-Uk/P'a””ingi”SpeCtpﬁge 180



Appeal Decisions APP/Y2736/D/14/2226929

of the dwelling and rebuilding in the manner proposed in this appeal. However,
it is unclear to what extent such a proposal would comply with the Council’s
replacement dwelling policies, if they exist and it is by no means clear that it
would receive permission. I therefore attach limited weight to this particular
proposition.

6. Overall on the main issue whilst I have no concerns with the detailed design of
the extensions, I am nonetheless concerned that their scale would dominate
the host property, to the detriment of its character and appearance. The
proposal would thus conflict with Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Local
Plan Strategy which seek to ensure that extensions are appropriate to the
character of the host property in terms of amongst other things, their scale.

A Roland

INSPECTOR

www.planningportal.gOV-Uk/planningimpecwratepaﬁe 181



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 14/00947/MFUL - ATS Euromaster, 25 - 27 Commercial Street, Norton
	2 Revised Site Location Plan
	3 Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 Revised Floor Plan
	5 Revised Elevations
	6 Supporting Document
	7 Incoming Document
	8 Flood Risk Assessment
	9 Design & Access Statement

	7 14/01081/OUT - Land At, Piercy End, Kirkbymoorside
	2 Original Report
	3 Site Location Plan
	4 Revised Plan
	5 Parish

	8 14/00909/HOUSE - Newlands, 4 St Peters Crescent, Norton
	2 Original Report
	3 Plan Superceeded
	4 Plan Revised

	9 14/00980/MFUL - Ryelands Care Home, Hurrell Lane, Thornton-Le-Dale
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Revised Site Layout
	4 Revised Site Layout Plan (care home overlay)
	5 Proposed Plans
	6 Plan Revised
	7 Supporting Document
	8 Design & Access Statement

	10 14/01187/FUL - 4 Dale Road, Sheriff Hutton, Malton
	2 Site Location Plan
	3 Plans

	11 Publication of the CIL Revised Draft Charging Schedule
	2 Part B - HPH - CIL Revised DCS Annex 1

	14 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	15 Update on Appeal Decisions

